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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements

THERAPEUTICSMD, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2020 December 31, 2019

(Unaudited)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash $ 113,839,234 $ 160,829,713
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $722,240 and $904,040, respectively 18,290,784 24,395,958
Inventory, net 10,172,312 11,860,716
Other current assets 6,641,587 11,329,793
Total current assets 148,943,917 208,416,180
Fixed assets, net 2,145,926 2,507,775
Other Assets:
License rights, net 37,721,695 39,221,308
Intangible assets, net 5,942,873 5,258,211
Right of use assets 10,337,577 10,109,154
Other assets 446,925 473,009
Total other assets 54,449,070 55,061,682
Total assets $ 205,538,913 $ 265,985,637
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 17,270,319 $ 19,181,212
Other current liabilities 29,213,411 33,823,613
Total current liabilities 46,483,730 53,004,825
Long-Term Liabilities:
Long-term debt 243,801,705 194,634,643
Operating lease liability 9,307,361 9,145,049
Other long-term liabilities 35,000 —
Total long-term liabilities 253,144,066 203,779,692
Total liabilities 299,627,796 256,784,517
Commitments and Contingencies - See Note 15
Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity:
Preferred stock - par value $0.001; 10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and outstanding — —
Common stock - par value $0.001; 600,000,000 and 350,000,000 shares authorized: 272,294,380 and
271,177,076 issued and outstanding, respectively 272,294 271,177
Additional paid-in capital 709,885,568 704,351,222
Accumulated deficit (804,246,745) (695,421,279)
Total stockholders' (deficit) equity (94,088,883) 9,201,120
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 205,538,913 $ 265,985,637

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




Product revenue, net

Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Sales, general, and administrative
Research and development

Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

Operating loss
Other (expense) income
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Miscellaneous income
Interest expense
Total other expense
Loss before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net loss

Loss per share, basic and diluted:

Net loss per share, basic and diluted

THERAPEUTICSMD, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 10,701,033 $ 6,078,865 22,951,690 $ 10,025,516
4,400,485 1,248,860 7,115,536 2,011,687
6,300,548 4,830,005 15,836,154 8,013,829
48,340,628 41,387,451 105,267,649 76,251,533
2,742,032 4,964,368 6,010,861 11,282,250
256,557 115,059 518,551 221,997
51,339,217 46,466,878 111,797,061 87,755,780
(45,038,669) (41,636,873) (95,960,907) (79,741,951)
— (10,057,632) — (10,057,632)
88,858 486,597 424,340 1,175,318
(7,026,853) (4,028,609) (13,288,899) (6,118,627)
(6,937,995) (13,599,644) (12,864,559) (15,000,941)
(51,976,664) (55,236,517) (108,825,466) (94,742,892)

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding,

basic and diluted

$ (51,976,664) $ (55,236,517) (108,825,466) $ (94,742,892)
$ 0.19) $ (0.23) (0.40) $ (0.39)
271,876,238 241,221,840 271,667,879 241,114,532

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




Balance, December 31, 2018

Shares issued for exercise of options and
warrants, net

Share-based compensation

Net loss

Balance, March 31, 2019

Share-based compensation
Net loss

Balance, June 30, 2019

Balance, December 31, 2019

Shares issued for exercise of options, net

Issuance of shares from release of restricted
stock

Share-based compensation

Net loss

Balance, March 31, 2020

Shares issued for exercise of options, net

Issuance of shares from release of restricted
stock

Share-based compensation

Net loss

Balance, June 30, 2020

THERAPEUTICSMD, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(Unaudited)
Additional
Common Stock Paid in Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Total
240,462,439 $ 240,463 $ 616,559,938 $  (519,276,280) $ 97,524,121
759,401 759 99,348 — 100,107
— — 2,575,369 — 2,575,369
— — — (39,506,375) (39,506,375)
241,221,840 241,222 619,234,655 (558,782,655) 60,693,222
— — 2,637,264 — 2,637,264
— — (55,236,517) (55,236,517)
241,221,840 $ 241,222 $ 621,871,919 $  (614,019,172) $ 8,093,969
271,177,076  $ 271,177  $ 704,351,222  $  (695,421,279) $ 9,201,120
350,666 351 71,758 — 72,109
150,000 150 (150) — —
— — 2,366,453 — 2,366,453
— — — (56,848,802) (56,848,802)
271,677,742 271,678 706,789,283 (752,270,081) (45,209,120)
313,638 313 93,762 — 94,075
303,000 303 (303) —
— — 3,002,826 — 3,002,826
— — — (51,976,664) (51,976,664)
272,294,380 $ 272,294 $ 709,885,568 $  (804,246,745) $ (94,088,883)

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




THERAPEUTICSMD, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss

(Unaudited)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortization of intangible assets
Write off of patent and trademark costs
Operating lease impairment
Non-cash operating lease expense
(Recovery of) provision for doubtful accounts
Inventory obsolesence reserve
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Share-based compensation
Amortization of deferred financing fees
Amortization of license fee
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Patent costs
Purchase of fixed assets
Security deposit

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from exercise of options and warrants
Repayment of the Credit Agreement
Proceeds from the Financing Agreement
Payment of deferred financing fees

Net cash provided by financing activities
Increase (decrease) in cash

Cash, beginning of period
Cash, end of period

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Interest paid

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2020 2019
$ (108,825,466) $ (94,742,892)
387,649 133,049
130,902 88,948
— 78,864
81,309 —
689,089 443,734
(181,800) 167,500
5,965,139 —
— 10,057,632
5,369,279 5,224,212
692,442 316,880
1,499,613 —
6,286,974 (7,486,691)
(4,276,735) (4,226,770)
4,412,827 1,710,697
(1,910,893) (3,244,603)
(5,420,628) 2,801,717
(95,100,299) (88,677,723)
(815,564) (763,247)
(25,800) (1,092,504)
35,000 (20,420)
(806,364) (1,876,171)
166,184 100,107
— (81,660,719)
50,000,000 200,000,000
(1,250,000) (6,652,270)
48,916,184 111,787,118
(46,990,479) 21,233,224
160,829,713 161,613,077
$ 113,839,234 $ 182,846,301
$ 12,032,014 $ 6,989,570

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




THERAPEUTICSMD, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - THE COMPANY

TherapeuticsMD, Inc., a Nevada corporation, or TherapeuticsMD or the Company, has three wholly owned subsidiaries, vitaMedMD, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company, or VitaMed; BocaGreenMD, Inc., a Nevada corporation, or BocaGreen; and VitaCare Prescription Services, Inc., a Florida
corporation, or VitaCare. Unless the context otherwise requires, TherapeuticsMD, VitaMed, BocaGreen, and VitaCare collectively are sometimes referred

to as “our company,” “we,” “our,” or “us.” TherapeuticsMD®, VitaMedMD®, BocaGreenMD®, IMVEXXY®, BIJUVA® and ANNOVERA® are registered
trademarks of our company.

Nature of Business

We are a women’s healthcare company with a mission of creating and commercializing innovative products to support the lifespan of women from
pregnancy prevention through menopause. At TherapeuticsMD, we combine entrepreneurial spirit, clinical expertise, and business leadership to develop
and commercialize health solutions that enable new standards of care for women. Our solutions range from a patient-controlled, long-lasting contraceptive
to advanced hormone therapy pharmaceutical products. We also manufacture and distribute branded and generic prescription prenatal vitamins under the
vitaMedMD and BocaGreenMD brands. Our portfolio of products focused on women’s health allows us to efficiently leverage our sales and marketing plan
to grow our recently approved products. During 2018, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, approval of our pharmaceutical products has
transitioned our company from predominately focused on conducting research and development to one focused on commercializing our pharmaceutical
products. In July 2018, we launched our FDA-approved product, IMVEXXY (estradiol vaginal inserts) for the treatment of moderate-to-severe dyspareunia
(vaginal pain associated with sexual activity), a symptom of vulvar and vaginal atrophy, or VVA, due to menopause. In April 2019, we launched our FDA-
approved product BIJUVA (estradiol and progesterone) capsules, our hormone therapy combination of bio-identical 17R-estradiol and bio-identical
progesterone in a single, oral softgel capsule, for the treatment of moderate-to-severe vasomotor symptoms, or VMS, due to menopause in women with a
uterus. In October 2019, we began a test and learn market introduction for our FDA-approved product ANNOVERA (segesterone acetate and ethinyl
estradiol vaginal system), the first and only patient-controlled, procedure-free, reversible prescription contraceptive option for women. Although we
expected to commence the full commercial launch of ANNOVERA in the first quarter of 2020, as a result of the uncertainty surrounding the COVID-19
pandemic, we paused the commercial launch of ANNOVERA and deferred sales and marketing initiatives into subsequent quarters as the pandemic began
to negatively affect our revenue growth. We resumed the launch of ANNOVERA on July 1, 2020. On July 30, 2018, we entered into an exclusive license
agreement, or the Population Council License Agreement, with the Population Council, Inc., or the Population Council, to commercialize ANNOVERA in
the U.S. In addition, on July 30, 2018, we entered into a license and supply agreement, or the Knight License Agreement, with Knight Therapeutics Inc., or
Knight, pursuant to which we granted Knight an exclusive license to commercialize IMVEXXY and BIJUVA in Canada and Israel. On June 6, 2019, we
entered into an exclusive license and supply agreement, or the Theramex License Agreement, with Theramex HQ UK Limited, or Theramex, to
commercialize BIJUVA and IMVEXXY outside of the U.S., excluding Canada and Israel, or the Theramex Territory.

NOTE 2 — BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Interim Financial Statements

The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of TherapeuticsMD, Inc., which include our wholly owned subsidiaries, should be
read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2019, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, from which we derived the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2019. The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, or GAAP, for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and
Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, since they are interim statements, the accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements do not
include all of the information and notes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial
statements reflect all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments, that are, in the opinion of our management, necessary to a fair statement of
the results for the interim periods presented. Interim results are not necessarily indicative of results for a full year or any other interim period in the future.

Risks and Uncertainties

We are subject to risks and uncertainties as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. The extent of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business is
highly uncertain and difficult to predict. We continue to provide an uninterrupted supply of our portfolio of products for patients. We have sufficient
inventory of finished product to meet anticipated demand through at least the early fourth quarter of 2020. Additionally, we currently do not foresee any
interruption in our ability to continue to manufacture additional product to be used beyond this period and have sufficient active pharmaceutical ingredients
on hand for the continued manufacture of our products.




Since the early phase of the COVID-19 pandemic, we have been using substantial virtual options to ensure business continuity. Our VitaCare Prescription
Services patient model assists patients in obtaining easy and convenient access to their prescriptions for products at a retail pharmacy of their choice,
including via home delivery retail pharmacy options. We have also partnered with independent community pharmacies and multiple third-party online
pharmacies and telemedicine providers that focus on contraception or menopause to ensure patients have real-time access to both diagnosis and treatment.
We continue to support prescribers’ needs with samples and product materials through our sales force. If access is restricted, we currently have mailing
options in place for these materials. We also have business continuity plans and infrastructure in place that allows for virtual detailing.

As part of our response to the COVID-19 pandemic, we implemented measures to reduce marketing expenses for 2020. We also implemented cost saving
measures, which included negotiating lower fees or suspending services from third party vendors; implementing a company-wide hiring freeze; delaying or
cancelling non-critical information technology projects; and eliminating travel, entertainment, meeting, and event expenses. These savings can be extended
further throughout 2020 or expanded depending on the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, our second quarter 2020 product revenues were reduced, which impacted our results of operations. As of the date
of issuance of these consolidated financial statements, the future extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic may materially impact our financial condition,
liquidity, or results of operations remains uncertain. We are continuing to assess the effect the COVID-19 pandemic on our operations by monitoring the
spread of COVID-19 and the various actions implemented to combat the virus throughout the world.

While we currently believe that our COVID-19 contingency plan has the ability to mitigate the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business, the
severity of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business will depend on a number of factors, including, but not limited to, the duration and
severity of the pandemic, the duration of “social distancing” orders, the ability of our sales force to access healthcare providers to promote our products,
increases in unemployment, which could reduce access to commercial health insurance for our patients, thus limiting payer coverage for our products, and
the impact of the pandemic on our global supply chain, all of which are uncertain. Our future results of operations and liquidity could be materially
adversely affected by delays in payments of outstanding receivable amounts beyond normal payment terms, supply chain disruptions, uncertain demand,
and the impact of any initiatives or programs that we may undertake to address financial and operations challenges that we may face.

Although there is uncertainty related to the anticipated impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our future results, we believe that our current cash reserves
and the recent steps we have taken to reduce our operating expenses will help us manage our business through the pandemic. We have reviewed numerous
potential scenarios in connection with the impact of COVID-19 on our business and, based on our analysis, we believe that our existing cash reserves, our
currently anticipated operating cash flows, and proceeds from potential future financings, if available to us, will be sufficient to meet our cash needs arising
in the ordinary course of business for the next twelve months from the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. However, if the successful
commercialization of IMVEXXY, BIJUVA, or ANNOVERA is delayed, or the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business is worse than we
anticipate, our existing cash reserves and proceeds from potential future financings, if available to us, may be insufficient to satisfy our liquidity
requirements until we are able to successfully commercialize IMVEXXY, BIJUVA, and ANNOVERA. If our available cash is insufficient to satisfy our
liquidity requirements, we may curtail our sales, marketing, and other commercialization efforts and we may seek to sell additional equity or debt
securities. Our ability to sell equity securities will be limited by market conditions. Our ability to sell debt securities or obtain additional debt financing is
restricted pursuant to the Financing Agreement. To the extent that we raise additional capital through the sale of equity or convertible debt securities, to the
extent permitted under the Financing Agreement, the ownership interests of our existing stockholders will be diluted, and the terms of these new securities
may include liquidation or other preferences that adversely affect the rights of our existing stockholders. If we raise additional funds through
collaborations, strategic alliances, or licensing arrangements with third parties, certain of which are restricted under the Financing Agreement, we may have
to relinquish valuable rights to our technologies, future revenue streams, research programs, or proposed products, if permitted under the Financing
Agreement. Additionally, we may have to grant licenses on terms that may not be favorable to us.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or the FASB, issued Accounting Standards Update, or ASU, 2018-13 which eliminates certain
disclosure requirements for fair value measurements for all entities, requires public entities to disclose certain new information and modifies some
disclosure requirements. The FASB developed the amendments to Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC, 820 as part of its broader disclosure
framework project, which aims to improve the effectiveness of disclosures in the notes to financial statements by focusing on requirements that clearly
communicate the most important information to users of the financial statements. The new guidance is effective for all entities for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2019 and for interim periods within those fiscal years. An entity is permitted to early adopt either the entire standard or only the
provisions that eliminate or modify requirements. We adopted this standard on January 1, 2020, and the adoption did not have a material effect on our
disclosures.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326), Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments. The amendments in this update require a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) measured at amortized cost basis to be presented at the
net amount expected to be collected based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable supportable forecasts. The amendments in this
update are effective for public business entities for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2019, with
early adoption permitted no sooner than the first quarter of 2019. A modified retrospective approach is required for all investments, except debt securities
for which an other-than-temporary impairment had been recognized prior to the effective date, which will require a prospective transition approach and
should be applied either prospectively or retrospectively depending on the nature of the disclosure. The adoption of ASU 2016-13 requires expanded
quantitative and qualitative disclosures about the Company’s expected credit losses. Effective January 1, 2020, we adopted ASU 2016-13 under a modified
retrospective approach for all financial assets measured at amortized cost. There was no adjustment recorded for the cumulative effect of adopting ASU
2016-13. The adoption expanded disclosures about our credit losses.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force), the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the SEC did not, and are not expected to, have a material effect on our results of operations or financial position.




NOTE 3 —- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Trade Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Trade accounts receivable are customer obligations due under normal trade terms. We review accounts receivable for uncollectible accounts and credit card
chargebacks and provide an allowance for doubtful accounts, which is based upon a review of outstanding receivables, historical collection information,
reasonable supportable forecasts and existing economic conditions and we record an allowance that presents the net amount expected to be collected. We
evaluate trade accounts receivable for delinquency. We write off delinquent receivables against our allowance for doubtful accounts based on individual
credit evaluations, the results of collection efforts, and specific circumstances of customers. We record recoveries of accounts previously written off when
received as an increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts. To the extent data we use to calculate these estimates does not accurately reflect bad debts,
adjustments to these reserves may be required. Our exposure to credit losses may increase if our customers are adversely affected by changes in healthcare
laws, coverage, and reimbursement, economic pressures or uncertainty associated with local or global economic recessions, disruption associated with the
current COVID-19 pandemic, or other customer-specific factors. Although we have historically not experienced significant credit losses, it is possible that
there could be a material adverse impact from potential adjustments of the carrying amount of trade receivables in the future.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments consist primarily of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and long-term debt. The carrying amount of
cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximates their fair value because of the short-term maturity of such instruments,
which are considered Level 1 assets under the fair value hierarchy. The carrying amount for long-term debt as of June 30, 2020 (as disclosed in Note 9)
approximates fair value based on market activity for other debt instruments with similar characteristics and comparable risk (Level 2).

We categorize our assets and liabilities that are valued at fair value on a recurring basis into a three-level fair value hierarchy as defined by ASC 820, Fair
Value Measurements, or ASC 820. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities
(Level 1) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). Assets and liabilities recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value are categorized
based on a hierarchy of inputs, as follows:

Level 1 unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets or inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly through market corroboration, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument; and

Level 3 unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities.

At June 30, 2020 and 2019, we had no assets or liabilities that were valued at fair value on a recurring basis.

The fair value of indefinite-lived assets is measured on a non-recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in connection with any
required impairment test. There was no impairment of intangible assets during the six months ended June 30, 2020. During the six months ended June 30,
2019, we wrote off $78,864 in costs related to trademarks and patents, including the net carrying amount of the OPERA patent.

Share-Based Compensation

We measure the compensation costs of share-based compensation arrangements based on the grant-date fair value and recognize the costs in the financial
statements over the period during which employees are required to provide services. Share-based compensation arrangements include options, restricted
stock, restricted stock units, performance-based awards, share appreciation rights, and employee share purchase plans. We amortize such compensation
amounts, if any, over the respective service periods of the award. We use the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model, or the Black-Scholes Model, an
acceptable model in accordance with ASC 718, Compensation-Stock Compensation, to value options. Option valuation models require the input of
assumptions, including the expected life of the stock-based awards, the estimated stock price volatility, the risk-free interest rate, and the expected dividend
yield. The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon observed interest rates on zero coupon U.S. Treasury bonds whose maturity period is appropriate
for the term of the instrument. Estimated volatility is a measure of the amount by which our stock price is expected to fluctuate each year during the term of
the award. On January 1, 2017, we began using our own stock price in our volatility calculation along with the other peer entities whose stock prices were
publicly available that were similar to our company and in 2019 we started using only our own stock price in the volatility calculation. Our calculation of
estimated volatility is based on historical stock prices over a period equal to the expected term of the awards. On January 1, 2020, we began calculating the
expected term of our stock-based awards, which represents the period that the stock-based awards are expected to be outstanding. Prior to January 1, 2020,
the average expected life of options was based on the contractual terms of the stock option using the simplified method. We utilize a dividend yield of zero
based on the fact that we have never paid cash dividends and have no current intention to pay cash dividends. The assumptions used in calculating the fair
value of stock-based awards represent our best estimates, but these estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment.
As a result, if factors change and we use different assumptions, our share-based compensation expense could be materially different in the future. We
recognize the compensation expense for share-based compensation granted based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with ASC 718. We
generally recognize the compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the employee’s requisite service period. Effective January 1, 2017, we account
for forfeitures when they occur. On January 1, 2019, we adopted ASU 2018-07 which simplified the accounting for share-based payments to non-
employees by aligning it with the accounting for share-based payments to employees, with certain exceptions. The new guidance expanded the scope of
ASC 718 to include share-based payments granted to non-employees in exchange for goods or services used or consumed in an entity’s own operations and
superseded the guidance in ASC 505-50. Prior to January 1, 2019, equity instruments issued to non-employees were recorded on a fair value basis, as
required by ASC 505, Equity - Based Payments to Non-Employees.




We grant performance-based stock units and restricted stock units for shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, or Common Stock, to
employees. We value our restricted stock units and our performance-based stock units by reference to our stock price on the date of grant. We recognize
compensation expense for restricted stock units based on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the entire award. We recognize
performance-based restricted stock as compensation expense based on the most likely probability of attaining the prescribed performance and over the
requisite service period beginning at its grant date and through the date the restricted stock vests. The number of target shares that vest are determined
based on the level of attainment of the targets. If a minimum level of performance is attained for the awards, restricted stock is issued based on the level of
attainment.

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, or ASC 606, revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of promised
goods or services. The amount of revenue recognized reflects the consideration to which we expect to be entitled to receive in exchange for these goods or
services. The provisions of ASC 606 include a five-step process by which we determine revenue recognition, depicting the transfer of goods or services to
customers in amounts reflecting the payment to which we expect to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. ASC 606 requires us to apply the
following steps: (1) identify the contract with the customer; (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract; (3) determine the transaction price; (4)
allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and (5) recognize revenue when, or as, we satisfy the performance obligation.

Prescription Products

As of June 30, 2020, our products consisted primarily of prescription vitamins and our FDA-approved products: IMVEXXY, which we began selling
during the third quarter of 2018, BIJUVA, which we began selling in the second quarter of 2019, and ANNOVERA, which we started selling in the third
quarter of 2019. As a result of the uncertainty surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic, we paused the commercial launch of ANNOVERA in the first quarter
of 2020 and deferred sales and marketing initiatives into subsequent quarters. We resumed the launch of ANNOVERA on July 1, 2020.

We sell our name brand and generic prescription products primarily through wholesale distributors and retail pharmacies. We have one performance
obligation related to prescription products sold through wholesale distributors, which is to transfer promised goods to a customer, and two performance
obligations related to products sold through retail pharmacies, which are to: (1) transfer promised goods and (2) provide customer service for an immaterial
fee. We treat shipping as a fulfillment activity rather than as a separate obligation. We recognize prescription revenue only when we satisfy performance
obligations by transferring a promised good or service to a customer. A good or service is considered to be transferred when the customer receives the
goods or service or obtains control. Control refers to the customer’s ability to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from,
an asset. Based on our contracts, we invoice customers once our performance obligations have been satisfied, at which point payment is unconditional. We
disclose receivables from contracts with customers separately in the statement of financial position. Payment for goods or services sold by us is typically
due between 30 and 60 days after an invoice is sent to the customer.

The transaction price of a contract is the amount of consideration which we expect to be entitled to in exchange for transferring promised goods or services
to a customer. Prescription products are sold at fixed wholesale acquisition cost, or WAC, determined based on our list price. However, the total transaction
price is variable as it is calculated net of estimated product returns, chargebacks, rebates, coupons, discounts and wholesaler fees. These estimates are based
on the amounts earned or to be claimed on the related sales and are classified as reductions of accounts receivable (if the amount is payable to the
customer) or a current liability (if the amount is payable to a party other than a customer). In order to determine the transaction price, we estimate the
amount of variable consideration at the outset of the contract either utilizing the expected value or most likely amount method, depending on the facts and
circumstances relative to the contract or each variable consideration. The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the transaction price
only to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. In determining amounts of variable consideration to include in a contract’s transaction
price, we rely on our historical experience and other evidence that supports our qualitative assessment of whether revenue would be subject to a significant
reversal. We consider all the facts and circumstances associated with both the risk of a revenue reversal arising from an uncertain future event and the
magnitude of the reversal if that uncertain event were to occur. Actual amounts of consideration ultimately received may differ from our estimates. If actual
results in the future vary from our original estimates, we will adjust these estimates, which would affect net product revenue and earnings in the period such
changes in estimates become known.
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We accept returns of unsalable prescription products sold through wholesale distributors within a return period of six months prior to and up to 12 months
following product expiration. Our vitamins and IMVEXXY currently have a shelf life of 24 months from the date of manufacture and BIJUVA and
ANNOVERA currently have a shelf life of 18 months from the date of manufacture. We do not allow product returns for prescription products that have
been dispensed to a patient. We estimate the amount of our product sales that may be returned by our customers and record this estimate as a reduction of
revenue in the period the related product revenue is recognized. Where historical rates of return exist, we use history as a basis to establish a returns reserve
for products shipped to wholesalers. For our newly launched products, for which the right of return exists but for which we currently do not have history of
product returns, we estimate returns based on available industry data, our own sales information and our visibility into the inventory remaining in the
distribution channel. At the end of each reporting period, we may decide to constrain revenue for product returns based on information from various
sources, including channel inventory levels and dating and sell-through data, the expiration dates of products currently being shipped, price changes of
competitive products and any introductions of generic products. We recognize the amount of expected returns as a refund liability, representing the
obligation to return the customer’s consideration. Since our returns primarily consist of expired and short dated products that will not be resold, we do not
record a return asset for the right to recover the goods returned by the customer at the time of the initial sale (when recognition of revenue is deferred due to
the anticipated return). Return estimates are recorded in other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

We offer various rebate and discount programs in an effort to maintain a competitive position in the marketplace and to promote sales and customer loyalty.
We estimate the allowance for consumer rebates and coupons that we have offered based on our experience and industry averages, which is reviewed, and
adjusted if necessary, on a quarterly basis. Estimates relating to these rebates and coupons are deducted from gross product revenues at the time the
revenues are recognized. We record distributor fees based on amounts stated in contracts. Rebate and coupon estimates and distributor fees are recorded in
other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. We estimate chargebacks based on number of units sold during the period taking into account
prices stated in contracts and our historical experience. Estimates related to distributors fees, rebates, coupons and returns are disclosed in Note 8. We
provide invoice discounts to our customers for prompt payment. Estimates relating to invoice discounts and chargebacks are deducted from gross product
revenues at the time the revenues are recognized.

As part of commercial launches for our FDA-approved prescription products, we introduced a co-pay assistance program for eligible enrolled patients
whose out of pocket costs are reduced to a more affordable price. This allows patients to access the product at a reasonable cost and is in line with our
responsible pricing approach. We reimburse pharmacies for this discount through third-party vendors. The variable consideration is estimated based on
contract prices, the estimated percentage of patients that will utilize the copay assistance, the average assistance paid, the estimated levels of inventory in
the distribution channel and the current level of prescriptions covered by patients’ insurance. Payers may change coverage levels for our prescription
products positively or negatively, at any time up to the time that we have formally contracted coverage with the payer. As such, the net transaction price of
our prescription products is susceptible to such changes in coverage levels, which are outside the influence of the Company. As a result, we constrain
variable consideration for our prescription products to an amount that will not result in a significant revenue reversal in future periods. Our ability to
estimate the net transaction price for our prescription products is constrained by our estimates of the amount to be paid for the co-pay assistance program
which is directly related to the level of prescriptions paid for by insurance. As such, we record an accrual to reduce gross sales for the estimated co-pay and
other patient assistance based on currently available third-party data and our internal analyses. We re-evaluate variable consideration each reporting period.

License Revenue
License arrangements may consist of non-refundable upfront license fees, exclusive licensed rights to patented or patent pending technology, and various
performance or sales milestones and future product royalty payments. Some of these arrangements may include multiple performance obligations. Non-

refundable up-front fees that are not contingent on any future performance by us, and do not require continuing involvement on our part, are recognized as
revenue when the right to use functional IP is transferred to the customer.
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Disaggregation of revenue

The following table provides information about disaggregated revenue by product mix for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019
Prescription vitamins $ 2,428,382 $ 2,822,872 $ 4,902,073 $ 4,758,844
IMVEXXY 5,085,190 3,121,711 11,477,791 5,132,390
BIJUVA 1,352,001 134,282 2,463,605 134,282
ANNOVERA 1,835,460 — 4,108,221 —
Net revenue $ 10,701,033 $ 6,078,865 $ 22,951,690 $ 10,025,516

License Agreement with the Population Council

On July 30, 2018, we entered into the Population Council License Agreement to commercialize ANNOVERA in the U.S. We began selling ANNOVERA
in a “test and learn” market introduction in the third quarter of 2019. As a result of the uncertainty surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic, we paused the
commercial launch of ANNOVERA in the first quarter of 2020 and deferred sales and marketing initiatives into subsequent quarters.

Under the terms of the Population Council License Agreement, we paid the Population Council a milestone payment of $20,000,000 within 30 days
following the approval by the FDA of the new drug application, or NDA, for ANNOVERA and $20,000,000 within 30 days following the first commercial
batch release of ANNOVERA. Both milestone payments of $20,000,000 were recorded as license rights in the consolidated balance sheets. We started
amortizing license rights in the third quarter of 2019 once ANNOVERA became commercially available for use. The cost is amortized over the remaining
useful life over which the license rights will contribute directly or indirectly to our cash flows, which is estimated to be the remaining patent life of the
product, which expires in December 2032. The cost is amortized using the straight-line method as the pattern of economic benefit cannot be reliably
determined. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2020, we recorded $754,102 and $1,499,613, respectively, in amortization expense related to
the license fee which was recorded as a component of cost of sales.

The Population Council is also eligible to receive milestone payments and royalties from commercial sales of ANNOVERA. We are responsible for
marketing expenses related to the commercialization of ANNOVERA. In addition, we are required to pay the Population Council, on a quarterly basis,
step-based royalty payments based on annual net sales of ANNOVERA in the U.S. by the Company and its affiliates and permitted licensees as follows: (i)
if annual net sales are less than or equal to $50,000,000, a royalty of 5% of net sales; (ii) for annual net sales greater than $50,000,000 and less than or
equal to $150,000,000, a royalty of 10% of such net sales; and (iii) for net sales greater than $150,000,000, a royalty of 15% of such net sales. The annual
royalty rate will be reduced to 50% of the initial rate during the six-month period beginning on the date of the first arms-length commercial sale of a
generic equivalent of the one-year vaginal contraceptive system that is launched by a third party in the U.S., and thereafter will be reduced to 20% of the
initial rate. We are required to pay the Population Council milestone payments of $40 million upon cumulative net sales of ANNOVERA in the U.S. by us
and our affiliates and permitted sublicensees of each of $200 million, $400 million and $1 billion. The Population Council has agreed to perform and pay
the costs and expenses associated with four post-approval studies required by the FDA for ANNOVERA and we have agreed to perform and pay the costs
and expenses associated with a post approval study required by the FDA to measure risk for venous thromboembolism, provided that if the costs and
expenses associated with such post-approval study exceed $20,000,000, half of such excess will be offset against royalties or other payments owed by us to
the Population Council under the Population Council License Agreement. We and the Population Council have agreed to form a joint product committee
responsible for overseeing activities under the Population Council License Agreement. We will be responsible for all aspects of promotion, product
positioning, pricing, education programs, publications, sales messages and any additional desired clinical studies for the one-year vaginal contraceptive
system, subject to oversight and decisions made by the joint product committee. The Population Council License Agreement includes exclusive rights for
us to negotiate co-development of two other investigational vaginal contraceptive systems in development by the Population Council.

Cost of Sales
Cost of sales includes the cost of inventory, manufacturing, manufacturing overhead and supply chain costs, and product shipping and handling costs. The
Population Council License Agreement requires payment of royalties based on the sale of future products. Such royalties are recorded as a component of

cost of sales. Additionally, the amortization of license fees or milestone payments related to licensed products are classified as components of cost of sales
to the extent such payments become due in the future.
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Inventory Obsolescence Reserve

We evaluate inventory quarterly and records an allowance for obsolescence primarily associated with materials that are not currently or likely to be used in
production in the near future. As of June 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019 , we recorded an inventory obsolescence reserve primarily related to BIJUVA, of
$5,965,139 and $0, respectively, as a result of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business, which decreased demand of our products.

Segment Reporting

We are managed and operated as one business, which is focused on creating and commercializing products targeted exclusively for women. Our business
operations are managed by a single executive leadership team that is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer of our Company, who oversees all operations.
We do not operate separate lines of business with respect to any of our products and we do not prepare discrete financial information with respect to
separate products. All product sales are derived from sales in the United States. Accordingly, we view our business as one reportable operating segment.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development, or R&D, expenses include internal R&D activities, services of external contract research organizations, or CROs, costs of their
clinical research sites, manufacturing, scale-up and validation costs, and other activities. Internal R&D activity expenses include laboratory supplies,
salaries, benefits, and non-cash share-based compensation expenses. CRO activity expenses include preclinical laboratory experiments and clinical trial
studies. Other activity expenses include regulatory consulting and other costs. The activities undertaken by our regulatory consultants that were classified
as R&D expenses include assisting, consulting with, and advising our in-house staff with respect to various FDA submission processes, clinical trial
processes, and scientific writing matters, including preparing protocols and FDA submissions. These consulting expenses were direct costs associated with
preparing, reviewing, and undertaking work for our clinical trials and investigative drugs. We charge internal R&D activities and other activity expenses to
operations as incurred. We make payments to CROs based on agreed-upon terms, which may include payments in advance of a study starting date. We
expense nonrefundable advance payments for goods and services that will be used in future R&D activities when the activity has been performed or when
the goods have been received rather than when the payment is made. We review and accrue CRO expenses and clinical trial study expenses based on
services performed and rely on estimates of those costs applicable to the completion stage of a study as provided by CROs. Estimated accrued CRO costs
are subject to revisions as such studies progress to completion. We charge revisions to expenses in the period in which the facts that give rise to the revision
become known.

NOTE 4 — INVENTORY, NET

Inventory, net consists of the following:

June 30, December 31,
2020 2019
Finished products $ 3,923,210 $ 4,976,910
Work in process 1,551,079 1,182,059
Raw materials 4,698,023 5,701,747

TOTAL INVENTORY, NET § 10,172,312 $ 11,860,716

NOTE 5 — OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other current assets consist of the following:

June 30, December 31,
2020 2019
Prepaid sales and marketing costs $ 1,474,007 $ 1,583,698
Debt financing fees on undrawn tranches (Note 9) 275,378 550,757
Prepaid insurance 1,081,540 1,812,135
Prepaid manufacturing 794,010 2,595,721
Other prepaid costs 3,016,652 4,787,482

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT ASSETS § 6,641,587 $ 11,329,793
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NOTE 6 — FIXED ASSETS, NET

Fixed assets, net consist of the following:

Accounting system
Equipment

Furniture and fixtures
Computer hardware
Leasehold improvements

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS

Accumulated depreciation

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS, NET ¢

June 30, December 31,
2020 2019

$ 301,096 $ 301,096

1,645,446 1,619,646

1,406,858 1,406,858

80,211 80,211

68,788 68,788

3,502,399 3,476,599
(1,356,473) (968,824)

2,145,926 $ 2,507,775

Depreciation expense for the three months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $188,810 and $66,556, respectively, and for the six months ended June 30,

2020 and 2019 was $387,649 and $133,049, respectively.

NOTE 7 — INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

The following table sets forth the gross carrying amount, accumulated amortization and net carrying amount of our intangible assets as of June 30, 2020

and December 31, 2019:

June 30, 2020
Weighted-
Average
Gross Remaining
Carrying Accumulated Net Amortization
Amount Amortization Amount Period (yrs.)
Amortizable intangible assets:
Approved hormone therapy drug candidate patents  $ 3,997,263 $ (609,982) $ 3,387,281 12.5
Hormone therapy drug candidate patents (pending) 2,216,911 — 2,216,911 n/a
Non-amortizable intangible assets:
Multiple trademarks 338,681 — 338,681 indefinite
TOTAL $ 6,552,855 $ (609,982) $ 5,942,873
December 31, 2019
Weighted-
Average
Gross Remaining
Carrying Accumulated Net Amortization
Amount Amortization Amount Period (yrs.)
Amortizable intangible assets:
Approved hormone therapy drug candidate patents  $ 3,463,082 $ (478,983) $ 2,984,099 13
Hormone therapy drug candidate patents (pending) 1,979,299 — 1,979,299 n/a
Non-amortizable intangible assets:
Multiple trademarks 294,813 — 294,813 indefinite
TOTAL $ 5,737,194  $ (478,983) $ 5,258,211
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We capitalize external costs, consisting primarily of legal costs, related to securing our patents and trademarks. Once a patent is granted, we amortize the
approved hormone therapy drug candidate patents using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of approximately 20 years, which is the life
of intellectual property patents. If the patent is not granted, we write-off any capitalized patent costs at that time. Trademarks are perpetual and are not
amortized. During the six months ended June 30, 2019, we wrote off $78,864 in costs related to trademarks and patents, including the net carrying amount
of the OPERA patent.

As of June 30, 2020, we had 35 issued domestic patents and 35 issued foreign patents, including:

14 domestic patents and seven foreign patents that relate to BIJUVA as well as three domestic patents that relate to estradiol and progesterone
product candidates. These patents establish an important intellectual property foundation and are owned by us. The domestic patents will expire in
2032. The foreign patents will expire no earlier than 2032. In addition, we have pending patent applications relating to BIJUVA in the U.S.,
Argentina, Australia, Brazil, Canada, China, Europe, Hong Kong, Israel, Japan, Mexico, New Zealand, Russia, South Africa, and South Korea.
Ten domestic patents (eight utility and two design) and 16 foreign patents (six utility and ten design) that relate to IMVEXXY. These patents
establish an important intellectual property foundation for IMVEXXY and are owned by us. The domestic patents will expire in 2032 or 2033. The
foreign utility patents will expire no earlier than 2033. The foreign design patents provide protection expiring no earlier than 2025. In certain
countries, the foreign design patents provide protection through at least 2037. In addition, we have pending patent applications related to
IMVEXXY in the U.S., Argentina, Australia, Brazil, Canada, Europe, Hong Kong, Israel, Japan, Mexico, New Zealand, Russia, South Africa, and
South Korea.

One domestic utility patent that relates to our topical-cream candidates, which is owned by us. The domestic patent will expire in 2035.

One domestic utility patent and eight foreign patents that relate to our transdermal-patch candidates, which are owned by us. The domestic utility
patent will expire in 2032. The foreign patents will expire no earlier than 2033. We have pending patent applications with respect to our
transdermal-patch candidates in the U.S., Brazil, Canada, Mexico, and South Africa.

Three domestic utility patents that relate to TX-009HR, a progesterone and estradiol product candidate, which are owned by us and will expire in
2037.

Two domestic and four foreign patents that relate to formulations containing progesterone, which are owned by us. The domestic patents will
expire between 2032 and 2036. The foreign patents will expire no earlier than 2033.

One domestic utility patent that relates to our OPERA information-technology platform, which is owned by us and will expire in 2031.

Amortization expense was $67,748 and $48,503 for the three months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and $130,902 and $88,948 for the six
months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Estimated amortization expense, based on current patent cost being amortized, for the next five years is as follows:

Year Ending Estimated
December 31, Amortization
2020 (6 months) $ 135,495
2021 $ 270,990
2022 $ 270,990
2023 $ 270,990
2024 $ 270,990
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NOTE 8 — OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other current liabilities consist of the following:

June 30, December 31,
2020 2019
Accrued payroll, bonuses and commission costs $ 3,224,923 $ 8,040,278
Allowance for coupons and returns 8,608,125 10,316,298
Accrued sales and marketing costs 1,506,414 3,285,662
Accrued compensated absences 2,277,967 1,463,878
Allowance for wholesale distributor fees 3,898,318 2,347,122
Accrued legal and accounting expense 646,855 422,336
Accrued research and development 803,676 1,049,603
Operating lease liability 2,107,413 1,501,539
Accrued rebates 4,846,957 3,916,672
Other accrued expenses 1,292,763 1,480,225

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 29,213,411 $ 33,823,613

NOTE 9 — DEBT

On April 24, 2019, we entered into a Financing Agreement, as amended, or the Financing Agreement, with TPG Specialty Lending, Inc., as administrative
agent, or the Administrative Agent, various lenders from time to time party thereto, and certain of our subsidiaries party thereto from time to time as
guarantors, which provides us with up to a $300,000,000 first lien secured term loan credit facility, or the Facility. The Facility provides for availability to
us in three tranches: (i) $200,000,000 was drawn upon entering into the Financing Agreement; (ii) $50,000,000 was drawn on February 18, 2020 following
our achievement of more than $11,000,000 in net revenues from IMVEXXY, BIJUVA and ANNOVERA for the fourth quarter of 2019 and (iii)
$50,000,000 was previously available to us in the Administrative Agent’s sole and absolute discretion either contemporaneously with the delivery of our
financial statements for the quarter ended June 30, 2020 or at such earlier date as the Administrative Agent may have consented to. We and the
Administrative Agent are not moving forward with the undrawn $50,000,000 tranche under the Financing Agreement, which was designed to be drawn
following the successful full commercial launch of ANNOVERA in the second quarter of 2020, due to the pause in the launch timing caused by the
COVID-19 pandemic. However, the Administrative Agent has agreed to continue to discuss with us the terms upon which additional financing could be
made available to us by the Administrative Agent in the future at our request and in its discretion. Borrowings under the Facility accrue interest at either (i)
3-month LIBOR plus 7.75%, subject to a LIBOR floor of 2.70% or (ii) the prime rate plus 6.75%, subject to a prime rate floor of 5.2% as selected by us.
Interest on amounts borrowed under the Facility is payable quarterly. The outstanding principal amount of the Facility is payable in four equal quarterly
installments beginning on June 30, 2023, with the Facility maturing on March 31, 2024. We have the right to prepay borrowings under the Facility in whole
or in part at any time, subject to a prepayment fee on the principal amount being prepaid of (i) 30.0% for the first two years following the initial funding
date of the applicable borrowing, (ii) 5.0% for the third year following the initial funding date of the applicable borrowing, (iii) 3.0% for the fourth year
following the initial funding date of the applicable borrowing and (iv) 1.0% for the fifth year following the initial funding date of the applicable borrowing
but prior to March 31, 2024. In connection with the initial borrowing under the Facility, we paid, for the benefit of the lenders, a facility fee equal to 2.5%
of the initial amount borrowed and will be required to pay such a facility fee in connection with any subsequent borrowings under the Facility. We are also
required to pay the Administrative Agent and the lenders an annual administrative fee in addition to other fees and expenses. The Financing Agreement
contains customary mandatory prepayments, restrictions and covenants applicable to us that are customary for financings of this type. Among other
requirements, we are required to (i) maintain a minimum unrestricted cash balance of $60,000,000, and (ii) achieve certain minimum consolidated net
revenue amounts attributable to commercial sales of our IMVEXXY, BIJUVA and ANNOVERA products beginning with the fiscal quarter ending
December 31, 2020. The Financing Agreement also includes other representations, warranties, indemnities and events of default that are customary for
financings of this type, including an event of default relating to a change of control of the Company. Upon or after an event of default, the Administrative
Agent and the lenders may declare all or a portion of our obligations under the Financing Agreement to be immediately due and payable and exercise other
rights and remedies provided for under the Financing Agreement. The obligations of our company and its subsidiaries under the Financing Agreement are
secured, subject to customary permitted liens and other agreed upon exceptions, by a first priority perfected security interest in all existing and after
acquired assets of our company and its subsidiaries. The obligations under the Financing Agreement will be guaranteed by each of our future direct and
indirect subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions.

On May 1, 2018, we entered into a Credit and Security Agreement, or the Credit Agreement, with MidCap Financial Trust, or MidCap, as agent, or Agent,
and as lender, and the additional lenders party thereto from time to time (together with MidCap as a lender, the Lenders), as amended. The Credit
Agreement provided a secured term loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to $200,000,000, or the Term Loan. Under the terms of the Credit
Agreement, the Term Loan was available to be made in three separate tranches, with each tranche to be made available to us, at our option, upon our
achievement of certain milestones. Amounts borrowed under the Term Loan bore interest at a rate equal to the sum of (i) one-month LIBOR (subject to a
LIBOR floor of 1.50%) plus (ii) 7.75% per annum.
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On April 24, 2019, we terminated the Credit Agreement. A portion of the initial tranche of borrowing under the Financing Agreement in the amount of
approximately $81,661,000 was used to repay all amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement, which included a prepayment fee of 4%, a repayment
fee of 4% and other fees and expenses payable to the lenders under the Credit Agreement. As a result of the termination of the Credit Agreement, we
recorded $10,057,632 in loss on extinguishment of debt in the second quarter of 2019. Interest expense for the six months ending June 30, 2019 related to
the Credit Agreement was $1,816,747. During the six months ended June 30, 2019, and prior to the repayment of the Credit Agreement, we amortized
$120,146 of deferred financing fees as interest expense in the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements.

As of June 30, 2020, we had $250,000,000 in borrowings outstanding under the Financing Agreement, which are classified as long-term debt in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. We incurred $7,902,270 in deferred financing fees related to the Financing Agreement. Deferred
financing fees related to the entire Financing Agreement have been allocated pro rata between the funded and unfunded tranches. Allocated deferred
financing fees related to the two tranches of borrowings that we received of $7,626,891 have been reflected as a debt discount and are accreted to interest
expense using the effective interest method. Deferred financing fees associated with an unfunded tranche are deferred as assets until such tranche has been
drawn. As of June 30, 2020, deferred financing fees related to the unfunded tranche of $50,000,000 were included in other current assets in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2020, we amortized $373,034 and $692,442, respectively,
of deferred financing fees related to the two tranches that have been received as interest expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
During the three and six months ended June 30, 2019, we amortized $196,734, of deferred financing fees related to the Financing Agreement as interest
expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Interest on amounts borrowed under the Financing Agreement is due and payable quarterly
in arrears. Interest expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 was $6,653,819 and $12,596,458, respectively. The overall effective interest
rate under the Financing Agreement was approximately 11% as of June 30, 2020.

As of June 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the carrying value of our debt consisted of the following:

June 30, 2020 December 31, 2019
Financing Agreement $ 250,000,000 $ 200,000,000
Debt discount and financing fees (6,198,295) (5,365,357)

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT $ 243,801,705 $ 194,634,643

On April 27, 2020, we received a loan pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the
“CARES Act”), as administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration. The loan in the principal amount of $6,477,094 (the “PPP Loan”) was
disbursed by Bank of America, NA, a national banking association, pursuant to a promissory note issued by the Company. Although we believed, in good
faith, we were qualified for the PPP Loan under the available regulations, as a result of newly-issued guidance, particularly with respect to publicly traded
companies receiving funding under the CARES Act, we voluntarily returned the PPP Loan proceeds on May 14, 2020.

NOTE 10 - NET LOSS PER SHARE

We calculate earnings per share, or EPS, in accordance with ASC 260, Earnings Per Share, which requires the computation and disclosure of two EPS
amounts: basic and diluted. We compute basic EPS based on the weighted-average number of shares of Common Stock outstanding during the period. We
compute diluted EPS based on the weighted-average number of shares of our Common Stock outstanding plus all potentially dilutive shares of our
Common Stock outstanding during the period. Such potentially dilutive shares of our Common Stock consist of options, warrants and restricted stock units
and were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because their effect would have been anti-dilutive due to the net loss reported by us.
The table below presents potentially dilutive securities that could affect our calculation of diluted net loss per share allocable to common stockholders for
the periods presented.

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Stock options 24,590,141 22,072,469
Warrants 1,782,571 1,832,571
Performance stock units 2,422,885 —
Restricted stock units 6,029,957 1,040,000
34,825,554 24,945,040
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NOTE 11 — STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferred Stock

At June 30, 2020, we had 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, authorized for issuance, of which no shares were issued or
outstanding.

Common Stock

At June 30, 2020, we had 600,000,000 shares of Common Stock authorized for issuance, of which 272,294,380 shares of Common Stock were issued and
outstanding.

Issuances During the Three and Six Months ended June 30, 2020

During the three months ended June 30, 2020, stock options to purchase an aggregate of 313,638 shares of Common Stock were exercised for $94,075 in
cash. During the six months ended June 30, 2020, stock options to purchase an aggregate of 664,304 shares of Common Stock were exercised for $166,184
in cash.

Issuances During the Three and Six Months ended June 30, 2019

During the three months ended June 30, 2019, no options to purchase shares of Common Stock were exercised. During the six months ended June 30,
2019, stock options to purchase an aggregate of 276,383 shares of Common Stock were exercised for $100,107 in cash. Also, during the same period, stock
options to purchase an aggregate of 12,097 shares of Common Stock were exercised pursuant to the options’ cashless exercise provisions, wherein an
aggregate of 11,834 shares of Common Stock were issued.

Warrants to Purchase Common Stock

As of June 30, 2020, we had warrants outstanding to purchase an aggregate of 1,782,571 shares of Common Stock with a weighted-average contractual
remaining life of approximately 1.5 years, and exercise prices ranging from $0.24 to $8.20 per share, resulting in a weighted average exercise price of
$2.51 per share.

The valuation methodology used to determine the fair value of our warrants is the Black-Scholes Model. The Black-Scholes Model requires the use of a
number of assumptions, including volatility of the stock price, the risk-free interest rate, dividend yield and the term of the warrant.

During the six months ended June 30, 2020, no warrants were granted. During the six months ended June 30, 2019, we granted warrants to purchase an
aggregate of 75,000 shares of Common Stock to outside consultants at an exercise price of $5.63. The fair value for these warrants was determined by
using the Black-Scholes Model on the date of the grant using a term of five years; volatility of 60.8%; risk free rate of 2.52%; and dividend yield of 0%.
The grant date fair value of the warrants was $3.00 per share. The warrants vested ratably over a 12-month period and have an expiration date of February
12, 2024.

During the six months ended June 30, 2020, no warrants were exercised. During the six months ended June 30, 2019, warrants to purchase an aggregate of
1,250,000 shares of Common Stock were exercised pursuant to the warrants’ cashless exercise provisions, wherein an aggregate of 471,184 shares of
Common Stock were issued.

We recorded share-based compensation expense related to warrants previously issued of $0 and $56,172 for the three months ended June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively, and $27,446 and $141,888 for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. At June 30, 2020, there was no unrecognized compensation expense remaining related to unvested warrants.

Options to Purchase Common Stock

In 2009, we adopted the 2009 Long Term Incentive Compensation Plan, or the 2009 Plan, to provide financial incentives to employees, directors, advisers,
and consultants of our company who are able to contribute towards the creation of or who have created stockholder value by providing them stock options
and other stock and cash incentives, or the Awards. As of June 30, 2020, there were non-qualified stock options to purchase an aggregate of 14,024,041
shares of Common Stock outstanding under the 2009 Plan. Effective upon our adoption of the TherapeuticsMD, Inc. 2019 Stock Incentive Plan, or the
2019 Plan, on June 20, 2019, no future awards may be made under the 2009 Plan.
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In 2012, we adopted the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan, or the 2012 Plan, a non-qualified plan that was amended in August 2013. The 2012 Plan was designed
to serve as an incentive for retaining qualified and competent key employees, officers, directors, and certain consultants and advisors of our company. As of
June 30, 2020, there were non-qualified stock options to purchase an aggregate of 6,308,599 shares of Common Stock outstanding and an aggregate of
890,000 restricted stock units under the 2012 Plan. Effective upon our adoption of the 2019 Plan, no future awards may be made under the 2012 Plan.

On June 20, 2019, we adopted the 2019 Plan to serve as an incentive for retaining qualified and competent key employees, officers, directors, and certain
consultants and advisors of our company. The Awards available under the 2019 Plan consist of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock,
restricted stock units, performance stock, performance units, and other stock or cash awards as described in the 2019 Plan. Generally, the options vest
annually over four years or as determined by our board of directors, upon each option grant. Options may be exercised by paying the price for shares or on
a cashless exercise basis after they have vested and prior to the specified expiration date provided and applicable exercise conditions are met, if any. The
expiration date is generally ten years from the date the option is issued.

As of June 30, 2020, there were 3,286,444 shares of Common Stock available for issuance under the 2019 Plan, consisting of (i) 453,772 new shares, (ii)
2,403,208 unallocated shares previously available for issuance under the 2012 Plan that were not then subject to outstanding “Awards” (as defined in the
2012 Plan), and (iii) 429,464 unallocated shares previously available for issuance under the 2009 Plan that were not then subject to outstanding “Awards”
(as defined in the 2009 Plan). Any shares subject to outstanding options or other equity “Awards” under the 2019 Plan, the 2012 Plan and the 2009 Plan
that are forfeited, expire or otherwise terminate without issuance of the underlying shares, or if any such Award is settled for cash or otherwise does not
result in the issuance of all or a portion of the shares subject to such Award (other than shares tendered or withheld in connection with the exercise of an
Award or the satisfaction of withholding tax liabilities), the shares to which those Awards were subject, shall, to the extent of such forfeiture, expiration,
termination, cash settlement or non-issuance, again be available for delivery with respect to Awards under the 2019 Plan. As of June 30, 2020, there were
non-qualified stock options to purchase an aggregate of 4,257,501 shares of Common Stock outstanding under the 2019 Plan and an aggregate of 5,139,957
restricted stock units and 2,422,885 performance stock units outstanding under the 2019 Plan.

The valuation methodology used to determine the fair value of stock options is the Black-Scholes Model. The Black-Scholes Model requires the use of a
number of assumptions including volatility of the stock price, the risk-free interest rate, and the expected life of the stock options. The ranges of
assumptions used in the Black-Scholes Model during the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 are set forth in the table below.

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 095 $ 2.57
Risk-free interest rate 0.34-1.68% 2.19-2.54%
Volatility 63.53-67.92% 61.25-61.85%
Term (in years) 6-6.8 5.5-6.25
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00%

A summary of option activity under the 2009, 2012 and 2019 Plans and related information during the six months ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Weighted
Average
Number of Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Shares Under Average Contractual Intrinsic
Options Exercise Price Life in Years Value

Balance at December 31, 2019 25,030,234 $ 4.65 584 $ 3,668,171
Granted 736,500 $ 1.58
Exercised (664,304) $ 0.25 $ 1,027,627
Expired (197,914) $ 2.53
Cancelled/Forfeited (314,375) $ 3.82
Balance at June 30, 2020 24,590,141 $ 4.70 559 $ 721,720
Vested and Exercisable at June 30, 2020 19,725,267 $ 5.02 480 $ 673,250
Unvested at June 30, 2020 4,864,874 $ 3.42 883 §$ 48,470

At June 30, 2020, our outstanding options had exercise prices ranging from $0.20 to $8.92 per share. Share-based compensation expense related to options
recognized in our results of operations for the three months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $1,160,510 and $2,230,829, respectively, and for the six
months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $2,997,141 and $4,374,069, respectively, and it is based on awards vested. At June 30, 2020, total unrecognized
estimated compensation expense related to unvested options was approximately $7,703,000, which may be adjusted for future changes in forfeitures. This
cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.2 years. No tax benefit was realized due to a continued pattern of operating losses.
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Restricted Stock

Restricted stock units granted under our 2009, 2012 and 2019 Plans entitle the holder to receive, at the end of vesting period, a specified number of shares
of our Common Stock. Share-based compensation expense is measured by the market value of our Common Stock on the day of the grant. The shares vest
ratably over the period specified in the grant. There is no partial vesting and any unvested portion is forfeited.

Performance stock units will vest if certain performance targets are achieved. If minimum performance thresholds are achieved, each award will convert
into Common Stock at a defined ratio depending on the degree of achievement of the performance target designated by each individual award. If minimum
performance thresholds are not achieved, then no shares will be issued. We recognize performance-based restricted stock as compensation expense based
on the most likely probability of attaining the prescribed performance and over the requisite service period beginning at its grant date and through the date
the restricted stock vests. The expected levels of achievement are reassessed over the requisite service periods and, to the extent that the expected levels of
achievement change, stock-based compensation is adjusted and recorded on the consolidated statements of income and the remaining unrecognized stock-
based compensation is recognized over the remaining requisite service period.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 we recorded $1,842,316 and $2,345,693, respectively, and during the three and six months ended
June 30, 2019 we recorded $350,263 and $696,676, respectively, in share-based compensation expense related to restricted stock units and performance
stock units. As of June 30, 2020, we recognized performance-based compensation expense using our assessment of the most likely probability of attaining
EBITDA break-even which would result in vesting two times the base number of performance stock units. At June 30, 2020, total unrecognized estimated
compensation expense related to unvested restricted stock units and performance stock units was approximately $13,161,000, which may be adjusted if
certain performance targets are achieved or for future changes in forfeitures. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.9
years.

Restricted Stock Units Performance Stock Units
Weighted Weighted
Average Grant Average
Number of Date Fair Number of Grant Date
Shares Value Shares Fair Value
Balance at December 31, 2019 1,240,000 $ 3.56 — 3 —
Granted 5,102,817 $ 1.40 2,585,745 $ 1.08
Vested/Released (301,500) $ 1.78 (151,500) $ 1.14
Forfeited (11,360) $ 1.07 (11,360) $ 1.07
Balance at June 30, 2020 6,029,957 $ 1.83 2,422,885% $ 1.08

* The number of performance stock units (PSUs) represents the base number of PSUs that may vest. The actual number of PSUs that will vest will be
between zero and two times the base number of PSUs depending on the Company’s achievement of break-even quarterly EBITDA.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

On June 18, 2020, our stockholders approved the TherapeuticsMD, Inc. 2020 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”), which reserved 5,400,000
shares of Common Stock for purchase. The ESPP permits eligible employee participants to purchase Common Stock at a price per share which is equal to
85% of the lesser of (a) the fair market value of the shares on the offering date of the offering period or (b) the fair market value of the shares on the
purchase date.

NOTE 12 — INCOME TAXES

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based upon differences between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities and
are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. We do not expect to pay any
significant federal or state income tax for 2020 as a result of (i) the losses recorded during the six months ended June 30, 2020, (ii) additional losses
expected for the remainder of 2020, and/or (iii) net operating loss carry forwards from prior years. Accounting standards require the consideration of a
valuation allowance for deferred tax assets if it is “more likely than not” that some component or all of the benefits of deferred tax assets will not be
realized. As of June 30, 2020, we maintain a full valuation allowance for all deferred tax assets. Based on these requirements, no provision or benefit for
income taxes has been recorded. There were no recorded unrecognized tax benefits at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTE 13 — RELATED PARTIES

In July 2015, J. Martin Carroll, a director of our company, was appointed to the board of directors of Catalent, Inc. From time to time, we have entered into
agreements with Catalent, Inc. and its affiliates, or Catalent, in the normal course of business. Agreements with Catalent have been reviewed by
independent directors of our Company, or a committee consisting of independent directors of our company, since July 2015. During the three months ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, we were billed by Catalent approximately $741,000 and $974,000, respectively, for manufacturing activities related to our clinical
trials, scale-up, registration batches, stability and validation testing. During the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, we were billed by Catalent
approximately $2,044,000 and $2,371,000, respectively, for manufacturing activities related to our clinical trials, scale-up, registration batches, stability and
validation testing. As of June 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019, there were amounts due to Catalent of approximately $592,000 and $35,000, respectively.
In addition, we have minimum purchase requirements in place with Catalent as disclosed in Note 15, Commitments and Contingencies.

In April 2020, Karen L. Ling, Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer of American International Group, Inc., or AIG, was appointed
to our board of directors. From time to time, we have entered into agreements with AIG in the normal course of business. Agreements with AIG have been
reviewed by independent directors of our Company, or a committee consisting of independent directors of our Company, since April 2020. During the three
and six months ended June 30, 2020, we were billed by AIG approximately $72,000 and $143,000, respectively, for various insurance coverage for our
Company.

NOTE 14 — BUSINESS CONCENTRATIONS

We purchase our prescription products from several suppliers with approximately 18%, 36% and 39% of our purchases supplied by three vendors each,
respectively, during the six months ended June 30, 2020, and 14%, 18%, 31% and 37% of our purchases supplied by four vendors each, respectively,
during the six months ended June 30, 2019.

We sell our prescription products to wholesale distributors, specialty pharmacies, specialty distributors, and chain drug stores that generally sell products to
retail pharmacies, hospitals, and other institutional customers. During the six months ended June 30, 2020, four customers each accounted for more than
10% of our total prescription revenues. Prescription revenue from the four customers combined accounted for approximately 70% of our prescription
revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2020. During the six months ended June 30, 2019, three customers each generated more than 10% of our
prescription revenues. Revenue generated from the three customers combined accounted for approximately 60% of our prescription revenue for the six
months ended June 30, 2019.

During the six months ended June 30, 2020, Pillpack, Inc. accounted for approximately $5,707,000 of our prescription revenue, Cardinal Health accounted
for approximately $3,772,000 of our prescription revenue, McKesson Corporation accounted for approximately $3,356,000 of our prescription revenue,
and Pharmacy Innovation PA accounted for approximately $3,178,000 of our prescription revenue. During the six months ended June 30, 2019, Pillpack,
Inc. accounted for approximately $3,615,000 of our prescription revenue, AmerisourceBergen accounted for approximately $1,365,000 of our prescription
revenue and Cardinal Health accounted for approximately $1,048,000 of our prescription revenue.

NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases

We adopted ASC 842 effective January 1, 2019. Substantially all our operating lease right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities represent leases for
office space used to conduct our business. Upon adoption, we recognized a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases that have commenced as of
January 1, 2019. The right-of-use assets represent the right to use the leased asset for the lease term. The lease liabilities represent the present value of the
lease payments under the lease. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which primarily comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, plus
any initial direct costs incurred, less any lease incentives received. All right-of-use assets are reviewed for impairment. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments, discounted using our secured incremental borrowing rate for the same term as the underlying lease
because the rates are not implicit in the leases. Some of our leases contain variable lease payments, including payments based on an index or rate. Variable
lease payments based on an index or rate are initially measured using the index or rate in effect at lease commencement. Additional payments based on the
change in an index or rate, or payments based on a change in our portion of the operating expenses are recorded as a period expense when incurred. Lease
modifications result in remeasurement of the lease liability. Included in lease expense are any variable lease payments incurred in the period that were not
included in the initial lease liability.

We lease administrative office space in Boca Raton, Florida pursuant to a non-cancelable operating lease that commenced on July 1, 2013 and originally
provided for a 63-month term. On February 18, 2015, we entered into an agreement with the same lessors to lease additional administrative office space in
the same location, pursuant to an addendum to such lease. In addition, on April 26, 2016, we entered into an agreement with the same lessors to lease
additional administrative office space in the same location. This agreement was effective beginning May 1, 2016 and extended the original expiration of the
lease term to October 31, 2021. On October 4, 2016, we entered into an agreement with the same lessors to lease additional administrative office space in
the same location, pursuant to an addendum to such lease. This addendum became effective beginning November 1, 2016.

In October 2018, we entered into a lease for new corporate offices in Boca Raton, Florida. The lease includes 56,212 rentable square feet, or the full
premises, of which the lease on 7,561 square feet commenced in 2018 and the lease on the remaining 48,651 square feet commenced in August 2019, or the
full premises commencement date. The lease will expire 11 years after the full premises commencement date, unless terminated earlier in accordance with
the terms of the lease. We have the option to extend the term of the lease for two additional consecutive periods of five years. The extension option is not
included in the determination of the lease term as it is not reasonably certain to be exercised. The term of the lease includes escalating rent and free rent
periods. We are also responsible for certain other operating costs under the lease, including electricity and utility expenses. In June 2019, we entered into an
agreement with the same lessors to lease additional 6,536 square feet of administrative office space in the same location, pursuant to an addendum to such
lease, which commenced in May 2020.
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June 30, December 31,

Supplemental lease information: 2020 2019
Right-of-use asset $ 10,337,577 $ 10,109,154
Short-term operating lease liability (included in Other current liabilities) $ 2,107,413  $ 1,501,539
Long-term operating lease liability $ 9,307,361 $ 9,145,049
Weighted average remaining term 9 years 9 years
Weighted average discount rate 8.3% 8.25%
Supplemental cash flow information June 30, June 30,
for the six months ended 2020 2019
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities for
operating lease $ 670,793 $ 564,092
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligation $ 998,821 % 3,760,171

The following table reconciles the undiscounted cash flows for all operating leases at June 30, 2020 to the operating lease liabilities recorded on the balance
sheet:

Years Ended December 31,

2020 (6 months) $ 946,852
2021 2,334,582
2022 1,413,289
2023 1,443,143
2024 1,476,534
Thereafter 8,947,869
Total undiscounted lease payments 16,562,269
Less: imputed interest (5,147,495)
Present value of lease payments $ 11,414,774

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2020, operating lease expense related to our real estate leases was approximately $595,000 and $1,158,000,
respectively, and variable lease expense was insignificant for the same periods. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2019, operating lease
expense related to our real estate leases was approximately $295,000 and $590,000, respectively, and variable lease expense was insignificant for the same
periods.

Intellectual Property Licenses

The Population Council License Agreement provides for future milestone payments to be paid by us for access to certain technologies. In addition, we pay
royalties as a percent of revenue as described in Note 7, Intangible Assets, to these consolidated financial statements.

Purchase Commitments

We have manufacturing and supply agreements whereby we are required to purchase from Catalent a minimum number of softgels during the first contract
year and a higher number of softgels after the first contract year. If the minimum order quantities of specific products are not met, we are required to pay
Catalent 50% of the difference between the total amount we would have paid to Catalent if the minimum requirement had been fulfilled and the sum of all
purchases of our products from Catalent during the contract year. In addition, we have a manufacturing and supply agreement whereby we are required to
purchase a minimum number of units of ANNOVERA during a contract year. As of June 30, 2020, we have met our contract year purchase commitments
with Catalent.
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Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are involved in litigation and proceedings in the ordinary course of business. We are not currently involved in any legal proceeding
that we believe would have a material effect on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, we had no off-balance sheet arrangements that have had or are reasonably likely to have current or future effects on our
financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that are

material to investors.

Employment Agreements

We have entered into employment agreements with certain of our executives that provide for compensation and certain other benefits. Under certain
circumstances, including a change in control, some of these agreements provide for severance or other payments, if those circumstances occur during the
term of the employment agreement.

NOTE 16 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On August 5, 2020, we entered into Amendment No. 5 to the Financing Agreement (the “Amendment”) with the Administrative Agent, various lenders
from time to time party thereto, and certain of our subsidiaries party thereto from time to time as guarantors. The Amendment adjusts the covenant in the
Financing Agreement regarding our achievement of minimum consolidated net revenue attributable to commercial sales of our IMVEXXY, BIJUVA and
ANNOVERA products to reflect the impact of COVID-19 on our business. The covenant is effective beginning with the fiscal quarter ending December
31, 2020. In connection with the Amendment and in lieu of a cash amendment fee, we issued to the Administrative Agent and the lenders under the
Financing Agreement warrants to purchase an aggregate of approximately 4,750,000 shares of Common Stock with an exercise price of $1.58 per share and
a ten year term (the “Lender Warrants”). The Lender Warrants were issued pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and no registration rights were issued. The Lender Warrants do not have anti-dilution protection, other than for customary stock splits and similar
transactions.
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
General

The following discussion and analysis provides information that we believe to be relevant to an assessment and understanding of our results of
operations and financial condition for the periods described. This discussion should be read together with our unaudited consolidated financial statements
and the notes to the financial statements, which are included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. This information should also be read in conjunction
with the information contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019 filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or the SEC, on February 24, 2020, or our Annual Report, including the audited financial statements and notes included therein. The reported
results will not necessarily reflect future results of operations or financial condition.

In addition, this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements that involve substantial risks and uncertainties. Forward-
looking statements may include, but are not limited to, statements relating to our objectives, plans and strategies as well as statements, other than historical
facts, that address activities, events or developments that we intend, expect, project, believe or anticipate will or may occur in the future. These statements
are often characterized by terminology such as “believes,” “hopes,” “may,” “anticipates,” “should,” “intends,” “plans,” “will,” “expects,” “estimates,”
“projects,” “positioned,” “strategy” and similar expressions and are based on assumptions and assessments made in light of management’s experience and
perception of historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments and other factors believed to be appropriate. Forward-looking statements
are made as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and we undertake no duty to update or revise any such statements, whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law or by the rules and regulations of the SEC. Forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside of our control. Important factors that could cause
actual results, developments and business decisions to differ materially from forward-looking statements are described in the sections titled “Risk Factors”
in our Annual Report, and include the following: the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic; our ability to maintain or increase sales of our approved products;
our ability to successfully commercialize IMVEXXY®, BIJUVA®, and ANNOVERA® and obtain additional financing necessary therefor; our
commercialization, marketing and manufacturing capabilities and strategy for our approved products; the size of markets and the potential market
opportunity for which our products are approved and our ability to penetrate such markets; the rate and degree of market acceptance of our products; the
willingness of healthcare providers to prescribe and patients to use our products; our ability to obtain additional financing when needed; our competitive
position and the success of competing products that are or become available for the indications that we are pursuing; our intellectual property position;
whether we will be able to comply with the covenants and conditions under our term loan facility, the length, cost and uncertain results of our clinical trials,
the potential of adverse side effects or other safety risks that could adversely affect the commercialization of our current or future approved products or
preclude the approval of our future drug candidates; whether the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) will approve the efficacy supplement for the
lower dose of BIJUVA; our ability to protect our intellectual property, including with respect to the Paragraph IV notice letters we received regarding
IMVEXXY and BIJUVA; the length, cost and uncertain results of future clinical trials; our reliance on third parties to conduct our manufacturing, research
and development and clinical trials; the ability of our licensees to commercialize and distribute our products; the ability of our marketing contractors to
market ANNOVERA; the availability of reimbursement from government authorities and health insurance companies for our products; the impact of
product liability lawsuits; the influence of extensive and costly government regulation; the volatility of the trading price of our common stock; and the
concentration of power in our stock ownership.

» o« » o«

» <«

Throughout this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the terms “we,” “us,” “our,” “TherapeuticsMD,” or “our company” refer to TherapeuticsMD,
Inc., a Nevada corporation, and unless specified otherwise, include our wholly owned subsidiaries, vitaMedMD, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, or VitaMed; BocaGreenMD, Inc., a Nevada corporation, or BocaGreen; and VitaCare Prescription Services, Inc., a Florida corporation, or
VitaCare.

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q includes our trademarks, trade names and service marks, such as vitaMedMD®, BocaGreenMD®,
IMVEXXY®, BIJUVA® and ANNOVERA® which are protected under applicable intellectual property laws and are the property of, or licensed to, our
company. Solely for convenience, trademarks, trade names and service marks referred to in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may appear without the ®,
™ or SM symbols, but such references are not intended to indicate, in any way, that we will not assert, to the fullest extent under applicable law, our rights
or the right of the applicable licensor to these trademarks, trade names and service marks. We do not intend our use or display of other parties’ trademarks,
trade names or service marks to imply, and such use or display should not be construed to imply, a relationship with, or endorsement or sponsorship of us
by, these other parties.
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Overview

TherapeuticsMD is a women’s healthcare company with a mission of creating and commercializing innovative products to support the lifespan of
women from pregnancy prevention through menopause. At TherapeuticsMD, we combine entrepreneurial spirit, clinical expertise, and business leadership
to develop and commercialize health solutions that enable new standards of care for women. Our solutions range from a patient-controlled, long-lasting
contraceptive to advanced hormone therapy pharmaceutical products. We also have a portfolio of branded and generic prescription prenatal vitamins under
the vitaMedMD and BocaGreenMD brands that furthers our women’s healthcare focus.

Our portfolio of products focused on women’s health allows us to efficiently leverage our sales and marketing plans to grow our recently approved
products. During 2018, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, approval of our pharmaceutical products has transitioned our company from
predominately focused on conducting research and development to one focused on commercializing our pharmaceutical products.

In July 2018, we launched our FDA-approved product, IMVEXXY (estradiol vaginal inserts) for the treatment of moderate-to-severe
dyspareunia (vaginal pain associated with sexual activity), a symptom of vulvar and vaginal atrophy, or VVA, due to menopause, which was
approved by the FDA in May 2018.

In April 2019, we launched our FDA-approved product, BIJUVA (estradiol and progesterone) capsules, our hormone therapy combination of
bio-identical 17R-estradiol and bio-identical progesterone in a single, oral softgel capsule, for the treatment of moderate-to-severe vasomotor
symptoms, or VMS, due to menopause in women with a uterus, which was approved by the FDA in October 2018.

In October 2019, we began a “test and learn” market introduction for our FDA-approved product ANNOVERA (segesterone acetate and
ethinyl estradiol vaginal system), the first and only patient-controlled, procedure-free, reversible prescription contraceptive option for women,
which was approved by the FDA in August 2018 and which we have licensed for commercialization in the U.S. pursuant to an exclusive
license agreement, or the Population Council License Agreement, with the Population Council, Inc., or the Population Council. We paused the
planned full commercial launch of ANNOVERA in March 2020 due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and resumed this initiative on
July 1, 2020.

We have also entered into license agreements with strategic partners to commercialize IMVEXXY and BIJUVA outside of the U.S.

In July 2018, we entered into a license and supply agreement with Knight Therapeutics Inc., or Knight, pursuant to which we granted Knight
an exclusive license to commercialize IMVEXXY and BIJUVA in Canada and Israel.

In June 2019, we entered into an exclusive license and supply agreement, or the Theramex License Agreement, with Theramex HQ UK
Limited, or Theramex, a leading, global specialty pharmaceutical company dedicated to women’s health, to commercialize BIJUVA and
IMVEXXY outside of the U.S., excluding Canada and Israel.

Our common stock, par value $0.001 per share, or the Common Stock, is traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market of The Nasdaq Stock Market
LLC, or the Nasdaq, under the symbol “TXMD.” We maintain websites at www.therapeuticsmd.com as well as various product websites. The information
contained on our websites or that can be accessed through our websites does not constitute part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
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Impact of COVID-19 on our Business

Our business has been, and we anticipate that it will continue to be, impacted by the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. During the second
quarter of 2020, all of our products were affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, primarily due to our sales force having limited access to healthcare
professionals and our patients deferring visits to healthcare professionals. In particular, we paused the full commercial launch of ANNOVERA in March
2020 as we deferred sales and marketing initiatives. As live interactions resumed toward the latter portion of the second quarter of 2020 when healthcare
professional offices opened, we resumed the full launch of ANNOVERA on July 1, 2020.

At this time, the extent of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business is highly uncertain and difficult to predict. We developed a
comprehensive COVID-19 contingency plan designed to preserve the value of our investments in our sales and marketing infrastructure, protect our
balance sheet during this period of market disruption, and meet the needs of our patients and prescribers. This contingency plan was designed to be
implemented in stages as we continue to evaluate the length of time that COVID-19 may impact our business, which is intended to allow us to conserve our
financial resources during the COVID-19 pandemic and re-scale our sales and marketing activity when conditions warrant.

Our COVID-19 contingency plan is designed to support our strategy of driving revenues by prioritizing ANNOVERA as the lead product,
IMVEXXY in the second position and BIJUVA in the third position. As part of this plan, we reduced our marketing focus on BIJUVA so that we can
prioritize driving our revenue growth for ANNOVERA and IMVEXXY. Our COVID-19 contingency plan includes containing costs and cutting spending,
preparing for a potential longer-term impact throughout the year, leveraging vitaCare to continue to meet the needs of our patients and prescribers, and
ensuring continued availability of our products to patients.

Cost Containment and Spending Cuts

The COVID-19 pandemic accelerated our focus on reducing our operating expenses. During the second quarter of 2020, we deferred consumer
and healthcare practitioner, or HCP, marketing spend for ANNOVERA and IMVEXXY and initiated other measures to reduce our operating expenses. As
live interactions resumed toward the latter portion of the second quarter of 2020 when healthcare professional offices opened, we resumed the full
commercial launch of ANNOVERA on July 1, 2020 and currently intend to launch the initial consumer marketing campaign for IMVEXXY in August
2020.

We plan to further reduce quarterly operating expenses for the third and fourth quarters of 2020. These cost cuts and reductions included
permanent cost savings that had been identified by management, as well as the interim cessation of certain spending that may be restarted in future quarters.
These cost cuts included:

Negotiating lower fees or suspending services from third party vendors;
Implementing certain hiring restrictions;

Delaying or cancelling non-critical information technology projects;
Eliminating travel, entertainment, meeting, and event expenses; and
Reducing the size of our sales force and eliminating certain staff positions.

We anticipate that these savings can be extended further throughout 2020 or expanded depending on the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.
Employees and Sales Force

Our sales force continues to function utilizing digital engagement tools and tactics and virtual detailing to remain engaged with prescribers and distribution
channels and supplement live interactions, which began to pick up as the second quarter progressed and physician offices opened.

e We have enhanced the ability of our sales force to support healthcare providers remotely, including the sales forces’ ability to continue to
provide HCPs with access to patient product samples, product marketing information, and information regarding patient affordability

programs and support services.
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Our sales force is in regular interaction with healthcare providers, including conducting “virtual” lunch and learn programs with providers.
Our sales force also continues product training, including sharing best practices, in advance of our anticipated future sales and marketing
ramp.

Remote Pharmacy and At-Home Delivery Options

As of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we are providing continued access to our products for patients.

e  Our products have broad distribution at all major retail pharmacy chains across the country.

e Our vitaCare patient model assists patients in obtaining easy and convenient access to their prescriptions for products at a retail pharmacy of
their choice, including via home delivery retail pharmacy options. We anticipate that home delivery pharmacy options will be attractive to
patients during the COVID-19 pandemic.

e We anticipate that vitaCare will support continued patient access to our products during the COVID-19 pandemic and will help sustain the
strong refill trends for our products given vitaCare’s broad use by our patients.

e We have also engaged with independent community pharmacies and multiple third-party online pharmacies and telemedicine providers that
focus on contraception or menopause to help ensure patients have real-time access to both diagnosis and treatment.

Supply of Products

As of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we do not anticipate a shortage of our products due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

We currently have sufficient inventory of finished product in our contracted warehouses to meet anticipated demand through at least the
fourth quarter of 2020.

We currently do not foresee any interruption in our contract manufacturers’ abilities to continue to manufacture additional product to be used.
Our contract manufacturers have sufficient active pharmaceutical ingredients on hand for the continued manufacture of our products and there
is currently no interruption in the supply chain for the active pharmaceutical ingredients for our products.

We currently have uninterrupted wholesale and retail distribution of our products and are actively working to ensure that there continues to be
an adequate supply of our products at pharmacies for sales to patients.

While we currently believe that our COVID-19 contingency plan has the ability to mitigate the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business,
the severity of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business will depend on a number of factors, including, but not limited to, the duration and
severity of the pandemic, the duration of “stay at home,” quarantine or “social distancing” orders, the ability of our sales force to access healthcare
providers to promote our products, increases in unemployment, which could reduce access to commercial health insurance for our patients, thus limiting
payer coverage for our products, and the impact of the pandemic on our global supply chain, all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted. Our future
results of operations and liquidity could be materially adversely affected by delays in payments of outstanding receivable amounts beyond normal payment
terms, supply chain disruptions, uncertain demand, and the impact of any initiatives or programs that we may undertake to address financial and operations
challenges that we may face.

Our business may also be affected by negative impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on capital markets and economies worldwide, and it is
possible that the pandemic could cause a local and/or global economic recession. While policymakers globally have responded with fiscal policy actions to
support the healthcare industry and economy as a whole, the magnitude and overall effectiveness of these actions remains uncertain.

27




Our Products
IMVEXXY

In May 2018, the FDA approved the 4-pg and 10-pg doses of IMVEXXY (estradiol vaginal inserts) for the treatment of moderate-to-severe
dyspareunia (vaginal pain associated with sexual activity), a symptom of VVA, due to menopause. The 4-pg formulation of IMVEXXY represents the
lowest FDA-approved dose of vaginal estradiol available. IMVEXXY 10-pg became available for commercial distribution in July 2018 and both doses
were commercially available in September 2018.

IMVEXXY is a small, digitally inserted, softgel vaginal insert that dissolves completely. It is administered mess-free, without the need for an
applicator, and can be used any time of day. IMVEXXY provides a mechanism of action and dosing that are familiar and comfortable for patients, with no
patient education required for dose application or applicators. IMVEXXY demonstrated efficacy as early as two weeks (secondary endpoint) and
maintained efficacy through week 12 in clinical studies, with no increase in systemic hormone levels beyond the normal postmenopausal range (the clinical
relevance of systemic absorption rates for vaginal estrogen therapies is not known).

As part of the FDA’s approval of IMVEXXY, we have committed to conduct a post-approval observational study to evaluate the risk of
endometrial cancer in post-menopausal women with a uterus who use a low-dose vaginal estrogen unopposed by a progestogen. The FDA has also asked
the sponsors of other vaginal estrogen products to participate in the observational study. In connection with the observational study, we will be required to
provide progress reports to the FDA on an annual basis. The development of this method is underway, and we do not believe that the costs will be material
on an annual basis. In addition, the FDA asked for post-approval information with respect to certain characteristics related to the product’s specifications,
which we submitted to the FDA.

BIJUVA

In October 2018, the FDA approved BIJUVA (estradiol and progesterone) capsules, 1 mg/100 mg, the first and only FDA-approved bioidentical
hormone therapy combination of estradiol and progesterone in a single, oral capsule for the treatment of moderate-to-severe VMS (commonly known as hot
flashes or flushes), due to menopause in women with a uterus. The estrogen and progesterone in BIJUVA have the same molecular structure as the
hormones that are naturally produced in a woman’s body. We launched BIJUVA in April 2019.

BIJUVA offers the convenience of a single-capsule combination of two hormones (estradiol and progesterone), which may improve a user’s
compliance. The estradiol and progesterone in BIJUVA are plant-based, not animal-sourced, and contain no peanut allergens. BIJUVA provides a sustained
steady state of estradiol which reduced the frequency and severity of hot flashes in clinical studies with no demonstrated impact on a patient’s weight or
blood pressure. Additionally, through clinical trials BIJUVA has demonstrated endometrial safety and greater than 90% amenorrhea rates, while providing
no clinically meaningful changes in mammograms.

We submitted a New Drug Application, or NDA, efficacy supplement for the 0.5/100 mg dose of BIJUVA to the FDA in late January 2020 for
review and potential approval. The NDA efficacy supplement uses existing data from our Phase 3 REPLENISH trial for BIJUVA, for which we announced
results in December 2016, together with additional information and analyses. The REPLENISH trial was the first time that a combination of bio-identical
estradiol and bio-identical progesterone used in a continuous combined daily fashion demonstrated safety and efficacy data to support FDA-approval, when
the 1/100 mg dose of BJIUVA was approved. We do not anticipate that the FDA will require any new clinical trials in connection with our submission of
the NDA efficacy supplement, however, there is no assurance that will be the case. The NDA efficacy supplement has been accepted for review by the
FDA and has a Prescription Drug User Fee Act target action date for the completion of the FDA’s review of November 16, 2020. Despite the FDA’s
acceptance of the NDA efficacy supplement and previous approval of the 1/100 mg dose of BJIUVA, there can be no assurance that the 0.5/100 mg dose of
BIJUVA will be approved.

With the approval of BIJUVA, the FDA required a post-approval commitment to further develop and validate our in-vitro dissolution method to
show how BIJUVA is released from the capsule in an in-vitro setting for quality control assessments. The development of this method and validation were
completed and submitted to the FDA as required in our approval.

Our hormone therapy pharmaceutical products are characterized by safety and efficacy profiles that can be consistently manufactured to target
specifications. This provides an alternative to the non-FDA approved compounded bio-identical market. We believe that our FDA-approved pharmaceutical
products offer advantages in terms of demonstrated safety and efficacy, consistency in the hormone dose, lower patient cost due to the increased likelihood
of insurance coverage and improved access as a result of availability from major retail pharmacy chains rather than custom order or formulation by
individual compounders.
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ANNOVERA

In July 2018, we entered into an exclusive license agreement with the Population Council to commercialize in the U.S. ANNOVERA (segesterone
acetate and ethinyl estradiol vaginal system), the first and only patient-controlled, procedure-free, reversible prescription contraceptive that can prevent
pregnancy for up to a total of 13 cycles (one year), which was approved by the FDA in August 2018. In October 2019, we began a “test and learn” market
introduction phase of launch for ANNOVERA. We paused the planned full commercial launch of ANNOVERA in March 2020 due to the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic and resumed this initiative on July 1, 2020.

ANNOVERA was classified by the FDA as a “new chemical entity,” or NCE, and thus has five years of regulatory exclusivity under the Drug
Price Competition and Patent Term Restoration Act of 1984, otherwise known as the Hatch-Waxman Act. ANNOVERA is a one-year ring-shaped
contraceptive vaginal system, or CVS. ANNOVERA, which is made with a silicone elastomer, contains segesterone acetate, a 19-nor progesterone
derivative also known as Nestorone®, or SA, and ethinyl estradiol, or EE. EE is an approved active ingredient in many marketed hormonal contraceptive
products. Segesterone acetate, an NCE, is a potent progestin that, based on pharmacological studies in animals and in vitro, does not bind to the androgen
or estrogen receptors and has no glucocorticoid activity at contraceptive doses. SA has been evaluated in 51 clinical studies across these delivery systems
with more than 26,794 cycles of exposure.

ANNOVERA can be inserted and removed by the woman herself without the aid of a healthcare provider and, unlike oral contraceptives,
ANNOVERA does not require daily administration to obtain the contraceptive effect. After 21 days of use, the woman removes ANNOVERA for seven
days, thereby providing a regular bleeding pattern (i.e., withdrawal/scheduled bleeding). The same CVS is then re-inserted for additional 21/7-days in/out,
for up to a total of 13 cycles (one year). ANNOVERA releases daily vaginal doses of both active ingredients (SA and EE). The claimed release rate of 150
pg/day SA and 13/day pg EE is supported by the calculated average release rate from an ex vivo analysis of ANNOVERA used for 13 cycles and is also
supported by data from 13 cycles of in vitro release.

As part of the approval of ANNOVERA, the FDA has required a post-approval observational study be performed to measure the risk of venous
thromboembolism. In accordance with the post-marketing requirements, the full protocol for the study was submitted to the FDA in August 2019. We have
agreed to perform and pay the costs and expenses associated with this post-approval study, provided that if the costs and expenses associated with such
post-approval study exceed $20 million, half of such excess will offset against royalties or other payments owed by us to the Population Council under the
Population Council License Agreement. Given the observational nature of the study, we do not believe that the costs of the study will be material on an
annual basis.

We believe that ANNOVERA will compete across all the contraception options for women with focus on those women seeking a long-lasting
option without a procedure.

For patients, ANNOVERA provides a single long-lasting reversible birth control product that does not require a procedure at the doctor’s office
for insertion or removal, empowering women to be in complete control of their fertility and menstruation with a 21/7 regimen. We believe that
ANNOVERA is a unique alternative for women who have previously chosen other forms of birth control. These include nulliparous women (or women
who have never given birth), women who are considering an IUD but would rather not have a procedure, women who are between pregnancies but desire
protection without a long-term commitment, and women who are not satisfied with oral options due to the daily usage or potential side effects.

We believe that the strong initial commercial net revenue per unit of ANNOVERA and commercial insurance adoption provide us with an
opportunity to deploy additional financial resources to maximize ANNOVERA’s consumer-focused commercialization strategy and leverage the ability of
doctor/patient choice of contraceptive to override insurance company formularies when necessary. As part of this strategy, we are pursuing distribution
opportunities for ANNOVERA to provide women with additional access to ANNOVERA, particularly during the COVID-19 pandemic, with multiple
direct-to-consumer contraceptive platforms that extend the reach of our products. However, as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, we have deferred a
significant portion of our planned 2020 marketing spend for ANNOVERA.
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Commercialization Model

We are commercializing the products in our portfolio through a common model focused on the belief that providing good experiences for both
HCPs and patients will drive profitability for TherapeuticsMD. Given that our portfolio focus is exclusively in women’s health, we believe that each new
product launch will allow us to further leverage our existing infrastructure and build out our reputation as the premier women’s health organization in the
U.S. Below is more detail on our commercialization model:

HCP Education - Initially, we focus on the high writing and high potential HCPs in each territory to gain a full understanding of their prescribing
behavior and practices. Our focus is on driving initial prescriptions of these writers for each new product launch and utilizing the time to also pull through
on our portfolio of existing products. Once regular writing is established with the initial group of HCPs, we expand our reach to a larger set of HCPs
writing in the category. We educate HCPs on our products primarily with our field sales organization supplemented by non-personal promotion. Our sales
force currently targets approximately 130 territories, which includes the most significant part of the addressable markets across our product portfolio. As of
June 30, 2020, at least 18,500 HCPs had written at least one prescription of IMVEXXY and at least 5,800 HCPs had written at least one prescription of
BIJUVA, the majority of which are also IMVEXXY writers demonstrating the value of portfolio and focus. In addition, as of June 30, 2020, approximately
2,000 HCPs had written at least one prescription of ANNOVERA. In addition to our sales organization, we leverage non-personal promotion (multi-
channel advertising) to targets and non-targets that drive awareness, education, and action. These efforts allow for pull through of the sales organization
efforts and identification of new targets that have interest in writing prescriptions for one or more of our products. We believe this will drive increased
prescribing for our products and lift the overall writing universe and our products top of mind in the HCP community.

BIO-IGNITE - In addition to our sales organization calling on HCPs, we have a Key Account Management, or KAM, team to support our
existing BIO-IGNITE pharmacy partners and additional pharmacies that wish to enroll in the BIO-IGNITE program. Additionally, KAM’s are focusing on
supporting current prescribers of BIJUVA as well as high decile prescribers of hormone therapy for menopause.

Payer Access - With the ever-changing payer environment, it is critical to maximize breadth of coverage as quickly as possible to not inhibit
patient access to product. We do this while working to negotiate the best possible contracts for us. Many commercial payers employ “new-to-market
blocks” for newly launched products until the payers have the opportunity to make a coverage decision based upon their internal review of the product.
When a product is not covered, the patient is responsible to pay the full price for the medication, which can significantly limit utilization of the product. As
we seek to increase the number of lives covered by commercial payers, it is our objective to continue to seek unrestricted coverage. As of June 30, 2020,
we have obtained coverage for the majority of commercial payers for IMVEXXY and BIJUVA and continue to seek unrestricted coverage from the
remaining commercial insurance plans that we have not yet contracted with to provide affordable access for patients. For IMVEXXY, we achieved
unrestricted coverage with the top ten commercial payers of VVA products by commercial payer lives and we continue to sign new agreements with other
payers to cover IMVEXXY. In addition, as of June 30, 2020, four of the top eight Medicare Part D payers of VVA products were adjudicating IMVEXXY,
with additional decisions for other Medicare Part D payers expected during the second half of 2020. For BIJUVA, through June 30, 2020, we have achieved
unrestricted coverage with eight of the top ten commercial payers of VMS products by commercial payer lives and we continue to sign new agreements
with payers to cover BIJUVA. Although Medicare is a small percentage of the VMS market, as of June 30, 2020, two of the top six Medicare Part D payers
of VMS products were adjudicating BIJUVA.

For ANNOVERA, we believe that its unique characteristics will assist us in pursuing favorable commercial payer coverage, including only one
pharmacy fill fee per year and no office visit or procedure fees. We have made substantial progress in achieving unrestricted access to ANNOVERA
through commercial payers, including having achieved adjudication with five of the top ten commercial payers by commercial payer lives as of June 30,
2020, and we continue to pursue discussions with several of the country’s largest commercial insurers to further expand coverage. As of June 30, 2020,
approximately 66% of the commercial payer market covered ANNOVERA with unrestricted access under pharmacy benefits and approximately 78%
covered ANNOVERA with step or prior authorization access.

In February 2020, we entered into an agreement with Afaxys Pharma, LLC, a pharmaceutical company focused on serving women in the public
health system, to market ANNOVERA in the U.S. public health sector. As part of the Population Council License Agreement, we have agreed to provide
significantly reduced pricing to federally designated Title X family planning clinics serving underrepresented women. We also have agreements to market
ANNOVERA to the U.S. Department of Defense, the U.S. Department of Veteran’s Affairs, and in Puerto Rico.
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Supply - We want to ensure our products are available in all classes of trade and delivery systems. We offer our products through traditional chain
wholesalers (Cardinal, McKesson and AmerisourceBergen) and independent retail pharmacies, community compounding pharmacies with our BIO-
IGNITE program, and online pharmacies. We continue to develop unique opportunities to sell direct to pharmacies to streamline distribution and better
control costs.

Patient Affordability Programs - We have affordability and adherence programs in place for patients so that we can support appropriate use of
our products by patients. Our co-pay assistance programs allow all patients to access our products at a reasonable cost.

®  We continue to support our patient education and affordability program that allows all eligible patients who enroll to receive IMVEXXY and
BIJUVA at a reasonable cost. When a product is not covered by a patient’s commercial insurance, the patient is responsible to pay the full
price for the medication, which can significantly limit a patient’s ability to pay and subsequent utilization of the product. For IMVEXXY and
BIJUVA, enrolled patients pay as little as $35 for a prescription with commercial insurance coverage and pay as little as $50 for a prescription
without commercial insurance coverage. For ANNOVERA, for commercially insured patients, we offer patients assistance for as low as $60
for an annual prescription. Many patients will not need a co-pay assistance program for ANNOVERA given the requirements of the ACA at
the federal level and similar laws at the state level.

®  We continue to dialogue with the FDA regarding the potential inclusion of ANNOVERA as a new class of contraception for women in the
FDA’s Birth Control Guide, which would require private health plans to cover ANNOVERA with no patient out-of-pocket costs as part of the
ACA. There is no assurance that the FDA will make such a determination and it is possible that other FDA-approved products could also be
included in such a new class. The FDA may also find that ANNOVERA fits into the vaginal contraceptive ring class, which it would share
with NuvaRing and its generic equivalents, and potentially others. Eight states require insurance coverage of prescription contraception with
co-pay regardless of inclusion in the FDA’s Birth Control Guide and 11 states, plus Washington D.C., require coverage of prescription
contraception with no co-pay regardless of inclusion in the FDA’s Birth Control Guide.

Patient Adherence - Establishing compliance and adherence programs that make getting on a prescription medication and obtaining prescribed
refills easy and convenient for the patient and HCPs is a critical lever in our commercial model. Our focus is on minimizing complications in patients
filling their first prescription and engaging with them throughout the life of their treatment to ensure patients stay on and use therapy for the appropriate
length of time. We have delivered effective patient engagement programs for all of our products.

Consumer Communication - Another critical level in the commercial model is consumer outreach. Our initial focus is on those patients who are
already predisposed to seek treatment, such as those patients new to therapy, and those patients dissatisfied with their current therapy. Next, we are focused
on expanding the market by energizing patients who are experiencing bothersome symptoms but who have not been motived to seek treatment. Methods of
communication include online and offline media and span branded and unbranded communication to ensure we drive action from awareness of symptoms
to desire to speak to an HCP to acquire a prescription.

License Agreements
License Agreement with the Population Council

Under the terms of the Population Council License Agreement, we paid the Population Council a milestone payment of $20 million within 30 days
following approval by the FDA of the NDA for ANNOVERA. The first commercial batch of ANNOVERA was released during the third quarter of 2019,
and we paid the Population Council a second milestone payment of $20 million as a result of the commercial batch release. The Population Council is
eligible to receive additional milestone payments and royalties from commercial sales of ANNOVERA, as detailed below. We assumed responsibility for
marketing expenses related to the commercialization of ANNOVERA. We are required to pay the Population Council additional milestone payments of $40
million upon cumulative net sales of ANNOVERA in the U.S. by us and our affiliates and permitted sublicensees of each of $200 million, $400 million and
$1.0 billion.
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In addition, we are required to pay the Population Council, on a quarterly basis, step-based royalty payments based on annual net sales of
ANNOVERA in the U.S. by us and our affiliates and permitted sublicensees as follows:

Royalty
Annual Net Sales Rate
Less than or equal to $50.0 million 5%
Greater than $50.0 million and less than or equal to $150.0 million 10%
Greater than $150.0 million 15%

The annual royalty rate will be reduced to 50% of the initial rate during the six-month period beginning on the date of the first arms-length
commercial sale of a generic equivalent of ANNOVERA that is launched by a third party in the U.S., and thereafter will be reduced to 20% of the initial
rate.

The Population Council has agreed to perform and pay the costs and expenses associated with two post-approval studies required by the FDA for
ANNOVERA and we have agreed to perform and pay the costs and expenses associated with a post-approval study required by the FDA to measure risk
for venous thromboembolism, provided that if the costs and expenses associated with such post-approval study exceed $20 million, half of such excess will
be offset against royalties or other payments owed by us to the Population Council under the Population Council License Agreement. We and the
Population Council formed a joint product committee responsible for overseeing activities under the Population Council License Agreement. We are
responsible for all aspects of promotion, product positioning, pricing, education programs, publications, sales messages and any additional desired clinical
studies for the one-year vaginal contraceptive system, subject to oversight and decisions made by the joint product committee.

Unless earlier terminated, the Population Council License Agreement will remain in effect until the later of the expiration of the last-to-expire of
the Population Council’s U.S. patents that are licensed to us, or the date following such expiration that follows a continuous period of six months during
which we and our affiliates have not made a commercial sale of ANNOVERA in the U.S. The Population Council License Agreement may also be
terminated for certain breach and bankruptcy-related events and by us on 180 days’ prior notice to the Population Council.

As part of the Population Council License Agreement, we have the exclusive right to negotiate co-development and U.S. marketing rights for two
other investigational vaginal contraceptive systems in development by the Population Council.

License Agreement with Knight

In July 2018, we entered into a license and supply agreement, or the Knight License Agreement, with Knight pursuant to which we granted Knight
an exclusive license to commercialize IMVEXXY and BIJUVA in Canada and Israel. Pursuant to the terms of the Knight License Agreement, Knight will
pay us a milestone fee upon the first regulatory approval in Canada of each of IMVEXXY and BIJUVA, sales milestone fees based upon certain aggregate
annual sales in Canada and Israel of each of IMVEXXY and BIJUVA and royalties based on aggregate annual sales of each of IMVEXXY and BIJUVA in
Canada and Israel. In October 2019 and November 2019, Knight’s New Drug Submissions for IMVEXXY and BIJUVA, respectively, were accepted for
review by Health Canada. Knight will be responsible for all regulatory and commercial activities in Canada and Israel related to IMVEXXY and BIJUVA.
We may terminate the Knight License Agreement if Knight does not submit all regulatory applications, submissions and/or registrations required for
regulatory approval to use and commercialize IMVEXXY and BIJUVA in Canada within certain specified time periods. We also may terminate the Knight
License Agreement if Knight challenges our patents. Either party may terminate the Knight License Agreement for any material breach by the other party
that is not cured within certain specified time periods or if the other party files for bankruptcy or other related matters. As part of the Knight License
Agreement, Knight is prohibited from exporting IMVEXXY and BIJUVA to the United States.

License Agreement with Theramex

In June 2019, we entered into a licensing and supply agreement, or the Theramex License Agreement, with Theramex pursuant to which we
granted Theramex an exclusive, perpetual license to commercialize BIJUVA and IMVEXXY for human use outside of the U.S., except for Canada and
Israel, or the Theramex Territory. Pursuant to the terms of the Theramex License Agreement, Theramex paid us an upfront fee of EUR 14 million in cash.
We are also eligible to receive up to an additional EUR 29.5 million in cash milestone payments, comprised of (i) an aggregate of EUR 2 million in
regulatory milestone payments based on regulatory approvals for each of BIJUVA and IMVEXXY in certain specified markets and (ii) an aggregate of
EUR 27.5 million in sales milestone payments to be paid in escalating tranches based on Theramex first attaining certain aggregate annual net sales
milestones in the Theramex Territory ranging from EUR 25 million to EUR 100 million. We are also entitled to receive quarterly royalty payments based
on net sales of BIDJUVA and IMVEXXY in the Theramex Territory. Theramex has agreed to submit all regulatory applications, submissions and/or
registrations required for regulatory approval to use and commercialize BIJUVA and IMVEXXY in certain specified markets within certain specified time
periods and we may terminate the Theramex License Agreement if Theramex does not submit certain of such regulatory applications, submissions and/or
registrations. We may also terminate the Theramex License Agreement if Theramex challenges our patents. Either party may terminate the Theramex
License Agreement for any material breach by the other party that is not cured within certain specified time periods or if the other party files for bankruptcy
or other related matters. Theramex may sublicense its rights to commercialize BIJUVA and IMVEXXY in the Theramex Territory, except for certain
specified markets. Pursuant to the terms of the Theramex License Agreement, we agreed to supply, or cause to be supplied, BIDUVA and IMVEXXY to
Theramex. We and Theramex have agreed to form a joint product committee responsible for advising and overseeing activities under the Theramex License
Agreement.
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Intellectual Property

As of June 30, 2020, we had 35 issued foreign patents and 35 issued domestic or, U.S., patents, which included 14 domestic utility patents that
relate to BIJUVA, three domestic patents that relate to estradiol and progesterone product candidates, ten domestic patents that relate to IMVEXXY, which
establish an important intellectual property foundation for IMVEXXY, one domestic utility patent that relates to a pipeline transdermal patch technology,
one domestic utility patent that relates to our topical-cream candidates, two domestic patents that relate to formulations containing progesterone, one
domestic utility patent that relates to our OPERA® information technology platform that we wrote off in the second quarter of 2019, and three domestic
utility patents that relate to TX-009HR, our progesterone and estradiol drug candidate.

Research and Development Expenses

A significant portion of our historical operating expenses have been incurred in research and development activities. Research and development
expenses relate primarily to the development, support and maintenance of our drug candidates. Our research and development expenses consist primarily of
expenses incurred under agreements with contract research organizations, or CROs, and consultants that conduct our clinical and preclinical studies;
employee related expenses, which include salaries and benefits, and non-cash share-based compensation; the cost of developing our chemistry,
manufacturing, and controls capabilities, and costs associated with other research activities and regulatory approvals. Other research and development costs
listed below consist of costs incurred with respect to drug candidates that have not received Investigational New Drug Application approval from the FDA.

The following table indicates our research and development expense by project for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019

(000s) (000s)
TX 001-HR (BIJUVA) $ 530 $ 905 $ 1,117 $ 2,415
TX 004-HR(IMVEXXY) 376 577 757 1,342
ANNOVERA 493 840 868 1,714
Other research and development 1,343 2,642 3,269 5,811
Total $ 2,742 $ 4964 $ 6,011 $ 11,282

Research and development expenditures have been reduced as we refocused our resources towards the commercialization of our approved
pharmaceutical products. We will continue to deploy limited resources as we develop our drug pipeline, continue stability testing and validation on our
pharmaceutical products, develop and validate secondary manufacturers, prepare regulatory submissions and work with regulatory authorities on existing
submissions.

The costs of clinical trials may vary significantly over the life of a project owing to a variety of factors. We base our expenses related to clinical
trials on estimates that are based on our experience and estimates from CROs and other third parties. Research and development expenditures for the drug
candidates will continue after the trial completes for on-going stability and laboratory testing, regulatory submission and response work. For a discussion of
the nature of efforts, steps and costs necessary to complete these projects, see “Item 1. Business — Research and Development” and “Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Research and Development Expenses” contained in our
Annual Report.
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Results of Operations

Three months ended June 30, 2020 compared with three months ended June 30, 2019

Three Months Ended
June 30,
2020 2019 Change
(000s)
Revenue, net $ 10,701 $ 6,079 $ 4,622
Cost of goods sold 4,400 1,249 3,151
Operating expenses 51,339 46,467 4,872
Operating loss (45,038) (41,637) (3,401)
Other expense, net (6,938) (13,600) 6,662
Net loss $ (51,976) $ (55,237) $ 3,261

Revenues and Cost of Goods Sold

Revenue is recorded net of sales discounts, chargebacks, wholesaler fees, customer rebates, coupons and estimated returns. We launched
IMVEXXY in the third quarter of 2018 and BIJUVA in the second quarter of 2019. We started selling ANNOVERA in the third quarter of 2019. We
paused the planned full commercial launch of ANNOVERA in March 2020 due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, and resumed this initiative on
July 1, 2020. Revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2020 increased approximately $4,622,000, or 76%, to approximately $10,701,000, compared
with approximately $6,079,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2019. Revenue increased primarily due to continued ramping of sales of IMVEXXY
and BIJUVA and pre-launch sales of ANNOVERA during the three months ended June 30, 2020, as compared to the prior year period, partially offset by
impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic. Our revenue in the prior year period only consisted of sales of IMVEXXY, BIJUVA and our prenatal vitamins.

Sales of IMVEXXY increased approximately $1,963,000 as compared to the prior period, primarily due to a higher number of units sold and
increased net revenue per unit and sales of BIJUVA increased approximately $1,218,000 as compared to the prior period, primarily due to a higher number
of units sold and increased net revenue per unit. Revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2020 also included sales of ANNOVERA of approximately
$1,835,000. In addition, during the three months ended June 30, 2020, our prenatal vitamin sales decreased approximately $394,000 due to decreased
number of units sold, partially offset by increased net revenue per unit as compared to the prior year period.

During the launches of IMVEXXY and BIJUVA we introduced co-pay assistance programs which allow eligible enrolled patients to access the
products at a reasonable cost regardless of insurance coverage. We expect that our product revenue will improve in the long term as commercial and
Medicare payer coverage increases, and plans complete the process needed to adjudicate IMVEXXY, BIJUVA, and ANNOVERA prescriptions at
pharmacies.

Cost of goods sold increased approximately $3,151,000, or 252%, to approximately $4,400,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2020, as
compared with approximately $1,249,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2019. This increase in cost of goods sold is attributable to the 76% increase
in revenue as compared to the prior period, royalty fees of approximately $92,000 and amortization of our license fee of approximately $754,000 related to
ANNOVERA, as well as approximately $1,944,000 of inventory obsolescence expense primarily related to BIJUVA recorded during the three months
ended June 30, 2020. Our gross margin related to prescription products was approximately 59% and 79% for the three-month periods ended June 30, 2020
and 2019, respectively. The change in our gross margin between the two periods is primarily related to the change in product mix and its related costs as
well as inventory obsolescence expense described above.
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Operating Expenses

Our principal operating costs include the following items as a percentage of total operating expenses.

Three Months Ended
June 30,

2020 2019
Sales and marketing costs, excluding human resources costs 45.5% 45.1%
Human resources related costs, including salaries, benefits and taxes 31.4% 27.0%
Product research and development costs 5.3% 10.7%
Professional fees and consulting costs 5.8% 7.3%
Other operating expenses 12.0% 9.9%

Our operating costs have increased as we continue to support the launch of our new pharmaceutical products in the market. We started selling
ANNOVERA in the third quarter of 2019. We paused the planned full commercial launch of ANNOVERA in March 2020 due to the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic, and resumed this initiative on July 1, 2020. During the three months ended June 30, 2019, we were primarily focused on growing
sales of IMVEXXY and our prenatal vitamins, as well as BIJUVA, which was launched in the second quarter of 2019. Our principal operating costs include
the following items as a percentage of total operating expenses:

Three Months Ended
June 30,
2020 2019 Change
(000s)
Sales and marketing costs, excluding human resources costs $ 23339 $ 20,978 $ 2,361
Human resources related costs 16,115 12,546 3,569
Product research and development costs 2,742 4,964 (2,222)
Professional fees and consulting costs 2,991 3,391 (400)
Other operating expenses 6,152 4,588 1,564
Total operating expenses $ 51,339 $ 46,467 % 4,872

Sales and marketing costs, excluding human resources costs, for the three months ended June 30, 2020 increased by approximately $2,361,000, or
11%, to approximately $23,339,000, compared with approximately $20,978,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2019. The sales and marketing costs,
excluding human resources costs, increased due to higher advertising expense, which was partially offset by cost cutting initiatives put in place at the
beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic, including reducing consulting and agency fees. Sales and marketing costs, excluding human resources costs, during
the three months ended June 30, 2020 also reflect the write down of product samples of approximately $3,900,000, primarily related to BIJUVA, partially
offset by lower physician education and training expenses caused by restrictions on in-person speaker programs due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Human resources costs, including salaries, benefits and taxes, for the three months ended June 30, 2020 increased by approximately $3,569,000,
or 28%, to approximately $16,115,000, compared with approximately $12,546,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2019, primarily as a result of an
increase of approximately $2,901,000 in personnel costs in sales, marketing and regulatory areas to support the commercialization of our prescription
products and an increase of approximately $668,000 in non-cash compensation expense included in this category related to employee stock-based
compensation during 2020 as compared to 2019.

Product research and development costs for the three months ended June 30, 2020 decreased by approximately $2,222,000, or 45%, to
approximately $2,742,000, compared with approximately $4,964,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2019. Research and development costs include
costs related to manufacturing validation and early development trials, as well as salaries, wages, non-cash compensation, and benefits of personnel
involved in research and development activities. Research and development expenditures have been reduced as we refocused our resources towards the
commercialization of our approved pharmaceutical products. We continue to deploy limited resources as we develop our drug pipeline, continue stability
testing and validation on our pharmaceutical products, develop and validate secondary manufacturers, prepare regulatory submissions and work with
regulatory authorities on existing submissions.
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e Since the project’s inception in February 2013, we have incurred approximately $132,152,000 in research and development costs with respect
to BIJUVA.

e Since the project’s inception in August 2014, we have incurred approximately $49,018,000 in research and development costs with respect to
IMVEXXY.

For a discussion of the nature of efforts, steps and costs related to our research and development projects, see “Item 1. Business — Research and
Development” and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Research and Development
Expenses” contained in our Annual Report.

Professional fees and consulting costs for the three months ended June 30, 2020 decreased by approximately $400,000, or 12%, to approximately
$2,991,000, compared with approximately $3,391,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2019, primarily as a result of decreased recruiting and
consulting fees.

All other operating expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2020 increased by approximately $1,564,000, or 34%, to approximately
$6,152,000, compared with approximately $4,588,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2019, primarily as a result of increased information technology,
dues and subscriptions, rent, and insurance, partially offset by lower other office and travel expenses due to travel restrictions caused by the COVID-19
pandemic.

Operating Loss

As a result of the foregoing, our operating loss increased approximately $3,401,000, or 8%, to approximately $45,038,000 for the three months
ended June 30, 2020, compared with approximately $41,637,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2019, primarily as a result of an increase in total
operating expenses to support commercialization and launch efforts related to our pharmaceutical products, as well as write off of product samples and
inventory due to the COVID-19 pandemic, partially offset by increased total net revenue.

We anticipate that we will continue to have operating losses for the near future until we successfully commercialize IMVEXXY, BIJUVA, and
ANNOVERA, although there is no assurance that any commercialization of IMVEXXY, BIJUVA and ANNOVERA will be successful.

Other expense, net

Other non-operating expenses, net decreased by approximately $6,662,000, or 49%, to an expense of approximately $6,938,000 for the three
months ended June 30, 2020, compared with an expense of approximately $13,600,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2019, primarily as a result of
the loss on extinguishment of debt of approximately $10,058,000 incurred during the three months ended June 30, 2019, partially offset by increased
interest expense related to our Financing Agreement. For more information regarding our Financing Agreement, see “Liquidity and Capital Resources”
below.

Net Loss

Because of the net effects of the foregoing, net loss decreased approximately $3,261,000, or 6%, to approximately $51,976,000 for the three
months ended June 30, 2020, compared with approximately $55,237,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2019. Net loss per share of Common Stock,
basic and diluted, was ($0.19) and ($0.23) for the three months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Six months ended June 30, 2020 compared with six months ended June 30, 2019

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2020 2019 Change
(000s)

Revenue, net $ 22952 $ 10,026 $ 12,926
Cost of goods sold 7,116 2,012 5,104
Operating expenses 111,797 87,756 24,041

Operating loss (95,961) (79,742) (16,219)
Other expense, net (12,865) (15,001) 2,136
Net loss $ (108,826) $ (94,743) $ (14,083)

Revenues and Cost of Goods Sold

Revenue is recorded net of sales discounts, chargebacks, wholesaler fees, customer rebates, coupons and estimated returns. We launched
IMVEXXY in the third quarter of 2018 and BIJUVA in the second quarter of 2019. We started selling ANNOVERA in the third quarter of 2019. We
paused the planned full commercial launch of ANNOVERA in March 2020 due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, and resumed this initiative on
July 1, 2020.

Revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2020 increased approximately $12,926,000, or 129%, to approximately $22,952,000, compared with
approximately $10,026,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2019. Revenue increased primarily due to continued ramping of sales of IMVEXXY and
BIJUVA and pre-launch sales of ANNOVERA, partially offset by impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic. Our revenue in the prior year period only
consisted of sales of IMVEXXY, BIJUVA and our prenatal vitamins.

Sales of IMVEXXY increased approximately $6,346,000 as compared to the prior period, which was primarily due to a higher number of units
sold and increased net revenue per unit, and sales of BIJUVA increased approximately $2,329,000 as compared to the prior period, which was primarily
due to a higher number of units sold and increased net revenue per unit. Revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2020 also included sales of
ANNOVERA of approximately $4,108,000. In addition, during the six months ended June 30, 2020, our prenatal vitamin sales increased approximately
$143,000 due to increased net revenue per unit as compared to the prior year period, partially offset by a decreased number of units sold.

During the launches of IMVEXXY and BIJUVA, we introduced co-pay assistance programs which allow eligible enrolled patients to access the
products at a reasonable cost regardless of insurance coverage. We expect that our product revenue will improve in the long term as commercial and
Medicare payer coverage increases, and plans complete the process needed to adjudicate IMVEXXY, BIJUVA, and ANNOVERA prescriptions at
pharmacies.

Cost of goods sold increased approximately $5,104,000, or 254%, to approximately $7,116,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2020, compared
with approximately $2,012,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2019. This increase is attributable to a 129% increase in revenue as compared to the prior
period, royalty fees of approximately $205,000, and amortization of our license fee related to ANNOVERA of approximately $1,500,000, as well as
$2,080,000 inventory obsolescence expense, primarily related to BIJUVA, recorded during the six months ended June 30, 2020. Our gross margin related to
prescription products was approximately 69% and 80% for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The change in our gross
margin between the two periods is primarily related to the change in product mix and its related costs, as well as inventory obsolescence expense described
above.
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Operating Expenses

Our principal operating costs include the following items as a percentage of total operating expenses.

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2020 2019
Sales and marketing costs, excluding human resources costs 49.0% 43.3%
Human resources related costs, including salaries, benefits and taxes 28.9% 27.0%
Product research and development costs 5.4% 12.9%
Professional fees and consulting costs 5.6% 6.8%
Other operating expenses 11.1% 10.0%

Our operating costs have increased as we continue to support the launch of our new pharmaceutical products in the market. We commercially
launched ANNOVERA in early March 2020, which was subsequently paused due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic. During the six months
ended June 30, 2019, we were primarily focused on growing sales of IMVEXXY and our prenatal vitamins, as well as BIJUVA, which was launched in the
second quarter of 2019. Our principal operating costs include the following items as a percentage of total operating expenses:

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2020 2019 Change
(000s)
Sales and marketing costs, excluding human resources costs $ 54,869 $ 37,991 $ 16,878
Human resources related costs 32,345 23,655 8,690
Product research and development costs 6,011 11,282 (5,271)
Professional fees and consulting costs 6,222 5,925 297
Other operating expenses 12,350 8,903 3,447
Total operating expenses $ 111,797 % 87,756 $ 24,041

Sales and marketing costs, excluding human resources costs, for the six months ended June 30, 2020 increased by approximately $16,878,000, or
44%, to approximately $54,869,000, compared with approximately $37,991,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2019. This increase was primarily due to
higher expenses associated with sales and marketing efforts to support the significant initiatives related to the launch of ANNOVERA in March 2020,
which was subsequently paused as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as continuing to support the commercialization of BIJUVA and IMVEXXY,
which was partially offset by cost cutting initiatives put in place at the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic, including reducing consulting and agency
fees. Sales and marketing costs, excluding human resources costs, during the six months ended June 30, 2020, also reflect the write down of product
samples of approximately $5,100,000, primarily related to BIJUVA, which was partially offset by lower physician education and training expenses caused
by restrictions on in-person speaker programs due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Human resources costs, including salaries, benefits and taxes, for the six months ended June 30, 2020 increased by approximately $8,690,000, or
37%, to approximately $32,345,000, compared with approximately $23,655,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2019, primarily as a result of an increase
of approximately $7,977,000 in personnel costs in sales, marketing and regulatory areas to support commercialization of our prescription products and an
increase of approximately $713,000 in non-cash compensation expense included in this category related to employee stock-based compensation during
2020 as compared to 2019.

Product research and development costs for the six months ended June 30, 2020 decreased by approximately $5,271,000, or 47%, to
approximately $6,011,000, compared with approximately $11,282,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2019. Research and development costs include
costs related to manufacturing validation and early development trials, as well as salaries, wages, non-cash compensation, and benefits of personnel
involved in research and development activities. Research and development expenditures have been reduced as we refocused our resources towards the
commercialization of our approved pharmaceutical products. We continue to deploy limited resources as we develop our drug pipeline, continue stability
testing and validation on our pharmaceutical products, develop and validate secondary manufacturers, prepare regulatory submissions and work with
regulatory authorities on existing submissions.
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e Since the project’s inception in February 2013, we have incurred approximately $132,152,000 in research and development costs with respect
to BIJUVA.

e Since the project’s inception in August 2014, we have incurred approximately $49,018,000 in research and development costs with respect to
IMVEXXY.

For a discussion of the nature of efforts, steps and costs related to our research and development projects, see “Item 1. Business — Research and
Development” and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Research and Development
Expenses” contained in our Annual Report.

Professional fees and consulting costs for the six months ended June 30, 2020 increased by approximately $297,000, or 5%, to approximately
$6,222,000, compared with approximately $5,925,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2019, primarily as a result of increased legal, accounting and other
professional fees, partially offset by reduced recruiting and consulting fees.

All other operating expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 increased by approximately $3,447,000, or 39%, to approximately
$12,350,000, compared with approximately $8,903,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2019, primarily as a result of increased information technology,
dues and subscriptions, rent, and insurance, partially offset by lower other office and travel expenses due to travel restrictions caused by the COVID-19
pandemic.

Operating Loss

As a result of the foregoing, our operating loss increased approximately $16,219,000, or 20%, to approximately $95,961,000 for the six months
ended June 30, 2020, compared with approximately $79,742,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2019, primarily as a result of an increase in total
operating expenses to support commercialization and launch efforts related to our pharmaceutical products, as well as write off of product samples and
inventory due to the COVID-19 pandemic, as described above, partially offset by increased total net revenue.

We anticipate that we will continue to have operating losses for the near future until we successfully commercialize IMVEXXY, BIJUVA, and
ANNOVERA, although there is no assurance that any commercialization of IMVEXXY, BIJUVA, and ANNOVERA will be successful.

Other expense, net

Other non-operating expense, net decreased by approximately $2,136,000, or 14%, to an expense of approximately $12,865,000 for the six months
ended June 30, 2020, compared with an expense of approximately $15,001,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2019, primarily as a result of the loss on
extinguishment of debt of $10,058,000 incurred during the six months ended June 30, 2019, partially offset by increased interest expense related to our
Financing Agreement. For more information regarding our Financing Agreement, see “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below.
Net Loss

Because of the net effects of the foregoing, net loss increased approximately $14,083,000, or 15%, to approximately $108,826,000 for the six
months ended June 30, 2020, compared with approximately $94,743,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2019. Net loss per share of Common Stock,
basic and diluted, was ($0.40) and ($0.39) for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have funded our operations primarily through public offerings of our Common Stock and private placements of equity and debt securities. For
the three-year period ended December 31, 2019, we received approximately $236,000,000 in net proceeds from the issuance of shares of our Common
Stock. As of June 30, 2020, we had cash and cash equivalents totaling approximately $113,839,000. However, changing circumstances may cause us to
consume funds significantly faster than we currently anticipate, and we may need to spend more money than currently expected because of circumstances
beyond our control.

Our net days sales outstanding, or net DSO, is calculated by dividing gross accounts receivable less the reserve for doubtful accounts, chargebacks
and payment discounts by the average daily net product revenues during the quarter. We also disclose gross DSO, which includes the calculation of gross
accounts receivable divided by the average daily gross product revenues to distributors during the quarter. For the three months ended June 30, 2020, our
gross DSO was 55 days compared to 55 days for the three months ended December 31, 2019 and our net DSO was 156 days for the three months ended
June 30, 2020 compared to 141 days for the three months ended December 31, 2019. We anticipate that our DSO will fluctuate in the future based upon a
variety of factors, including longer payment terms associated with the launches of IMVEXXY, BIJUVA, and ANNOVERA and changes in the healthcare
industry. Our exposure to credit losses may increase if our customers are adversely affected by changes in healthcare laws, coverage, and reimbursement,
economic pressures or uncertainty associated with local or global economic recessions, disruption associated with the COVID-19 pandemic, or other
customer-specific factors. Although we have historically not experienced significant credit losses, it is possible that there could be a material adverse
impact from potential adjustments of the carrying amount of trade receivables in the future.
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On April 24, 2019, we entered into a Financing Agreement, as amended, or the Financing Agreement, with TPG Specialty Lending, Inc., as
administrative agent, or the Administrative Agent, various lenders from time to time party thereto, and certain of our subsidiaries party thereto from time to
time as guarantors, which provides us with up to a $300,000,000 first lien secured term loan credit facility, or the Facility. The Facility provides for fund
availability in multiple tranches: $200,000,000 was drawn upon entering into the Financing Agreement while an additional $50,000,000 was drawn on
February 18, 2020. An additional $50,000,000 was previously available to us in the Administrative Agent’s sole and absolute discretion either
contemporaneously with the delivery of our financial statements for the quarter ended June 30, 2020 or at such earlier date as the Administrative Agent
may have consented to. We and the Administrative Agent are not moving forward with the undrawn $50,000,000 tranche under the Financing Agreement,
which was designed to be drawn following the successful full commercial launch of ANNOVERA in the second quarter of 2020, due to the pause in the
launch timing caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. However, the Administrative Agent has agreed to continue to discuss with us the terms upon which
additional financing could be made available to us by the Administrative Agent in the future at our request and in its discretion.

Although there is uncertainty related to the anticipated impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our future results, we believe that our current cash
reserves and the recent steps we have taken to reduce our operating expenses will help us manage our business through the pandemic. We have reviewed
numerous potential scenarios in connection with the impact of COVID-19 on our business and, based on our analysis, we believe that our existing cash
reserves, our currently anticipated operating cash flows, and proceeds from potential future financings, if available to us, will be sufficient to meet our cash
needs arising in the ordinary course of business for the next twelve months from the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. However, if the successful
commercialization of IMVEXXY, BIJUVA, or ANNOVERA is delayed, or the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business is worse than we
anticipate, our existing cash reserves and proceeds from potential future financings, if available to us, may be insufficient to satisfy our liquidity
requirements until we are able to successfully commercialize IMVEXXY, BIJUVA, and ANNOVERA. If our available cash is insufficient to satisfy our
liquidity requirements, we may curtail our sales, marketing, and other commercialization efforts and we may seek to sell additional equity or debt
securities. Our ability to sell equity securities will be limited by market conditions. Our ability to sell debt securities or obtain additional debt financing is
restricted pursuant to the Financing Agreement. To the extent that we raise additional capital through the sale of equity or convertible debt securities, to the
extent permitted under the Financing Agreement, the ownership interests of our existing stockholders will be diluted, and the terms of these new securities
may include liquidation or other preferences that adversely affect the rights of our existing stockholders. If we raise additional funds through
collaborations, strategic alliances, or licensing arrangements with third parties, certain of which are restricted under the Financing Agreement, we may have
to relinquish valuable rights to our technologies, future revenue streams, research programs, or proposed products, if permitted under the Financing
Agreement. Additionally, we may have to grant licenses on terms that may not be favorable to us.
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We need substantial amounts of cash to complete the launch and commercialization of our hormone therapy and contraceptive drugs. The
following table sets forth the primary sources and uses of cash for each of the periods set forth below:

Summary of (Uses) and Sources of Cash

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2020 2019
(000s)
Net cash used in operating activities $ (95,100) $ (88,678)
Net cash used in investing activities $ (806) $ (1,876)
Net cash provided by financing activities $ 48,916 $ 111,787

Operating Activities

The principal use of cash in operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2020 was to fund our current expenses primarily related to
supporting commercialization activities for IMVEXXY, BIJUVA, and ANNOVERA, sales, marketing, scale-up and manufacturing activities and clinical
development, adjusted for non-cash items. The increase of approximately $6,422,000 in cash used in operating activities for the six months ended June 30,
2020 compared with the prior year period was primarily due to an increase in our net loss and changes in the components of working capital as well as
decrease in non-cash items.

Investing Activities

Investing activities include costs related to patents and fixed assets. Investing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2020 decreased by
approximately $1,070,000 primarily due to lower costs related to the purchase of fixed assets during the six months ended June 30, 2020 compared with the
prior year period.

Financing Activities

Financing activities currently represent the principal source of our cash flow. Our financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2020
provided net cash of approximately $48,916,000 which consisted of the funding from our Financing Agreement of $50,000,000 and the exercise of options
to purchase Common Stock of approximately $166,000, partially offset by the payment of deferred financing fees of $1,250,000. Our financing activities
for the six months ended June 30, 2019 provided net cash of approximately $111,787,000, which consisted of the net funding from our Facility of
approximately $193,348,000 and the exercise of options and warrants to purchase Common Stock of approximately $100,000, partially offset by the
repayment of the MidCap Agreement of approximately $81,661,000.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or the FASB, issued Accounting Standards Update, or ASU, 2018-13 which
eliminates certain disclosure requirements for fair value measurements for all entities, requires public entities to disclose certain new information and
modifies some disclosure requirements. The FASB developed the amendments to Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC, 820 as part of its broader
disclosure framework project, which aims to improve the effectiveness of disclosures in the notes to financial statements by focusing on requirements that
clearly communicate the most important information to users of the financial statements. The new guidance is effective for all entities for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019 and for interim periods within those fiscal years. An entity is permitted to early adopt either the entire standard or only
the provisions that eliminate or modify requirements. We adopted this standard on January 1, 2020, and the adoption did not have a material effect on our
disclosures.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326), Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments. The amendments in this update require a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) measured at amortized cost basis to be presented at the
net amount expected to be collected based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable supportable forecasts. The amendments in this
update are effective for public business entities for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2019, with
early adoption permitted no sooner than the first quarter of 2019. A modified retrospective approach is required for all investments, except debt securities
for which an other-than-temporary impairment had been recognized prior to the effective date, which will require a prospective transition approach and
should be applied either prospectively or retrospectively depending on the nature of the disclosure. The adoption of ASU 2016-13 requires expanded
quantitative and qualitative disclosures about the Company’s expected credit losses. Effective January 1, 2020, we adopted ASU 2016-13 under a modified
retrospective approach for all financial assets measured at amortized cost. There was no adjustment recorded for the cumulative effect of adopting ASU
2016-13. The adoption expanded disclosures about our credit losses.
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Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force), the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the SEC did not, and are not expected to, have a material effect on our results of operations or financial position.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Our primary exposure to market risk is interest rate sensitivity, which is affected by changes in the general level of U.S. interest rates. To minimize
this risk, we intend to maintain an investment portfolio that may include cash, cash equivalents and investment securities available-for-sale in a variety of
securities which may include money market funds, government and non-government debt securities and commercial paper, all with various maturity dates.
Due to the low risk profile of our investments, an immediate 100 basis point change in interest rates would not have a material effect on the fair market
value of our portfolio.

Amounts borrowed under the Financing Agreement accrue interest at either (i) 3-month LIBOR plus 7.75%, subject to a LIBOR floor of 2.70% or
(ii) the prime rate plus 6.75%, subject to a prime rate floor of 5.20%. Considering the total outstanding principal balance under the Financing Agreement of
$250,000,000 at June 30, 2020, a 1.0% change in interest rates would result in an impact to loss before income taxes of $2,500,000 per year.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports filed or submitted under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time period specified in
the SEC's rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial
officer, as appropriate, in order to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as
of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q were effective in providing reasonable assurance that information required to be
disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures
or our internal controls will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource
constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation
of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues, misstatements, errors, and instances of fraud, if any, within our company have been or
will be prevented or detected. Further, internal controls may become inadequate as a result of changes in conditions, or through the deterioration of the
degree of compliance with policies or procedures.

Changes in Internal Controls

During the three months ended June 30, 2020, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected,
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
From time to time, we are involved in litigation and proceedings in the ordinary course of our business.

On February 20, 2020, we received a Paragraph IV certification notice letter, or the IMVEXXY Notice Letter, regarding an Abbreviated New
Drug Application, or ANDA, submitted to the FDA by Teva Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc., or Teva. The ANDA seeks approval from the FDA to
commercially manufacture, use, or sell a generic version of the 4 mcg and 10 mcg doses of IMVEXXY. In the IMVEXXY Notice Letter, Teva alleges that
TherapeuticsMD patents listed in the FDA’s Orange Book that claim compositions and methods of IMVEXXY, or the IMVEXXY Patents, are invalid,
unenforceable, and/or will not be infringed by Teva’s commercial manufacture, use, or sale of its proposed generic drug product. The IMVEXXY Patents
identified in the IMVEXXY Notice Letter expire in 2032 or 2033. On April 1, 2020, we filed a complaint for patent infringement against Teva in the
United States District Court for the District of New Jersey arising from Teva’s ANDA filing with the FDA. We are seeking, among other relief, an order
that the effective date of any FDA approval of Teva’s ANDA would be a date no earlier than the expiration of the IMVEXXY Patents and equitable relief
enjoining Teva from infringing the IMVEXXY Patents. Teva has filed its answer and counterclaim to the complaint, alleging that the IMVEXXY Patents
are invalid and not infringed. A trial date has not been set.

On March 17, 2020, we received a Paragraph IV certification notice letter, or the BIJUVA Notice Letter, regarding an ANDA submitted to the
FDA by Amneal Pharmaceuticals, or Amneal. The ANDA seeks approval from the FDA to commercially manufacture, use, or sell a generic version of
BIJUVA. In the BIJUVA Notice Letter, Amneal alleges that TherapeuticsMD patents listed in the FDA’s Orange Book that claim compositions and
methods of BIJUVA, or the BIJUVA Patents, are invalid, unenforceable, and/or will not be infringed by Amneal’s commercial manufacture, use, or sale of
its proposed generic drug product. The BIJUVA Patents identified in the BIJTUVA Notice Letter expire in 2032. On April 29, 2020, we filed a complaint for
patent infringement against Amneal in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey arising from Amneal’s ANDA filing with the FDA.
We are seeking, among other relief, an order that the effective date of any FDA approval of Amneal’s ANDA would be a date no earlier than the expiration
of the BIJUVA Patents and equitable relief enjoining Amneal from infringing the BIJUVA Patents. Amneal has filed its answer and counterclaim to the
complaint, alleging that the BIJUVA Patents are invalid and not infringed. A trial date has not been set.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Except as set forth below, there have been no material changes with respect to those risk factors previously disclosed in Item 1A “Risk Factors” in
Part I of our Annual Report.

Our financial condition and results of operations for fiscal year 2020 and beyond may be materially adversely affected by the ongoing COVID-19
(coronavirus) pandemic.

The outbreak of the novel COVID-19 (coronavirus) has evolved into a global pandemic. COVID-19 has spread to many regions of the world,
including virtually all of the United States. Our business has been, and we anticipate that it will continue to be, impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.
During the second quarter of 2020, all of our products were affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, primarily due to our sales force having limited access to
healthcare professionals and our patients deferring visits to healthcare professionals. While we have developed a comprehensive COVID-19 contingency
plan designed to preserve the value of our investments in our sales and marketing infrastructure, protect our balance sheet during this period of market
disruption and meet the needs of our patients and prescribers, the severity of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business and operating results
will depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and cannot be accurately predicted.

Stay at home, quarantine and social distancing orders and closures and restrictions on travel have negatively affected the ability of our sales force
to access healthcare providers to promote our products and the ability of patients to visit their healthcare professionals for non-emergent matters. Our sales
force is currently functioning using a hybrid model of office visits where possible and digital engagement tools and tactics and virtual detailing, which may
be less effective than our ordinary course sales and marketing programs. Increases in unemployment could reduce access to commercial health insurance
for our patients, thus limiting payer coverage for our products, which could lead to increased use of our co-pay assistance programs and negatively affect
our results of operations.

Our future results of operations and liquidity could be materially adversely affected by, and we may require an increased level of working capital
as a result of, extended billing and collection cycles as a result of displaced employees at our company, payers, revenue cycle management contractors, or
otherwise; delays in payments of outstanding receivable amounts beyond normal payment terms; supply chain disruptions; uncertain demand; and the
impact of any initiatives or programs that we may undertake to address financial and operations challenges that we may face.

Additionally, although we currently continue to have uninterrupted wholesale and retail distribution of our products and we do not anticipate a
shortage of our products due to COVID-19 at this time, disruptions may occur for our customers or suppliers that may materially affect our ability to obtain
supplies or other components for our products, manufacture additional products or deliver inventory in a timely manner. This would result in lost sales,
additional costs, or penalties, or damage to our reputation.

Our business may also be affected by negative impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on capital markets and economies worldwide, and it is
possible that the pandemic could cause a local and/or global economic recession. While policymakers globally have responded with fiscal policy actions to
support the healthcare industry and economy as a whole, the magnitude and overall effectiveness of these actions remains uncertain.

We may also experience other unknown impacts from COVID-19 that cannot be predicted. Accordingly, disruptions to our business as a result of
COVID-19 could result in a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects in the near-term and beyond
2020.

Item 5. Other Information
Amendment No. 5 to Financing Agreement
On August 5, 2020, we and our subsidiaries entered into Amendment No. 5 to the Financing Agreement, or Amendment No. 5, with the

Administrative Agent and the lenders party thereto, pursuant to which we modified the minimum consolidated net revenue requirements attributable to
commercial sales of our IMVEXXY, BIJUVA, and ANNOVERA products, which requirements are effective beginning with the fiscal quarter ending



December 31, 2020. The foregoing summary of Amendment No. 5 does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by, the full
text of Amendment No. 5, a copy of which is filed as Exhibit 10.4 to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and is incorporated herein by reference.

In lieu of a cash amendment fee, to induce the lenders to enter into Amendment No. 5, on August 5, 2020, we issued warrants, or the Warrants, to
the lenders under the Financing Agreement to purchase an aggregate of approximately 4,750,000 shares of Common Stock, pursuant to a subscription
agreement among the parties, or the Subscription Agreement. The Warrants have an exercise price of $1.58 per share of Common Stock and an expiration
date of August 5, 2030. The Warrants may also be exercised via cashless exercise pursuant to the terms thereof. Each lender represented to us, among other
things, that it was an “accredited investor” (as such term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the
Securities Act), and we issued the Warrants, and would issue the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise thereof, in reliance upon an exemption
from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) under the Securities Act and Regulation D promulgated thereunder. The Warrants and shares of Common
Stock issuable upon exercise thereof may not be offered, sold, pledged, or otherwise transferred in the United States absent registration or an applicable
exemption from the registration requirements under the Securities Act. No registration rights were issued pursuant to the Warrants or Subscription
Agreement. The Warrants do not have anti-dilution protection, other than for customary stock splits and similar transactions. The Subscription Agreement
contains customary representations and warranties of the parties, certain affirmative covenants of our company, and an obligation of our company to
indemnify the lenders in connection therewith. The foregoing summary of the Warrants and Subscription Agreement does not purport to be complete and is
subject to, and qualified in its entirety by, the full text of the form of Warrant and Subscription Agreement, copies of which are filed as Exhibits 4.1 and
10.5, respectively, to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and are incorporated herein by reference.

Appointment of Chief Accounting Officer and Principal Accounting Officer

On August 4, 2020, Michael Donegan, our Vice President, Finance, was appointed as our Chief Accounting Officer and Principal Accounting
Officer. The role of Principal Accounting Officer was previously held by James C. D’ Arecca, our Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financial Officer.
For more information about Mr. Donegan, including his business experience and role with our company, and his compensation, please see our definitive
proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed with the SEC on May 4, 2020.

There are no arrangements or understandings between Mr. Donegan and any other person pursuant to which he was appointed as our Chief
Accounting Officer and Principal Accounting Officer and no family relationship between Mr. Donegan and any director or executive officer of our
company. Other than as described in our definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed with the SEC on May 4, 2020 under the section “Executive
Compensation”, since the beginning of our last fiscal year, we have not engaged in any transactions, and there are no proposed transactions, or series of
similar transactions, in which we were or are to be a participant and in which Mr. Donegan had a direct or indirect material interest in which the amount
involved exceeds or exceeded $120,000.
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Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit Date Description

3.1* June 22, 2020 Composite Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of TherapeuticsMD, Inc., as amended.

4.1* August 5, 2020 Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by TherapeuticsMD, Inc. to the Subscribers party to
that certain Subscription Agreement, dated as of August 5, 2020.

10.1* April 17, 2020 Amendment No. 2 to Financing Agreement, by and among TherapeuticsMD, Inc., VitaMedMD, LLC,
BocagreenMD, Inc., VitaCare Prescription Services, Inc., TPG Specialty Lending, Inc. and the lenders
thereto.

10.2* May 1, 2020 Amendment No. 3 to Financing Agreement, by and among TherapeuticsMD, Inc., VitaMedMD, LLC,
BocagreenMD, Inc., VitaCare Prescription Services, Inc., TPG Specialty Lending, Inc., and the lenders
thereto.

10.3* May 13, 2020 Amendment No. 4 to Financing Agreement, by and among TherapeuticsMD, Inc., VitaMedMD, LLC,
BocagreenMD, Inc., VitaCare Prescription Services, Inc., TPG Specialty Lending, Inc., and the lenders
thereto.

10.4* August 5, 2020 Amendment No. 5 to Financing Agreement, by and among TherapeuticsMD, Inc., VitaMedMD, LLC,
BocagreenMD, Inc., VitaCare Prescription Services, Inc., TPG Specialty Lending, Inc., and the lenders
thereto.

10.5* August 5, 2020 Subscription Agreement, by and among TherapeuticsMD, Inc. and the Subscribers identified on the
Schedule of Subscribers attached thereto.

10.6* June 1, 2020 Employment Agreement, by and between TherapeuticsMD, Inc. and James C. D’ Arecca.

10.7 June 18, 2020 TherapeuticsMD, Inc. 2020 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Appendix B of the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on May 4, 2020).

31.1%* August 6, 2020 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a).

31.2%* August 6, 2020 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a).

32.1%* August 6, 2020 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

32.2%* August 6, 2020 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

101.INS* n/a XBRL Instance Document — the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data file because its
XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.

101.SCH* n/a XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.CAL* n/a XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

101.DEF* n/a XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Instance Document.

101.LAB* n/a XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Instance Document.

101.PRE* n/a XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Instance Document.

104* n/a Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and Contained in Exhibit 101).

* Filed herewith.
** Furnished her

ewith.
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/25743/000138713120004409/txmd-def14a_061820.htm

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

DATE: August 6, 2020
THERAPEUTICSMD, INC.
By: /s/ Robert G. Finizio
Robert G. Finizio

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By: /s/ James C. D’Arecca
James C. D’ Arecca
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

By: /s/ Michael Donegan
Michael Donegan
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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TherapeuticsMD, Inc. 10-Q
Exhibit 3.1

THIS COMPOSITE AMENDED AND RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, AS AMENDED, OF THERAPEUTICSMD, INC. (THE
“CORPORATION”) REFLECTS THE PROVISIONS OF THE CORPORATION’S ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, AS AMENDED AND
RESTATED ON AUGUST 3, 2011, AND ALL AMENDMENTS THERETO FILED WITH THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF

NEVADA THEREAFTER ON OR PRIOR TO JUNE 22, 2020, BUT IS NOT AN AMENDMENT AND/OR RESTATEMENT THEREOF.

COMPOSITE AMENDED AND RESTATED
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, AS AMENDED,
OF
THERAPEUTICSMD, INC.

A NEVADA CORPORATION

ARTICLE I
CORPORATE NAME

The name of the corporation is TherapeuticsMD, Inc. (the “Corporation™).

ARTICLE II
REGISTERED AGENT

The registered agent for the Corporation in the State of Nevada is Paracorp Incorporated, 318 N. Carson Street, Suite 208, Carson City, Nevada 87901.

ARTICLE III
DURATION AND PURPOSE

The duration of the Corporation shall be perpetual. The purpose of the Corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may be
organized under the NRS.

ARTICLE IV
CAPITAL STOCK

The total number of shares of all classes of capital stock that the Corporation has the authority to issue is Six Hundred Ten Million (610,000,000) shares of
which Six Hundred Million (600,000,000) shares will be designated common stock, $0.001 par value per share (“Common Stock”) and Ten Million
(10,000,000) shares will be designated preferred stock, $0.001 par value per share (“Preferred Stock™).

The Ten Million (10,000,000) shares of Preferred Stock may be designated from time to time in one or more series upon authorization of the Corporation’s
board of directors. The Corporation’s board of directors, without further approval of the Corporation’s shareholder, will be authorized to fix the dividend
rights and terms, conversion rights, voting rights, redemption rights and terms, liquidation preferences, and any other rights, preferences, privileges and
restrictions applicable to each series of Preferred Stock so designated.

ARTICLE V
NUMBER OF DIRECTORS

The business of the Corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of the Corporation’s Board of Directors. The Corporation must maintain at
least one director at all times and initially sets the number of directors at four members. The number of individuals comprising the Corporation’s Board of
Directors shall be fixed upon resolution of the Board of Directors and may be increased or decreased from time to time in the manner provided in the
Corporation’s Bylaws.




ARTICLE VI
BYLAWS

In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred upon the Board of Directors of the Corporation by the NRS, the Board of Directors shall have
the power to alter, amend, change, add to and repeal, from time to time, the Bylaws of the Corporation, subject to the rights of the Corporation’s
shareholders entitled to vote with respect thereto to alter, amend, change, add to and repeal the Bylaws adopted by the Board of Directors of the
Corporation.

ARTICLE VII
LIMITATION ON LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

No director or officer of the Corporation shall be personally liable to the Corporation or any of its shareholders for damages for breach of fiduciary duty as
a director or officer involving any act or omission of any act by such director or officer, provided, however, that the foregoing provision shall not eliminate
or limit the liability of a director or officer (i) for acts or omissions which involve intentional misconduct, fraud, or a known violation of the law, or (ii) the
payment of dividends in violation of Section 78.300 of the NRS. Any repeal or modification of this Article by the shareholders of the Corporation shall be
prospective only and shall not adversely affect any limitations on the personal liability of a director or officer of the Corporation for acts or omissions prior
to such repeal or modification.

ARTICLE IX
INDEMNIFICATION

The Corporation shall, to the fullest extent permitted by the provisions of 78.502 of the NRS, as the same may be amended and supplemented, indemnify
any and all persons whom it shall have power to indemnify under said section from and against any and all of the expenses, liabilities, or other matters
referred to in or covered by said section, and the indemnification provided for herein shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those
indemnified may be entitled under the Corporation’s Bylaws, agreement, vote of shareholders, or disinterested directors, or otherwise, both as to action in
his official capacity whole holding such office, and shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee, or agent and shall inure
to the benefit of the heirs, executors, and administrators of such person.




TherapeuticsMD, Inc. 10-Q
Exhibit 4.1

[FORM OF WARRANT]

NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS WARRANT NOR THE SECURITIES INTO
WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED,
OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR
ASSIGNED IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL SELECTED BY THE HOLDER, IN A FORM
REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT.
NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN
ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.

THIS WARRANT IS ONE OF THE WARRANTS TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK ISSUED PURSUANT TO THAT CERTAIN
SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT, DATED AS OF AUGUST 5, 2020, BY AND AMONG THE COMPANY AND THE INVESTORS REFERRED
TO THEREIN. ANY HOLDER OF THIS WARRANT TAKES SUCH WARRANT SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH
SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT AND, BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF, AGREES TO ABIDE BY THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS
THEREOF NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY SET FORTH HEREIN.

THERAPEUTICSMD, INC.
WARRANT To PurcHASE CoOMMON STOCK

Warrant No.:
Number of Shares of Common Stock:
Date of Issuance: August 5, 2020 (“Issuance Date”)

TherapeuticsMD, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), hereby certifies that, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, [LENDER DESIGNEE], the registered holder hereof or its permitted assigns (the “Holder”), is entitled,
subject to the terms set forth below, to purchase from the Company, at the Exercise Price (as defined below) then in effect, at any time or times on or after
the Issuance Date, but not after 11:59 p.m., New York time, on the Expiration Date, (as defined below), ( ) fully paid
nonassessable shares of Common Stock, subject to adjustment as provided herein (the “Warrant Shares”). Except as otherwise defined herein, capitalized
terms in this Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (including any Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued in exchange, transfer or replacement hereof,
this “Warrant”), shall have the meanings set forth in Section 17. This Warrant is one of the Warrants to purchase Common




Stock (the “Lender Warrants”) issued pursuant to Section 2 of that certain Subscription Agreement, dated as of August 5, 2020 (the “Subscription
Date”), by and among the Company and the investors (the “Subscribers”) referred to therein (the “Subscription Agreement”). Capitalized terms used
herein and not otherwise defined shall have the definitions ascribed to such terms in the Subscription Agreement.

1. EXERCISE OF WARRANT.

(a) Mechanics of Exercise. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof (including, without limitation, the limitations set forth in
Section 1(f)), this Warrant may be exercised by the Holder at any time or times on or after the Issuance Date, in whole or in part, by (i) delivery of a written
notice, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Exercise Notice”), of the Holder’s election to exercise this Warrant and (ii) (A) payment to the
Company of an amount equal to the applicable Exercise Price multiplied by the number of Warrant Shares as to which this Warrant is being exercised (the
“Aggregate Exercise Price”) in cash by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account designated in writing by the Company or (B) by
notifying the Company in writing that this Warrant is being exercised pursuant to a Cashless Exercise (as defined in Section 1(d)). No ink-original Exercise
Notice shall be required, nor shall any medallion guarantee (or other type of guarantee or notarization) of any Exercise Notice be required, provided that the
Company shall have no liability to the Holder for honoring a non-medallion guaranteed Exercise Notice that the Company reasonably believes to be
genuine. The registered Holder shall not be required to deliver the original Warrant in order to effect an exercise hereunder. Execution and delivery of the
Exercise Notice with respect to less than all of the Warrant Shares shall have the same effect as cancellation of the original Warrant and issuance of a new

Warrant evidencing the right to purchase the remaining number of Warrant Shares. On or before the first (1) Trading Day following the Trading Day on
which the Holder has delivered an Exercise Notice and the Aggregate Exercise Price (or notice of a Cashless Exercise) to the Company (for purposes of
this Warrant, if an Exercise Notice is delivered to the Company on a day that is not a Trading Day, such Exercise Notice shall be deemed to have been
delivered on the first Trading Day following the day of actual delivery), the Company shall transmit by electronic mail an acknowledgment of confirmation
of receipt of the Exercise Notice to the Holder. On or before the earlier of (i) the second (2"%) Trading Day and (ii) the number of Trading Days comprising
the Standard Settlement Period, in each case, following the date on which the Holder has delivered the Exercise Notice and the Aggregate Exercise Price
(or notice of a Cashless Exercise) to the Company (a “Share Delivery Date”), the Company shall (X) provided that the Company’s transfer agent (the
“Transfer Agent”) is participating in The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program and (A) the Warrant Shares
are subject to an effective resale registration statement in favor of the Holder and the Holder has delivered to the Company a representation that such
Warrant Shares have been sold pursuant to such registration statement or (B) if exercised via Cashless Exercise, at a time when Rule 144 would be
available for immediate resale of the Warrant Shares by the Holder, and the Holder has delivered to the Company a representation that such Warrant Shares
have been sold pursuant to Rule 144, credit such aggregate number of Warrant Shares to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise to the
Holder’s or its designee’s balance account with DTC through its Deposit / Withdrawal At Custodian system, or (Y) if (A) the Transfer Agent is not
participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program or (B) the Warrant Shares are not subject to an effective resale registration statement
in favor of the Holder or the Holder has not delivered to the Company a representation that such Warrant Shares have been sold pursuant to such
registration statement and, if exercised via Cashless Exercise, at a time when Rule 144 would not be available for immediate resale of the Warrant Shares
by the Holder or the Holder has not delivered to the Company a representation that such Warrant Shares have been sold pursuant to such registration
statement, (i) issue and dispatch by overnight courier to the address as specified in the Exercise Notice, a certificate, registered in the Company’s share
register in the name of the Holder or its designee and bearing such restrictive legends as the Company deems necessary, for the number of Warrant Shares
to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise, or (ii) issue and dispatch by electronic mail to the address as specified in the Exercise Notice,
evidence of book entry, registered in the Company’s share register in the name of the Holder or its designee and bearing such restrictive legends as the
Company deems necessary, for the number of Warrant Shares to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise. The Company shall be responsible
for all fees and expenses of the Transfer Agent and all fees and expenses with respect to the issuance of Warrant Shares via DTC, if any, including without
limitation for same day processing. Upon delivery of the Exercise Notice and the Aggregate Exercise Price (or notice of a Cashless Exercise), the Holder
shall be deemed for all corporate purposes to have become the holder of record of the Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant has been
exercised, irrespective of the date such Warrant Shares are credited to the Holder’s DTC account or the date of delivery of the certificates or book entry
evidence evidencing such Warrant Shares, as the case may be. If this Warrant is submitted in connection with any exercise pursuant to this Section 1(a) and
the number of Warrant Shares represented by this Warrant submitted for exercise is greater than the number of Warrant Shares being acquired upon an
exercise, then the Company shall as soon as practicable and in no event later than five (5) Trading Days after any exercise and at its own expense, issue a
new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)) representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares issuable immediately prior to such exercise
under this Warrant, less the number of Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant is exercised. No fractional Warrant Shares are to be issued upon
the exercise of this Warrant, but rather the number of Warrant Shares to be issued shall be rounded to the nearest whole number. The Company shall pay
any and all taxes which may be payable with respect to the issuance and delivery of Warrant Shares upon exercise of this Warrant.

(b) Exercise Price. For purposes of this Warrant, “Exercise Price” means $1.58, subject to adjustment as provided herein.

(c) [Reserved].

(d) Cashless Exercise. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Holder may, in its sole discretion,
exercise this Warrant in whole or in part and, in lieu of making the cash payment otherwise contemplated to be made to the Company upon such exercise in

payment of the Aggregate Exercise Price, elect instead to receive upon such exercise the “Net Number” of shares of Common Stock determined according
to the following formula (a “Cashless Exercise”):




Net Number = (A x B)- (A x C),
B

For purposes of the foregoing formula:
A= the total number of shares with respect to which this Warrant is then being exercised.

B=as applicable: (i) the Weighted Average Price of the Common Stock on the Trading Day immediately preceding the date
of the applicable Exercise Notice if such Exercise Notice is (1) both executed and delivered pursuant to Section 1(a)
hereof on a day that is not a Trading Day or (2) both executed and delivered pursuant to Section 1(a) hereof on a
Trading Day prior to the opening of “regular trading hours” (as defined in Rule 600(b)(68) of Regulation NMS
promulgated under the federal securities laws) on such Trading Day, (ii) at the option of the Holder indicated in the
Exercise Notice, either (x) the Weighted Average Price of the Common Stock on the Trading Day immediately
preceding the date of the applicable Exercise Notice, or (y) the Weighted Average Price of the Common Stock on the
Trading Day of the applicable Exercise Notice if such Exercise Notice is executed and delivered during “regular trading
hours” on a Trading Day pursuant to Section 1(a) hereof, or (iii) the Weighted Average Price of the Common Stock on
the date of the applicable Exercise Notice if the date of such Exercise Notice is a Trading Day and such Exercise Notice
is both executed and delivered pursuant to Section 1(a) hereof after the close of “regular trading hours” on such Trading
Day.

C= the Exercise Price then in effect for the applicable Warrant Shares at the time of such exercise.

For purposes of Rule 144(d) promulgated under the 1933 Act, as in effect on the date hereof, the Company hereby acknowledges and
agrees that the Warrant Shares issued in a Cashless Exercise shall be deemed to have been acquired by the Holder, and the holding period for the Warrant
Shares shall be deemed to have commenced, on the date this Warrant was last acquired by such Holder prior to such Cashless Exercise. The Company
agrees not to take any position contrary to this Section 1(d).

(e) Disputes. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic calculation of the Warrant
Shares, the Company shall promptly issue to the Holder the number of Warrant Shares that are not disputed and resolve such dispute in accordance with
Section 12.




(f) Beneficial Ownership Limitations on Exercises. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Company
shall not effect the exercise of any portion of this Warrant, and the Holder shall not have the right to exercise any portion of this Warrant, and any such
exercise shall be null and void and treated as if never made, to the extent that after giving effect to such exercise, the Holder together with the other
Attribution Parties collectively would beneficially own in excess of 4.99% (the “Maximum Percentage”) of the number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding immediately after giving effect to such exercise. For purposes of the foregoing sentence, the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock
beneficially owned by the Holder and the other Attribution Parties shall include the number of shares of Common Stock held by the Holder and all other
Attribution Parties plus the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of this Warrant with respect to which the determination of such
sentence is being made, but shall exclude the number of shares of Common Stock which would be issuable upon (A) exercise of the remaining, unexercised
portion of this Warrant beneficially owned by the Holder or any of the other Attribution Parties and (B) exercise or conversion of the unexercised or
unconverted portion of any other securities of the Company (including, without limitation, any convertible notes or convertible preferred stock or warrants,
including the other Lender Warrants) beneficially owned by the Holder or any other Attribution Party subject to a limitation on conversion or exercise
analogous to the limitation contained in this Section 1(f). For purposes of this Section 1(f), beneficial ownership shall be calculated in accordance with
Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”). For purposes of determining the number of outstanding shares of
Common Stock the Holder may acquire upon the exercise of this Warrant without exceeding the Maximum Percentage, the Holder may rely on the number
of outstanding shares of Common Stock as reflected in (x) the Company’s most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,
Current Report on Form 8-K or other public filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), as the case may be, (y) a more recent public
announcement by the Company or (z) any other written notice by the Company or the Transfer Agent setting forth the number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding (the “Reported Outstanding Share Number”). If the Company receives an Exercise Notice from the Holder at a time when the actual number
of outstanding shares of Common Stock is less than the Reported Outstanding Share Number, the Company shall (i) notify the Holder in writing of the
number of shares of Common Stock then outstanding and, to the extent that such Exercise Notice would otherwise cause the Holder’s beneficial ownership,
as determined pursuant to this Section 1(f), to exceed the Maximum Percentage, the Holder must notify the Company of a reduced number of Warrant
Shares to be purchased pursuant to such Exercise Notice (the number of shares by which such purchase is reduced, the “Reduction Shares”) and (ii) as
soon as reasonably practicable, the Company shall return to the Holder any Exercise Price paid by the Holder for the Reduction Shares. For any reason at
any time, upon the written or oral request of the Holder, the Company shall within one (1) Trading Day confirm orally and in writing or by electronic mail
to the Holder the number of shares of Common Stock then outstanding. The number of outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be determined after
giving effect to the conversion or exercise of securities of the Company, including this Warrant, by the Holder and any other Attribution Party since the date
as of which the Reported Outstanding Share Number was reported. In the event that the issuance of shares of Common Stock to the Holder upon exercise
of this Warrant results in the Holder and the other Attribution Parties being deemed to beneficially own, in the aggregate, more than the Maximum
Percentage of the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock (as determined under Section 13(d) of the 1934 Act), the number of shares so issued by
which the Holder’s and the other Attribution Parties’ aggregate beneficial ownership exceeds the Maximum Percentage (the “Excess Shares”) shall be
deemed null and void and shall be cancelled ab initio, and the Holder shall not have the power to vote or to transfer the Excess Shares. As soon as
reasonably practicable after the issuance of the Excess Shares has been deemed null and void, the Company shall return to the Holder the Exercise Price
paid by the Holder for the Excess Shares. Upon delivery of a written notice to the Company, the Holder may from time to time increase or decrease the
Maximum Percentage to any other percentage not in excess of 9.99% as specified in such notice; provided that (i) any such increase in the Maximum

Percentage will not be effective until the sixty-first (61%t) day after such notice is delivered to the Company and (ii) any such increase or decrease will apply
only to the Holder and the other Attribution Parties and not to any other holder of Lender Warrants that is not an Attribution Party of the Holder. For
purposes of clarity, the shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to the terms of this Warrant in excess of the Maximum Percentage shall not be deemed
to be beneficially owned by the Holder for any purpose including for purposes of Section 13(d) or Rule 16a-1(a)(1) of the 1934 Act. No prior inability to
exercise this Warrant pursuant to this paragraph shall have any effect on the applicability of the provisions of this paragraph with respect to any subsequent
determination of exercisability. The provisions of this paragraph shall be construed and implemented in a manner otherwise than in strict conformity with
the terms of this Section 1(f) to the extent necessary to correct this paragraph or any portion of this paragraph which may be defective or inconsistent with
the intended beneficial ownership limitation contained in this Section 1(f) or to make changes or supplements necessary or desirable to properly give effect
to such limitation. The limitation contained in this paragraph may not be waived and shall apply to a successor holder of this Warrant.
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2. ADJUSTMENT OF EXERCISE PRICE AND NUMBER OF WARRANT SHARES. Adjustment Upon Subdivision or
Combination of Shares of Common Stock. If the Company at any time on or after the Subscription Date subdivides (by any stock split, stock dividend,
recapitalization or otherwise) its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a greater number of shares, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to
such subdivision will be proportionately reduced and the number of Warrant Shares will be proportionately increased. If the Company at any time on or
after the Subscription Date combines (by combination, reverse stock split or otherwise) its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of
shares, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such combination will be proportionately increased and the number of Warrant Shares will be
proportionately decreased. Any adjustment under this Section 2 shall become effective at the close of business on the date the subdivision or combination
becomes effective.

3. [Reserved].

4. FUNDAMENTAL TRANSACTIONS. In the event of a Fundamental Transaction, the Company shall make appropriate
provision to ensure that (a) the purchaser (or its parent) shall assume this Warrant (with appropriate changes to the Exercise Price to take into account the
value of the securities substituted for the Common Stock so as to preserve the intrinsic spread between the fair market value of any substituted securities
and the Exercise Price), or (b) Holder will thereafter have the right to receive upon an exercise of this Warrant, in lieu of the shares of the Common Stock
(or other securities, cash, assets or other property) issuable upon the exercise of this Warrant prior to such Fundamental Transaction, such securities, cash or
other assets (including warrants or other purchase or subscription rights) which the Holder would have been entitled to receive on a per share basis upon the
happening of such Fundamental Transaction had this Warrant been exercised immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any
limitations on the exercise of this Warrant); provided, however, that following any Fundamental Transaction, this Warrant shall only be exercisable via
Cashless Exercise. The provisions of this Section 4 shall apply similarly and equally to successive Fundamental Transactions.
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5. NONCIRCUMVENTION. The Company hereby covenants and agrees that the Company will not, by amendment of its Articles
of Incorporation or Bylaws, or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, scheme of arrangement, dissolution, issue or sale of
securities, or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of this Warrant, and will at all times in
good faith carry out all of the provisions of this Warrant and take all action as may be required to protect the rights of the Holder. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, the Company (a) shall not increase the par value of any shares of Common Stock receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant
above the Exercise Price then in effect, (b) shall take all such actions as may be necessary or appropriate in order that the Company may validly and legally
issue fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of this Warrant, and (c) shall, so long as any of the Lender Warrants are
outstanding, take all action necessary to reserve and keep available out of its authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock, solely for the purpose of
effecting the exercise of the Lender Warrants, 100% of the number of shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the
exercise of the Lender Warrants then outstanding (without regard to any limitations on exercise).

6. WARRANT HOLDER NOT DEEMED A STOCKHOLDER. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Holder,
solely in such Person’s capacity as a holder of this Warrant, shall not be entitled to vote or receive dividends or be deemed the holder of capital stock of the
Company for any purpose, nor shall anything contained in this Warrant be construed to confer upon the Holder, solely in such Person’s capacity as the
Holder of this Warrant, any of the rights of a stockholder of the Company or any right to vote, give or withhold consent to any corporate action (whether
any reorganization, issue of stock, reclassification of stock, consolidation, merger, conveyance or otherwise), receive notice of meetings, receive dividends
or subscription rights, or otherwise, prior to the issuance to the Holder of the Warrant Shares which such Person is then entitled to receive upon the due
exercise of this Warrant. In addition, nothing contained in this Warrant shall be construed as imposing any liabilities on the Holder to purchase any
securities (upon exercise of this Warrant or otherwise) or as a stockholder of the Company, whether such liabilities are asserted by the Company or by
creditors of the Company.

7. REISSUANCE OF WARRANTS.

(a) Transfer of Warrant. If this Warrant is to be transferred, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the Company, whereupon
the Company will forthwith issue and deliver upon the order of the Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)), registered as the Holder may
request, representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares being transferred by the Holder and, if less than the total number of Warrant
Shares then underlying this Warrant is being transferred, a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)) to the Holder representing the right to purchase
the number of Warrant Shares not being transferred.

(b) Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Warrant. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the
loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the
Company in customary form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Warrant, the Company shall execute and deliver to the
Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)) representing the right to purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant.
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(c)  Exchangeable for Multiple Warrants. This Warrant is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the
principal office of the Company, for a new Warrant or Warrants (in accordance with Section 7(d)) representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the
number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant, and each such new Warrant will represent the right to purchase such portion of such Warrant
Shares as is designated by the Holder at the time of such surrender; provided, however, that no Lender Warrants for fractional Warrant Shares shall be
given.

(d) Issuance of New Warrants. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Warrant pursuant to the terms of this Warrant,
such new Warrant (i) shall be of like tenor with this Warrant, (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant, the right to purchase the
Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant (or in the case of a new Warrant being issued pursuant to Section 7(a) or Section 7(c), the Warrant Shares
designated by the Holder which, when added to the number of shares of Common Stock underlying the other new Warrants issued in connection with such
issuance, does not exceed the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant), (iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such
new Warrant which is the same as the Issuance Date, and (iv) shall have the same rights and conditions as this Warrant.

8. NOTICES. Whenever notice is required to be given under this Warrant, unless otherwise provided herein, such notice shall be
given in accordance with Section 6.3 of the Subscription Agreement. The Company will give written notice to the Holder (a) promptly following any
adjustment of the Exercise Price, setting forth in reasonable detail, and certifying, the calculation of such adjustment and (b) at least ten (10) days prior to
the date on which the Company closes its books or takes a record (i) with respect to any dividend or distribution upon the shares of Common Stock, (ii)
with respect to any grants, issuances or sales of any options, convertible securities or rights to purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property, in each
case pro rata to all record holders of Common Stock, or (iii) for determining rights to vote with respect to any Fundamental Transaction, dissolution or
liquidation; provided in each case that such information shall be made known to the public prior to or in conjunction with such notice being provided to the
Holder.

9. AMENDMENT AND WAIVER. Except as otherwise provided herein, the provisions of this Warrant may be amended or
waived and the Company may take any action herein prohibited, or omit to perform any act herein required to be performed by it, only if the Company has
obtained the written consent of the Required Holders. Any amendment or waiver by the Company and the Required Holders shall be binding on the Holder
of this Warrant and all holders of the Lender Warrants.




10. GOVERNING LAW;_JURISDICTION; JURY TRIAL. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed and enforced in
accordance with, and all questions concerning the construction, validity, interpretation and performance of this Warrant shall be governed by, the internal
laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of New York or any
other jurisdictions) that would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdictions other than the State of New York. The Company hereby irrevocably
submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts sitting in The City of New York, Borough of Manhattan, for the adjudication of any
dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein, and hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees
not to assert in any suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of any such court, that such suit, action or
proceeding is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of such suit, action or proceeding is improper. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed
to limit in any way any right to serve process in any manner permitted by law. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or operate to preclude the Holder
from bringing suit or taking other legal action against the Company in any other jurisdiction to collect on the Company’s obligations to the Holder, to
realize on any collateral or any other security for such obligations, or to enforce a judgment or other court ruling in favor of the Holder. THE COMPANY
HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE, AND AGREES NOT TO REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL FOR THE
ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS WARRANT OR ANY
TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

11. CONSTRUCTION; HEADINGS. This Warrant shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and all of the Subscribers
and shall not be construed against any Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Warrant are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of,
or affect the interpretation of, this Warrant.

12. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic calculation of
the Warrant Shares, the Company shall submit the disputed determinations or arithmetic calculations via electronic mail within three (3) Business Days of
receipt of the Exercise Notice giving rise to such dispute, as the case may be, to the Holder. If the Holder and the Company are unable to agree upon such
determination or calculation of the Exercise Price or the Warrant Shares within three (3) Business Days of such disputed determination or arithmetic
calculation being submitted to the Holder, then the Company shall, within three (3) Business Days submit via electronic mail (a) the disputed determination
of the Exercise Price, together with the Company’s and Holder’s respective calculations, to an independent, reputable investment bank or financial services
firm selected by the Holder and approved by the Company, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed, or (b) the disputed
arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares, together with the Company’s and Holder’s respective calculations, to an independent, outside accountant,
selected by the Holder and approved by the Company, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed. The Company shall cause
the investment bank, financial services firm or accountant, as the case may be, to perform the determinations or calculations and notify the Company and
the Holder of the results no later than five (5) Business Days from the time it receives the disputed determinations or calculations. Such investment bank’s,
financial services firm’s or accountant’s determination or calculation, as the case may be, shall be binding upon all parties absent demonstrable error. The
costs of such investment bank, financial services firm or accountant shall be allocated by such firm between the Company and the Holder proportionally
based on such firm’s determination or calculation and the Company’s and Holder’s respective calculations submitted to such firm.
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13. REMEDIES, OTHER OBLIGATIONS, BREACHES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF. The remedies provided in this Warrant
shall be cumulative and in addition to all other remedies available under this Warrant and the other Transaction Documents, at law or in equity (including a
decree of specific performance and/or other injunctive relief), and nothing herein shall limit the right of the Holder to pursue actual damages for any failure
by the Company to comply with the terms of this Warrant. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause
irreparable harm to the Holder and that the remedy at law for any such breach may be inadequate. The Company therefore agrees that, in the event of any
such breach or threatened breach, the holder of this Warrant shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to seek an injunction restraining
any breach, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.

14. TRANSFER. This Warrant and the Warrant Shares may be offered for sale, sold, transferred, pledged or assigned without the
consent of the Company, except as may otherwise be required by Section 6.5 of the Subscription Agreement.

15. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Warrant is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable
by a court of competent jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be deemed amended to apply to the
broadest extent that it would be valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining
provisions of this Warrant so long as this Warrant as so modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to
the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature, invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially impair the respective
expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the practical realization of the benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The
parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which
comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s).

16. DISCLOSURE. Upon delivery by the Company to the Holder of any notice required to be given in accordance with the terms of
this Warrant, unless the Company has in good faith determined that the matters relating to such notice do not constitute material, nonpublic information
relating to the Company or its Subsidiaries, the Company shall contemporaneously with any such delivery publicly disclose such material, nonpublic
information on a Current Report on Form 8-K or otherwise. In the event that the Company believes that any notice required to be delivered by the
Company in accordance with the terms of this Warrant contains material, nonpublic information relating to the Company or its Subsidiaries, the Company
so shall indicate to the Holder contemporaneously with delivery of such notice, and in the absence of any such indication, the Holder shall be allowed to
presume that all matters relating to such notice do not constitute material, nonpublic information relating to the Company or its Subsidiaries.
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17. CERTAIN DEFINITIONS. For purposes of this Warrant, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
(a) “1933 Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
(b) “Affiliate” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Rule 405 of the 1933 Act.

(c) “Attribution Parties” means, collectively, the following Persons and entities: (i) any investment vehicle, including, any
funds, feeder funds or managed accounts, currently, or from time to time after the Issuance Date, directly or indirectly managed or advised by the Holder’s
investment manager or any of its Affiliates or principals, (ii) any direct or indirect Affiliates of the Holder or any of the foregoing, (iii) any Person acting or
who could be deemed to be acting as a Group together with the Holder or any of the foregoing and (iv) any other Persons whose beneficial ownership of
the Common Stock would or could be aggregated with the Holder’s and the other Attribution Parties for purposes of Section 13(d) of the 1934 Act. For
clarity, the purpose of the foregoing is to subject collectively the Holder and all other Attribution Parties to the Maximum Percentage.

(d) “Bloomberg” means Bloomberg Financial Markets.

(e) “Business Day” means any day other than Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in The City of New
York, New York are authorized or required by law to remain closed; provided, however, for clarification, commercial banks shall not be deemed to be
authorized or required by law to remain closed due to “stay at home”, “shelter-in-place”, “non-essential employee” or any other similar orders or
restrictions or the closure of any physical branch locations at the direction of any governmental authority so long as the electronic funds transfer systems

(including for wire transfers) of commercial banks in The City of New York, New York generally are open for use by customers on such day.

(f) “Common Stock” means (i) the Company’s shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, and (ii) any capital stock
into which such Common Stock shall have been changed or any capital stock resulting from a reclassification, reorganization or recapitalization of such
Common Stock.

(g) “Designee” means Sixth Street Specialty Lending, Inc.

(h) “Eligible Market” means the Principal Market, the NYSE American, The Nasdaq Global Select Market, The Nasdaq
Global Market, The Nasdaq Capital Market or The New York Stock Exchange, Inc.

(i) “Expiration Date” means the date that is one hundred twenty (120) months after the Issuance Date or, if such date falls on
a day other than a Business Day or on which trading does not take place on the Principal Market (a “Holiday”), the next day that is not a Holiday.
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() “Fundamental Transaction” means (A) that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, including through Subsidiaries,
Affiliates or otherwise, in one or more related transactions, (i) consolidate or merge with or into (whether or not the Company is the surviving corporation)
another Subject Entity, or (ii) sell, assign, transfer, convey or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the properties or assets of the Company, or (iii)
make, or allow one or more Subject Entities to make, or allow the Company to be subject to or have its Common Stock be subject to or party to one or
more Subject Entities making, a purchase, tender or exchange offer that is accepted by the holders of at least either (x) 50% of the outstanding shares of
Common Stock, (y) 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock calculated as if any shares of Common Stock held by all Subject Entities making or
party to, or Affiliated with any Subject Entities making or party to, such purchase, tender or exchange offer were not outstanding; or (z) such number of
shares of Common Stock such that all Subject Entities making or party to, or Affiliated with any Subject Entity making or party to, such purchase, tender or
exchange offer, become collectively the beneficial owners (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the 1934 Act) of at least 50% of the outstanding shares of
Common Stock, or (iv) consummate a stock purchase agreement or other business combination (including, without limitation, a reorganization,
recapitalization, spin-off or scheme of arrangement) with one or more Subject Entities whereby such Subject Entities, individually or in the aggregate,
acquire, either (x) at least 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, (y) at least 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock calculated as if
any shares of Common Stock held by all the Subject Entities making or party to, or Affiliated with any Subject Entity making or party to, such stock
purchase agreement or other business combination were not outstanding; or (z) such number of shares of Common Stock such that the Subject Entities
become collectively the beneficial owners (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the 1934 Act) of at least 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, or (v)
reorganize, recapitalize or reclassify its Common Stock, (B) that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, including through Subsidiaries, Affiliates or
otherwise, in one or more related transactions, allow any Subject Entity individually or the Subject Entities in the aggregate to be or become the “beneficial
owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the 1934 Act), directly or indirectly, whether through acquisition, purchase, assignment, conveyance, tender, tender
offer, exchange, reduction in outstanding shares of Common Stock, merger, consolidation, business combination, reorganization, recapitalization, spin-off,
scheme of arrangement, reorganization, recapitalization or reclassification or otherwise in any manner whatsoever, of either (x) at least 50% of the
aggregate ordinary voting power represented by issued and outstanding Common Stock, (y) at least 50% of the aggregate ordinary voting power
represented by issued and outstanding Common Stock not held by all such Subject Entities as of the Subscription Date calculated as if any shares of
Common Stock held by all such Subject Entities were not outstanding, or (z) a percentage of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by issued and
outstanding shares of Common Stock or other equity securities of the Company sufficient to allow such Subject Entities to effect a statutory short form
merger or other transaction requiring other stockholders of the Company to surrender their shares of Common Stock without approval of the stockholders
of the Company or (C) directly or indirectly, including through Subsidiaries, Affiliates or otherwise, in one or more related transactions, the issuance of or
the entering into any other instrument or transaction structured in a manner to circumvent, or that circumvents, the intent of this definition in which case
this definition shall be construed and implemented in a manner otherwise than in strict conformity with the terms of this definition to the extent necessary
to correct this definition or any portion of this definition which may be defective or inconsistent with the intended treatment of such instrument or
transaction.

(k) “Group” means a “group” as that term is used in Section 13(d) of the 1934 Act and as defined in Rule 13d-5 thereunder.
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()  “Person” means an individual, a limited liability company, a partnership, a joint venture, a corporation, a trust, an
unincorporated organization, any other entity and a government or any department or agency thereof.

(m) “Principal Market” means The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC.

(n) “Required Holders” means the holders of the Lender Warrants representing at least a majority of the shares of Common
Stock underlying the Lender Warrants then outstanding and shall include the Designee as long as the Designee or any of its Affiliates holds any Lender
Warrants.

(o) “Standard Settlement Period” means the standard settlement period, expressed in a number of Trading Days, on the
principal securities exchange or securities market on which the Common Stock is then traded as in effect on the date of delivery of the applicable Exercise
Notice.

(p) “Subject Entity” means any Person, Persons or Group or any Affiliate or associate of any such Person, Persons or Group.
(@) “Subsidiary” has the meaning as set forth in the Subscription Agreement.

(r) “Trading Day” means any day on which the Common Stock is traded on the Principal Market, or, if the Principal Market is
not the principal trading market for the Common Stock on such day, then on the principal securities exchange or securities market on which the Common
Stock is then traded.

(s) “Weighted Average Price” means, for any security as of any date, the dollar volume-weighted average price for such
security on the Principal Market during the period beginning at 9:30:01 a.m., New York time (or such other time as the Principal Market publicly
announces is the official open of trading), and ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time (or such other time as the Principal Market publicly announces is the
official close of trading), as reported by Bloomberg through its “Volume at Price” function or, if the foregoing does not apply, the dollar volume-weighted
average price of such security in the over-the-counter market on the electronic bulletin board for such security during the period beginning at 9:30:01 a.m.,
New York time (or such other time as such market publicly announces is the official open of trading), and ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time (or such
other time as such market publicly announces is the official close of trading), as reported by Bloomberg, or, if no dollar volume-weighted average price is
reported for such security by Bloomberg for such hours, the average of the highest closing bid price and the lowest closing ask price of any of the market
makers for such security as reported in the OTC Link or “pink sheets” by OTC Markets Group Inc. (formerly Pink OTC Markets Inc.). If the Weighted
Average Price cannot be calculated for a security on a particular date on any of the foregoing bases, the Weighted Average Price of such security on such
date shall be the fair market value as mutually determined by the Company and the Holder. If the Company and the Holder are unable to agree upon the fair
market value of such security, then such dispute shall be resolved pursuant to Section 12 with the term “Weighted Average Price” being substituted for the
term “Exercise Price.” All such determinations shall be appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split, stock combination, reclassification or
other similar transaction during the applicable calculation period.

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to Purchase Common Stock to be duly executed as of the Issuance Date set out
above in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.

THERAPEUTICSMD, INC.
By:

Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT A
EXERCISE NOTICE

TO BE EXECUTED BY THE REGISTERED HOLDER TO EXERCISE THIS
WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK

THERAPEUTICSMD, INC.
The undersigned holder hereby exercises the right to purchase of the shares of Common Stock (“Warrant Shares”) of

TherapeuticsMD, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), evidenced by the attached Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (the “Warrant”).
Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the respective meanings set forth in the Warrant.

1. Form of Exercise Price. The Holder intends that payment of the Exercise Price shall be made as:

a “Cash Exercise” with respect to Warrant Shares; and/or
a “Cashless Exercise” with respect to Warrant Shares, resulting in a delivery obligation of the
Company to the Holder of shares of Common Stock representing the applicable Net Number.

2. Payment of Exercise Price. In the event that the holder has elected a Cash Exercise with respect to some or all of the Warrant Shares to be
issued pursuant hereto, the holder shall pay the Aggregate Exercise Price in the sum of $ to the Company in accordance with the
terms of the Warrant.

3. Delivery of Warrant Shares. The Company shall deliver to the holder Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms of the Warrant
as follows, subject to Section 1(a) of the Warrant.

Warrant Shares have been sold pursuant to an effective resale registration statement and should be credited to the
Holder’s or its designee’s balance account with DTC through its Deposit / Withdrawal At Custodian system pursuant to
the information that accompanies this notice; and/or

Warrant Shares acquired via Cashless Exercise have been sold pursuant to Rule 144 and the Holder has delivered to the
Company representations from the Holder and the Holder’s broker indicating such and such Warrant Shares should be
credited to the Holder’s or its designee’s balance account with DTC through its Deposit / Withdrawal At Custodian
system pursuant to the information that accompanies this notice; and/or

Warrant Shares represented by a certificate or evidence of book entry should be sent to the Holder or its designee at the
address below.

Date:




Name of Registered Holder

By:

Name:
Title:

Address for certificate or evidence of book entry delivery (if applicable):

DTC Information (if applicable):




ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Company hereby acknowledges this Exercise Notice and hereby directs Computershare Trust Company, N.A. to issue the above indicated
number of shares of Common Stock.

THERAPEUTICSMD, INC.
By:

Name:
Title:
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Exhibit 10.1
EXECUTION VERSION

AMENDMENT NO. 2
TO FINANCING AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO FINANCING AGREEMENT, dated as of April 17, 2020 (this “Amendment”), to the Financing
Agreement, dated as of April 24, 2019 (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Financing Agreement”), by and
among THERAPEUTICSMD, INC., a Nevada corporation (“Company” or “Borrower”), certain Subsidiaries of Borrower, as Guarantors, the Lenders from
time to time party thereto, and TPG SPECIALTY LENDING, INC., a Delaware corporation (“ISL”), as administrative agent for the Lenders (in such
capacity, together with its successors and assigns in such capacity, the “Administrative Agent”).

WHEREAS, the Loan Parties have requested that the Administrative Agent and the Lenders amend certain terms and conditions of the
Financing Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders are willing to amend such terms and conditions of the Financing Agreement on
the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1.  Definitions. All terms used herein that are defined in the Financing Agreement and not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings assigned to them in the Financing Agreement.

2. Amendments.

(€)] New Definitions. Section 1.01 of the Financing Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following definitions, in
appropriate alphabetical order:

@) ““Amendment No. 2” means Amendment No. 2 to Financing Agreement, dated as of April 17, 2020, by and
among the Loan Parties, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders.”

(ii) ““Amendment No. 2 Effective Date” means the “Amendment Effective Date” as set forth in Amendment No.

(iii) ““CARES Act” means the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act, as amended, and the related
rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.”

(@iv) ““CARES Act Loan” means any loan or other financial accommodation under the Payroll Protection Program
established pursuant to the CARES Act under 15 U.S.C. 636(a)(36) (as added to the Small Business Act by Section 1102 of the CARES Act); provided that
(i) such Indebtedness is unsecured, (ii) the proceeds therefrom are used solely in a manner that is permitted by the CARES Act and (iii) the Loan Parties
have fully complied with and satisfied all eligibility requirements under the Payroll Protection Program established pursuant to the CARES Act to borrow
such Indebtedness.”




W) ““SBA” means the U.S. Small Business Administration.”

(vi) ““Small Business Act” means the Small Business Act (15 U.S. Code Chapter 14A — Aid to Small Business).”
(b) Existing Definitions. The following definitions in Section 1.01 of the Financing Agreement are hereby amended as
follows:
@) The definition of “Permitted Indebtedness” is hereby amended by deleting “and” at the end of clause (1),

deleting the “.” at the end of clause (m) and inserting “; and” at the end of such clause, and inserting a new clause (n) to read as follows:
“(n) Indebtedness under the CARES Act Loan in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $5,980,902 outstanding at any time.”
(o) Article V (Affirmative Covenants). A new Section 5.14 is hereby added to the Financing Agreement as follows:
“Section 5.14 CARES Act Loan. The Loan Parties shall:
(a) Comply, in all material respects, with the SBA’s terms and conditions applicable to the CARES Act Loan;

(b) use the proceeds of the CARES Act Loans solely for “allowable uses” of proceeds of an SBA PPP Loan as described in Section
1102 of the CARES Act and solely to the extent such uses permit all of the CARES Act Loan to be eligible for forgiveness;

(0 promptly (and in any event within five (5) Business Days) upon receipt or delivery thereof, as applicable, provide copies of all
material documents, applications and correspondence with any applicable lender or any applicable Governmental Authority received or delivered relating
to the CARES Act Loan, including with respect to loan forgiveness; and

(d) promptly apply for forgiveness of the CARES Act Loan and submit all documents required to obtain forgiveness or other relief
of the CARES Act Loan by all deadlines required by the CARES Act (and provide documentation and status of such forgiveness to the Administrative
Agent upon the Administrative Agent’s reasonable request).”

3. Conditions to Effectiveness. This Amendment shall become effective only upon satisfaction in full, in a manner satisfactory to the
Administrative Agent, of the following conditions precedent (the first date upon which all such conditions shall have been satisfied being hereinafter

referred to as the “Amendment Effective Date”):

(a) Payment of Fees, Etc. The Borrowers shall have paid on or before the Amendment Effective Date all fees, costs,
expenses and taxes then payable, if any, pursuant to Section 2.7 or 10.2 of the Financing Agreement.
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(b) Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties contained in this Amendment and in Article IV of
the Financing Agreement and in each other Loan Document shall be true and correct in all material respects (except that such materiality qualifier shall not
be applicable to any representations or warranties that already are qualified or modified as to “materiality” or “Material Adverse Effect” in the text thereof,
which representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects subject to such qualification) on and as the Amendment Effective Date to the
same extent as though made on and as of that date, except to the extent such representations and warranties specifically relate to an earlier date, in which
case such representations and warranties shall have been true and correct in all material respects (except that such materiality qualifier shall not be
applicable to any representations or warranties that already are qualified or modified as to “materiality” or “Material Adverse Effect” in the text thereof,
which representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects subject to such qualification) on and as of such earlier date.

(o) No Default; Event of Default. No Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing on the Amendment
Effective Date or result from this Amendment becoming effective in accordance with its terms.

(d) Delivery of Documents. The Administrative Agent shall have received on or before the Amendment Effective Date the
following, each in form and substance satisfactory to the Administrative Agent and, unless indicated otherwise, dated the Amendment Effective Date:

@i) this Amendment, duly executed by the Loan Parties, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders; and
(i)  duly executed copies of all documents evidencing the CARES Act Loan.

(e) Material Adverse Effect. The Administrative Agent shall have determined, in its reasonable judgment, that no event or
development shall have occurred since December 31, 2018, which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

® Liens; Priority. The Administrative Agent shall be satisfied that the Administrative Agent has been granted, and holds,
for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, a perfected, first priority Lien on and security interest in all of the Collateral, subject only to
Permitted Liens, to the extent such Liens and security interests are required pursuant to the Loan Documents to be granted or perfected on or before the
Amendment Effective Date.

(® Approvals. All consents, authorizations and approvals of, and filings and registrations with, and all other actions in
respect of, any Governmental Authority or other Person required in connection with any Loan Document or the transactions contemplated thereby or the
conduct of the Loan Parties’ business shall have been obtained or made and shall be in full force and effect. There shall exist no claim, action, suit,
investigation, litigation or proceeding (including, without limitation, shareholder or derivative litigation) pending or, to the knowledge of any Loan Party,
threatened in any court or before any arbitrator or Governmental Authority which (i) relates to the Loan Documents or the transactions contemplated
thereby or (ii) could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
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4. Continued Effectiveness of the Financing Agreement and Other Loan Documents. Each Loan Party hereby (a) acknowledges and
consents to this Amendment, (b) confirms and agrees that the Financing Agreement and each other Loan Document to which it is a party is, and shall
continue to be, in full force and effect and is hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects, except that on and after the Amendment Effective Date, all
references in any such Loan Document to “the Financing Agreement”, the “Agreement”, “thereto”, “thereof”, “thereunder” or words of like import
referring to the Financing Agreement shall mean the Financing Agreement as amended by this Amendment, and (c) confirms and agrees that, to the extent
that any such Loan Document purports to assign or pledge to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, or to
grant to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, a security interest in or Lien on any Collateral as security
for the Obligations of the Loan Parties from time to time existing in respect of the Financing Agreement (as amended hereby) and the other Loan
Documents, such pledge, assignment and/or grant of the security interest or Lien is hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects. This Amendment does not
and shall not affect any of the obligations of the Loan Parties, other than as expressly provided herein, including, without limitation, the Loan Parties’
obligations to repay the Loans in accordance with the terms of Financing Agreement or the obligations of the Loan Parties under any Loan Document to
which they are a party, all of which obligations shall remain in full force and effect. Except as expressly provided herein, the execution, delivery and
effectiveness of this Amendment shall not operate as a waiver of any right, power or remedy of Administrative Agent or any Lender under the Financing
Agreement or any other Loan Document nor constitute a waiver of any provision of the Financing Agreement or any other Loan Document.

5. No Novation. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as a substitution or novation of the Obligations outstanding under the
Financing Agreement or instruments securing the same, which shall remain in full force and effect, except as modified hereby.

6. No Representations by Administrative Agent or Lenders. Each Loan Party hereby acknowledges that it has not relied on any
representation, written or oral, express or implied, by Administrative Agent or any Lender, other than those expressly contained herein, in entering into this
Amendment.

7.  Release. Each Loan Party hereby acknowledges and agrees that: (a) neither it nor any of its Subsidiaries has any claim or cause of
action against Administrative Agent or any Lender (or any of the directors, officers, employees, agents, attorneys or consultants of any of the foregoing)
and (b) the Administrative Agent and the Lenders have heretofore properly performed and satisfied in a timely manner all of their obligations to the Loan
Parties, and all of their Subsidiaries and Affiliates. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders wish (and the Loan Parties
agree) to eliminate any possibility that any past conditions, acts, omissions, events or circumstances would impair or otherwise adversely affect any of their
rights, interests, security and/or remedies. Accordingly, for and in consideration of the agreements contained in this Amendment and other good and
valuable consideration, each Loan Party (for itself and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates and the successors, assigns, heirs and representatives of each of the
foregoing) (collectively, the “Releasors”) does hereby fully, finally, unconditionally and irrevocably release, waive and forever discharge the
Administrative Agent and the Lenders, together with their respective Affiliates and Related Funds, and each of the directors, officers, employees, agents,
attorneys and consultants of each of the foregoing (collectively, the “Released Parties”), from any and all debts, claims, allegations, obligations, damages,
costs, attorneys’ fees, suits, demands, liabilities, actions, proceedings and causes of action, in each case, whether known or unknown, contingent or fixed,
direct or indirect, and of whatever nature or description, and whether in law or in equity, under contract, tort, statute or otherwise, which any Releasor has
heretofore had or now or hereafter can, shall or may have against any Released Party by reason of any act, omission or thing whatsoever done or omitted to
be done, in each case, on or prior to the Amendment Effective Date directly arising out of, connected with or related to this Amendment, the Financing
Agreement or any other Loan Document, or any act, event or transaction related or attendant thereto, or the agreements of Administrative Agent or any
Lender contained therein, or the possession, use, operation or control of any of the assets of any Loan Party, or the making of any Loans or other advances,
or the management of such Loans or other advances or the Collateral. Each Loan Party represents and warrants that it has no knowledge of any claim by
any Releasor against any Released Party or of any facts or acts or omissions of any Released Party which on the date hereof would be the basis of a claim
by any Releasor against any Released Party which would not be released hereby.
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8.  Further Assurances. The Loan Parties shall execute any and all further documents, agreements and instruments, and take all further
actions, as may be required under applicable law or as Administrative Agent may reasonably request, in order to effect the purposes of this Amendment.

9.  Miscellaneous.

(a) This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement. Delivery of an
executed counterpart of this Amendment by facsimile or electronic mail shall be equally effective as delivery of an original executed counterpart of this
Amendment.

(b) Section and paragraph headings herein are included for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part of
this Amendment for any other purpose.

(o) This Amendment shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.
(d) Each Loan Party hereby acknowledges and agrees that this Amendment constitutes a “Loan Document” under the
Financing Agreement. Accordingly, it shall be an immediate Event of Default under the Financing Agreement if (i) any representation or warranty made by

any Loan Party under or in connection with this Amendment shall have been incorrect in any respect when made or deemed made, or (ii) any Loan Party
shall fail to perform or observe any term, covenant or agreement contained in this Amendment.
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(e) Any provision of this Amendment that is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction,
be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining portions hereof or affecting the validity or
enforceability of such provision in any other jurisdiction.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be executed and delivered as of the date set forth on the
first page hereof.

BORROWER:
THERAPEUTICSMD, INC.
By: /s/ Daniel Cartwright

Name: Daniel Cartwright
Title: Chief Financial Officer

GUARANTORS:
VITAMEDMD, LLC
By: /s/ Daniel Cartwright

Name: Daniel Cartwright
Title: Chief Financial Officer

BOCAGREENMD, INC.

By: /s/ Daniel Cartwright
Name: Daniel Cartwright
Title: Chief Financial Officer

VITACARE PRESCRIPTION SERVICES, INC.

By: /s/ Daniel Cartwright
Name: Daniel Cartwright
Title: Chief Financial Officer




TPG SPECIALTY LENDING, INC., as Administrative Agent and Lender

By:  /s/ Joshua Easterly

Name: Joshua Easterly
Title: CEO

TOP IV TALENTS, LLC, as Lender

By:  /s/ Joshua Peck

Name: Joshua Peck
Title: Vice President

TAO TALENTS, LLC, as Lender

By:  /s/ Joshua Peck

Name: Joshua Peck
Title: Vice President
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AMENDMENT NO. 3
TO FINANCING AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO FINANCING AGREEMENT, dated as of May 1, 2020 (this “Amendment”), to the Financing Agreement,
dated as of April 24, 2019 (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Financing Agreement”), by and among
THERAPEUTICSMD, INC., a Nevada corporation (“Company” or “Borrower”), certain Subsidiaries of Borrower, as Guarantors, the Lenders from time to
time party thereto, and TPG SPECIALTY LENDING, INC., a Delaware corporation (“TSL”), as administrative agent for the Lenders (in such capacity,
together with its successors and assigns in such capacity, the “Administrative Agent”).

WHEREAS, the Loan Parties have requested that the Administrative Agent and the Lenders amend certain terms and conditions of the
Financing Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders are willing to amend such terms and conditions of the Financing Agreement on
the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. Definitions. All terms used herein that are defined in the Financing Agreement and not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings assigned to them in the Financing Agreement.

2. Amendments.

(€)] New Definitions. Section 1.01 of the Financing Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following definitions, in
appropriate alphabetical order:

@) ““Amendment No. 3” means Amendment No. 3 to Financing Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2020, by and
among the Loan Parties, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders.”

(ii) ““Amendment No. 3 Effective Date” means the “Amendment Effective Date” as set forth in Amendment No.
3.”
(b) Existing_Definitions. The following definition in Section 1.01 of the Financing Agreement is hereby amended as
follows:
@) Clause (n) of the definition of “Permitted Indebtedness” is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as
follows:

“(n) Indebtedness under the CARES Act Loan in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $6,477,094 outstanding at any time.”




3. Conditions to Effectiveness. This Amendment shall become effective only upon satisfaction in full, in a manner satisfactory to the
Administrative Agent, of the following conditions precedent (the first date upon which all such conditions shall have been satisfied being hereinafter
referred to as the “Amendment Effective Date”):

(a) Payment of Fees, Etc. The Borrowers shall have paid on or before the Amendment Effective Date all fees, costs,
expenses and taxes then payable, if any, pursuant to Section 2.7 or 10.2 of the Financing Agreement.

(b) Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties contained in this Amendment and in Article IV of
the Financing Agreement and in each other Loan Document shall be true and correct in all material respects (except that such materiality qualifier shall not
be applicable to any representations or warranties that already are qualified or modified as to “materiality” or “Material Adverse Effect” in the text thereof,
which representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects subject to such qualification) on and as the Amendment Effective Date to the
same extent as though made on and as of that date, except to the extent such representations and warranties specifically relate to an earlier date, in which
case such representations and warranties shall have been true and correct in all material respects (except that such materiality qualifier shall not be
applicable to any representations or warranties that already are qualified or modified as to “materiality” or “Material Adverse Effect” in the text thereof,
which representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects subject to such qualification) on and as of such earlier date.

(o) No Default; Event of Default. No Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing on the Amendment
Effective Date or result from this Amendment becoming effective in accordance with its terms.

(d) Delivery of Documents. The Administrative Agent shall have received on or before the Amendment Effective Date the
following, each in form and substance satisfactory to the Administrative Agent and, unless indicated otherwise, dated the Amendment Effective Date:

@i) this Amendment, duly executed by the Loan Parties, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders; and
(i)  duly executed copies of all documents evidencing the CARES Act Loan.

(e) Material Adverse Effect. The Administrative Agent shall have determined, in its reasonable judgment, that no event or
development shall have occurred since December 31, 2018, which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

® Liens; Priority. The Administrative Agent shall be satisfied that the Administrative Agent has been granted, and holds,
for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, a perfected, first priority Lien on and security interest in all of the Collateral, subject only to
Permitted Liens, to the extent such Liens and security interests are required pursuant to the Loan Documents to be granted or perfected on or before the
Amendment Effective Date.




(®) Approvals. All consents, authorizations and approvals of, and filings and registrations with, and all other actions in
respect of, any Governmental Authority or other Person required in connection with any Loan Document or the transactions contemplated thereby or the
conduct of the Loan Parties’ business shall have been obtained or made and shall be in full force and effect. There shall exist no claim, action, suit,
investigation, litigation or proceeding (including, without limitation, shareholder or derivative litigation) pending or, to the knowledge of any Loan Party,
threatened in any court or before any arbitrator or Governmental Authority which (i) relates to the Loan Documents or the transactions contemplated
thereby or (ii) could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

4. Continued Effectiveness of the Financing Agreement and Other Loan Documents. Each Loan Party hereby (a) acknowledges and
consents to this Amendment, (b) confirms and agrees that the Financing Agreement and each other Loan Document to which it is a party is, and shall
continue to be, in full force and effect and is hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects, except that on and after the Amendment Effective Date, all
references in any such Loan Document to “the Financing Agreement”, the “Agreement”, “thereto”, “thereof”, “thereunder” or words of like import
referring to the Financing Agreement shall mean the Financing Agreement as amended by this Amendment, and (c) confirms and agrees that, to the extent
that any such Loan Document purports to assign or pledge to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, or to
grant to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, a security interest in or Lien on any Collateral as security
for the Obligations of the Loan Parties from time to time existing in respect of the Financing Agreement (as amended hereby) and the other Loan
Documents, such pledge, assignment and/or grant of the security interest or Lien is hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects. This Amendment does not
and shall not affect any of the obligations of the Loan Parties, other than as expressly provided herein, including, without limitation, the Loan Parties’
obligations to repay the Loans in accordance with the terms of Financing Agreement or the obligations of the Loan Parties under any Loan Document to
which they are a party, all of which obligations shall remain in full force and effect. Except as expressly provided herein, the execution, delivery and
effectiveness of this Amendment shall not operate as a waiver of any right, power or remedy of Administrative Agent or any Lender under the Financing
Agreement or any other Loan Document nor constitute a waiver of any provision of the Financing Agreement or any other Loan Document.

5. No Novation. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as a substitution or novation of the Obligations outstanding under the
Financing Agreement or instruments securing the same, which shall remain in full force and effect, except as modified hereby.

6. No Representations by Administrative Agent or Lenders. Each Loan Party hereby acknowledges that it has not relied on any
representation, written or oral, express or implied, by Administrative Agent or any Lender, other than those expressly contained herein, in entering into this
Amendment.

7. Release. Each Loan Party hereby acknowledges and agrees that: (a) neither it nor any of its Subsidiaries has any claim or cause of
action against Administrative Agent or any Lender (or any of the directors, officers, employees, agents, attorneys or consultants of any of the foregoing)
and (b) the Administrative Agent and the Lenders have heretofore properly performed and satisfied in a timely manner all of their obligations to the Loan
Parties, and all of their Subsidiaries and Affiliates. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders wish (and the Loan Parties
agree) to eliminate any possibility that any past conditions, acts, omissions, events or circumstances would impair or otherwise adversely affect any of their
rights, interests, security and/or remedies. Accordingly, for and in consideration of the agreements contained in this Amendment and other good and
valuable consideration, each Loan Party (for itself and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates and the successors, assigns, heirs and representatives of each of the
foregoing) (collectively, the “Releasors”) does hereby fully, finally, unconditionally and irrevocably release, waive and forever discharge the
Administrative Agent and the Lenders, together with their respective Affiliates and Related Funds, and each of the directors, officers, employees, agents,
attorneys and consultants of each of the foregoing (collectively, the “Released Parties”), from any and all debts, claims, allegations, obligations, damages,
costs, attorneys’ fees, suits, demands, liabilities, actions, proceedings and causes of action, in each case, whether known or unknown, contingent or fixed,
direct or indirect, and of whatever nature or description, and whether in law or in equity, under contract, tort, statute or otherwise, which any Releasor has
heretofore had or now or hereafter can, shall or may have against any Released Party by reason of any act, omission or thing whatsoever done or omitted to
be done, in each case, on or prior to the Amendment Effective Date directly arising out of, connected with or related to this Amendment, the Financing
Agreement or any other Loan Document, or any act, event or transaction related or attendant thereto, or the agreements of Administrative Agent or any
Lender contained therein, or the possession, use, operation or control of any of the assets of any Loan Party, or the making of any Loans or other advances,
or the management of such Loans or other advances or the Collateral. Each Loan Party represents and warrants that it has no knowledge of any claim by
any Releasor against any Released Party or of any facts or acts or omissions of any Released Party which on the date hereof would be the basis of a claim
by any Releasor against any Released Party which would not be released hereby.
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8. Further Assurances. The Loan Parties shall execute any and all further documents, agreements and instruments, and take all further
actions, as may be required under applicable law or as Administrative Agent may reasonably request, in order to effect the purposes of this Amendment.

9. Miscellaneous.
(a) This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement. Delivery of an executed

counterpart of this Amendment by facsimile or electronic mail shall be equally effective as delivery of an original executed counterpart of this Amendment.

(b) Section and paragraph headings herein are included for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part of
this Amendment for any other purpose.

(o) This Amendment shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.

-4-




(d) Each Loan Party hereby acknowledges and agrees that this Amendment constitutes a “Loan Document” under the
Financing Agreement. Accordingly, it shall be an immediate Event of Default under the Financing Agreement if (i) any representation or warranty made by
any Loan Party under or in connection with this Amendment shall have been incorrect in any respect when made or deemed made, or (ii) any Loan Party
shall fail to perform or observe any term, covenant or agreement contained in this Amendment.

(e) Any provision of this Amendment that is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be
ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining portions hereof or affecting the validity or enforceability

of such provision in any other jurisdiction.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be executed and delivered as of the date set forth on the
first page hereof.

BORROWER:
THERAPEUTICSMD, INC.
By: /s/ Daniel Cartwright

Name: Daniel Cartwright
Title: Chief Financial Officer

GUARANTORS:
VITAMEDMD, LLC
By: /s/ Daniel Cartwright

Name: Daniel Cartwright
Title: Chief Financial Officer

BOCAGREENMD, INC.

By: /s/ Daniel Cartwright
Name: Daniel Cartwright
Title: Chief Financial Officer

VITACARE PRESCRIPTION SERVICES, INC.

By: /s/ Daniel Cartwright
Name: Daniel Cartwright
Title: Chief Financial Officer




TPG SPECIALTY LENDING, INC., as Administrative Agent and Lender

By: /s/ Joshua Easterly

Name: Joshua Easterly
Title: CEO

TOP IV TALENTS, LLC, as Lender

By: /s/ Joshua Peck

Name: Joshua Peck
Title: Vice President

TAO TALENTS, LLC, as Lender

By: /s/ Joshua Peck

Name: Joshua Peck
Title: Vice President
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AMENDMENT NO. 4
TO FINANCING AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO FINANCING AGREEMENT, dated as of May 13, 2020 (this “Amendment”), to the Financing Agreement,
dated as of April 24, 2019 (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Financing Agreement”), by and among
THERAPEUTICSMD, INC., a Nevada corporation (“Company” or “Borrower”), certain Subsidiaries of Borrower, as Guarantors, the Lenders from time to
time party thereto, and TPG SPECIALTY LENDING, INC., a Delaware corporation (“TSL”), as administrative agent for the Lenders (in such capacity,
together with its successors and assigns in such capacity, the “Administrative Agent”).

WHEREAS, the Loan Parties have requested that the Administrative Agent and the Lenders amend certain terms and conditions of the
Financing Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders are willing to amend such terms and conditions of the Financing Agreement on
the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. Definitions. All terms used herein that are defined in the Financing Agreement and not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings assigned to them in the Financing Agreement.

2. Amendments.

(a) New Definitions. Section 1.01 of the Financing Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following definitions, in
appropriate alphabetical order:

@) ““Amendment No. 4” means Amendment No. 4 to Financing Agreement, dated as of May 13, 2020, by and
among the Loan Parties, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders.”

(ii) ““Amendment No. 4 Effective Date” means the “Amendment Effective Date” as set forth in Amendment No.

(b) Section 6.17 (Prepayments of Certain Indebtedness). Section 6.17 of the Financing Agreement is hereby amended and
restated in its entirety to read as follows:

“Section 6.17 Prepayments of Certain Indebtedness. No Loan Party shall, directly or indirectly, voluntarily purchase, redeem, defease or
prepay any principal of, premium, if any, interest or other amount payable in respect of any Indebtedness prior to its scheduled maturity, other than (a) the
Obligations, (b) Indebtedness secured by a Permitted Lien if the asset securing such Indebtedness has been sold or otherwise disposed of in accordance
with Section 6.9 and (c) Indebtedness under the CARES Act Loan.”




3. Conditions to Effectiveness. This Amendment shall become effective only upon satisfaction in full, in a manner satisfactory to
the Administrative Agent, of the following conditions precedent (the first date upon which all such conditions shall have been satisfied being hereinafter
referred to as the “Amendment Effective Date”):

(a) Payment of Fees, Etc. The Borrowers shall have paid on or before the Amendment Effective Date all fees, costs,
expenses and taxes then payable, if any, pursuant to Section 2.7 or 10.2 of the Financing Agreement.

(b) Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties contained in this Amendment and in Article IV of
the Financing Agreement and in each other Loan Document shall be true and correct in all material respects (except that such materiality qualifier shall not
be applicable to any representations or warranties that already are qualified or modified as to “materiality” or “Material Adverse Effect” in the text thereof,
which representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects subject to such qualification) on and as the Amendment Effective Date to the
same extent as though made on and as of that date, except to the extent such representations and warranties specifically relate to an earlier date, in which
case such representations and warranties shall have been true and correct in all material respects (except that such materiality qualifier shall not be
applicable to any representations or warranties that already are qualified or modified as to “materiality” or “Material Adverse Effect” in the text thereof,
which representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects subject to such qualification) on and as of such earlier date.

(o) No Default; Event of Default. No Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing on the Amendment
Effective Date or result from this Amendment becoming effective in accordance with its terms.

(d) Delivery of Documents. The Administrative Agent shall have received on or before the Amendment Effective Date this
Amendment, duly executed by the Loan Parties, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders.

(e) Material Adverse Effect. The Administrative Agent shall have determined, in its reasonable judgment, that no event or
development shall have occurred since December 31, 2018, which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

® Liens; Priority. The Administrative Agent shall be satisfied that the Administrative Agent has been granted, and holds,
for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, a perfected, first priority Lien on and security interest in all of the Collateral, subject only to
Permitted Liens, to the extent such Liens and security interests are required pursuant to the Loan Documents to be granted or perfected on or before the
Amendment Effective Date.

(®) Approvals. All consents, authorizations and approvals of, and filings and registrations with, and all other actions in
respect of, any Governmental Authority or other Person required in connection with any Loan Document or the transactions contemplated thereby or the
conduct of the Loan Parties’ business shall have been obtained or made and shall be in full force and effect. There shall exist no claim, action, suit,
investigation, litigation or proceeding (including, without limitation, shareholder or derivative litigation) pending or, to the knowledge of any Loan Party,
threatened in any court or before any arbitrator or Governmental Authority which (i) relates to the Loan Documents or the transactions contemplated
thereby or (ii) could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
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4. Continued Effectiveness of the Financing Agreement and Other Loan Documents. Each Loan Party hereby (a) acknowledges and
consents to this Amendment, (b) confirms and agrees that the Financing Agreement and each other Loan Document to which it is a party is, and shall
continue to be, in full force and effect and is hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects, except that on and after the Amendment Effective Date, all
references in any such Loan Document to “the Financing Agreement”, the “Agreement”, “thereto”, “thereof”, “thereunder” or words of like import
referring to the Financing Agreement shall mean the Financing Agreement as amended by this Amendment, and (c) confirms and agrees that, to the extent
that any such Loan Document purports to assign or pledge to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, or to
grant to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, a security interest in or Lien on any Collateral as security
for the Obligations of the Loan Parties from time to time existing in respect of the Financing Agreement (as amended hereby) and the other Loan
Documents, such pledge, assignment and/or grant of the security interest or Lien is hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects. This Amendment does not
and shall not affect any of the obligations of the Loan Parties, other than as expressly provided herein, including, without limitation, the Loan Parties’
obligations to repay the Loans in accordance with the terms of Financing Agreement or the obligations of the Loan Parties under any Loan Document to
which they are a party, all of which obligations shall remain in full force and effect. Except as expressly provided herein, the execution, delivery and
effectiveness of this Amendment shall not operate as a waiver of any right, power or remedy of Administrative Agent or any Lender under the Financing
Agreement or any other Loan Document nor constitute a waiver of any provision of the Financing Agreement or any other Loan Document.

5. No Novation. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as a substitution or novation of the Obligations outstanding under the
Financing Agreement or instruments securing the same, which shall remain in full force and effect, except as modified hereby.

6. No Representations by Administrative Agent or Lenders. Each Loan Party hereby acknowledges that it has not relied on any
representation, written or oral, express or implied, by Administrative Agent or any Lender, other than those expressly contained herein, in entering into this
Amendment.

7. Release. Each Loan Party hereby acknowledges and agrees that: (a) neither it nor any of its Subsidiaries has any claim or cause
of action against Administrative Agent or any Lender (or any of the directors, officers, employees, agents, attorneys or consultants of any of the foregoing)
and (b) the Administrative Agent and the Lenders have heretofore properly performed and satisfied in a timely manner all of their obligations to the Loan
Parties, and all of their Subsidiaries and Affiliates. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders wish (and the Loan Parties
agree) to eliminate any possibility that any past conditions, acts, omissions, events or circumstances would impair or otherwise adversely affect any of their
rights, interests, security and/or remedies. Accordingly, for and in consideration of the agreements contained in this Amendment and other good and
valuable consideration, each Loan Party (for itself and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates and the successors, assigns, heirs and representatives of each of the
foregoing) (collectively, the “Releasors”) does hereby fully, finally, unconditionally and irrevocably release, waive and forever discharge the
Administrative Agent and the Lenders, together with their respective Affiliates and Related Funds, and each of the directors, officers, employees, agents,
attorneys and consultants of each of the foregoing (collectively, the “Released Parties”), from any and all debts, claims, allegations, obligations, damages,
costs, attorneys’ fees, suits, demands, liabilities, actions, proceedings and causes of action, in each case, whether known or unknown, contingent or fixed,
direct or indirect, and of whatever nature or description, and whether in law or in equity, under contract, tort, statute or otherwise, which any Releasor has
heretofore had or now or hereafter can, shall or may have against any Released Party by reason of any act, omission or thing whatsoever done or omitted to
be done, in each case, on or prior to the Amendment Effective Date directly arising out of, connected with or related to this Amendment, the Financing
Agreement or any other Loan Document, or any act, event or transaction related or attendant thereto, or the agreements of Administrative Agent or any
Lender contained therein, or the possession, use, operation or control of any of the assets of any Loan Party, or the making of any Loans or other advances,
or the management of such Loans or other advances or the Collateral. Each Loan Party represents and warrants that it has no knowledge of any claim by
any Releasor against any Released Party or of any facts or acts or omissions of any Released Party which on the date hereof would be the basis of a claim
by any Releasor against any Released Party which would not be released hereby.
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8. Further Assurances. The Loan Parties shall execute any and all further documents, agreements and instruments, and take all
further actions, as may be required under applicable law or as Administrative Agent may reasonably request, in order to effect the purposes of this
Amendment.

9. Miscellaneous.

(a This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement. Delivery of an
executed counterpart of this Amendment by facsimile or electronic mail shall be equally effective as delivery of an original executed counterpart of this
Amendment.

(b) Section and paragraph headings herein are included for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part of
this Amendment for any other purpose.

(o) This Amendment shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.
(d) Each Loan Party hereby acknowledges and agrees that this Amendment constitutes a “Loan Document” under the
Financing Agreement. Accordingly, it shall be an immediate Event of Default under the Financing Agreement if (i) any representation or warranty made by

any Loan Party under or in connection with this Amendment shall have been incorrect in any respect when made or deemed made, or (ii) any Loan Party
shall fail to perform or observe any term, covenant or agreement contained in this Amendment.
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(e) Any provision of this Amendment that is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction,
be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining portions hereof or affecting the validity or
enforceability of such provision in any other jurisdiction.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be executed and delivered as of the date set forth on the
first page hereof.

BORROWER:
THERAPEUTICSMD, INC.
By:  /s/ Daniel Cartwright

Name: Daniel Cartwright
Title: Chief Financial Officer

GUARANTORS:
VITAMEDMD, LLC
By:  /s/ Daniel Cartwright

Name: Daniel Cartwright
Title: Chief Financial Officer

BOCAGREENMD, INC.

By:  /s/ Daniel Cartwright
Name: Daniel Cartwright
Title: Chief Financial Officer

VITACARE PRESCRIPTION SERVICES, INC.

By:  /s/ Daniel Cartwright
Name: Daniel Cartwright
Title: Chief Financial Officer




TPG SPECIALTY LENDING, INC., as Administrative Agent and Lender

By:  /s/ Joshua Easterly

Name: Joshua Easterly
Title: CEO

TOP IV TALENTS, LLC, as Lender

By:  /s/ Joshua Peck

Name: Joshua Peck
Title: Vice President

TAO TALENTS, LLC, as Lender

By:  /s/ Joshua Peck

Name: Joshua Peck
Title: Vice President
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AMENDMENT NO. 5
TO FINANCING AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT NO. 5 TO FINANCING AGREEMENT, dated as of August 5, 2020 (this “Amendment”), to the Financing
Agreement, dated as of April 24, 2019 (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Financing Agreement”), by and
among THERAPEUTICSMD, INC., a Nevada corporation (“Company” or “Borrower”), certain Subsidiaries of Borrower, as Guarantors, the Lenders from
time to time party thereto, and SIXTH STREET SPECIALTY LENDING, INC. (f/k/a TPG Specialty Lending, Inc.), a Delaware corporation (“Sixth
Street”), as administrative agent for the Lenders (in such capacity, together with its successors and assigns in such capacity, the “Administrative Agent”).

WHEREAS, the Loan Parties have requested that the Administrative Agent and the Lenders amend certain terms and conditions of the
Financing Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders are willing to amend such terms and conditions of the Financing Agreement on
the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. Definitions. All terms used herein that are defined in the Financing Agreement and not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings assigned to them in the Financing Agreement.

2. Amendments.

(a) Certain References. All references in the Financing Agreement to (i) TPG Specialty Lending, Inc. are hereby deemed
to refer to Sixth Street Specialty Lending, Inc. and (ii) TSL are hereby deemed to refer to Sixth Street.

(b) New Definitions. Section 1.01 of the Financing Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following definitions, in
appropriate alphabetical order:

@) ““Amendment No. 5” means Amendment No. 5 to Financing Agreement, dated as of August 5, 2020, by
and among the Loan Parties, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders.”

(ii) ““Amendment No. 5 Effective Date” means the “Amendment Effective Date” as set forth in Amendment
No. 5.”

(o) Section 6.8(b)_(Minimum Revenue). Section 6.8(b) of the Financing Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its
entirety to read as follows:




“(b) Minimum Revenue. Borrower shall not permit Product Revenue for any Fiscal Quarter set forth below to be less than the amount set
forth opposite such Fiscal Quarter:

Fiscal Quarter Ending Product Revenue
December 31, 2020 $20,000,000
March 31, 2021 $25,000,000

June 30, 2021 $37,500,000
September 30, 2021 $47,500,000
December 31, 2021 $57,500,000
March 31, 2022 $65,000,000

June 30, 2022 $75,000,000
September 30, 2022 $85,000,000
December 31, 2022 and each Fiscal Quarter thereafter $95,000,000”

(d) Appendix B. Appendix B to the Financing Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety in the form

annexed hereto as Exhibit 1.

3. Conditions to Effectiveness. This Amendment shall become effective only upon satisfaction in full, in a manner satisfactory to the
Administrative Agent, of the following conditions precedent (the first date upon which all such conditions shall have been satisfied being hereinafter
referred to as the “Amendment Effective Date”):

(a) Payment of Fees, Etc. The Borrowers shall have paid on or before the Amendment Effective Date all fees, costs,
expenses and taxes then payable, if any, pursuant to Section 2.7 or 10.2 of the Financing Agreement.

(b) Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties contained in this Amendment and in Article IV of
the Financing Agreement and in each other Loan Document shall be true and correct in all material respects (except that such materiality qualifier shall not
be applicable to any representations or warranties that already are qualified or modified as to “materiality” or “Material Adverse Effect” in the text thereof,
which representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects subject to such qualification) on and as the Amendment Effective Date to the
same extent as though made on and as of that date, except to the extent such representations and warranties specifically relate to an earlier date, in which
case such representations and warranties shall have been true and correct in all material respects (except that such materiality qualifier shall not be
applicable to any representations or warranties that already are qualified or modified as to “materiality” or “Material Adverse Effect” in the text thereof,
which representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects subject to such qualification) on and as of such earlier date.
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(o) No Default; Event of Default. No Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing on the Amendment
Effective Date or result from this Amendment becoming effective in accordance with its terms.

(d) Delivery of Documents. The Administrative Agent shall have received on or before the Amendment Effective Date:
@) this Amendment, duly executed by the Loan Parties, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders; and
(ii) (A) the Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of the Borrower and (B) the Subscription Agreement between

the Borrower and Sixth Street, in each case dated as of the date hereof and in form and substance acceptable to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders.

(e) Material Adverse Effect. The Administrative Agent shall have determined, in its reasonable judgment, that no event or
development shall have occurred since December 31, 2019, which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

® Liens; Priority. The Administrative Agent shall be satisfied that the Administrative Agent has been granted, and holds,
for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, a perfected, first priority Lien on and security interest in all of the Collateral, subject only to
Permitted Liens, to the extent such Liens and security interests are required pursuant to the Loan Documents to be granted or perfected on or before the
Amendment Effective Date.

() Approvals. All consents, authorizations and approvals of, and filings and registrations with, and all other actions in
respect of, any Governmental Authority or other Person required in connection with any Loan Document or the transactions contemplated thereby or the
conduct of the Loan Parties’ business shall have been obtained or made and shall be in full force and effect. There shall exist no claim, action, suit,
investigation, litigation or proceeding (including, without limitation, shareholder or derivative litigation) pending or, to the knowledge of any Loan Party,
threatened in any court or before any arbitrator or Governmental Authority which (i) relates to the Loan Documents or the transactions contemplated
thereby or (ii) could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

4. Continued Effectiveness of the Financing_Agreement and Other Loan Documents. Each Loan Party hereby (a) acknowledges and
consents to this Amendment, (b) confirms and agrees that the Financing Agreement and each other Loan Document to which it is a party is, and shall
continue to be, in full force and effect and is hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects, except that on and after the Amendment Effective Date, all
references in any such Loan Document to “the Financing Agreement”, the “Agreement”, “thereto”, “thereof”, “thereunder” or words of like import
referring to the Financing Agreement shall mean the Financing Agreement as amended by this Amendment, and (c) confirms and agrees that, to the extent
that any such Loan Document purports to assign or pledge to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, or to
grant to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, a security interest in or Lien on any Collateral as security
for the Obligations of the Loan Parties from time to time existing in respect of the Financing Agreement (as amended hereby) and the other Loan
Documents, such pledge, assignment and/or grant of the security interest or Lien is hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects. This Amendment does not
and shall not affect any of the obligations of the Loan Parties, other than as expressly provided herein, including, without limitation, the Loan Parties’
obligations to repay the Loans in accordance with the terms of Financing Agreement or the obligations of the Loan Parties under any Loan Document to
which they are a party, all of which obligations shall remain in full force and effect. Except as expressly provided herein, the execution, delivery and
effectiveness of this Amendment shall not operate as a waiver of any right, power or remedy of Administrative Agent or any Lender under the Financing
Agreement or any other Loan Document nor constitute a waiver of any provision of the Financing Agreement or any other Loan Document.
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5. No Novation. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as a substitution or novation of the Obligations outstanding under the
Financing Agreement or instruments securing the same, which shall remain in full force and effect, except as modified hereby.

6. No Representations by Administrative Agent or Lenders. Each Loan Party hereby acknowledges that it has not relied on any
representation, written or oral, express or implied, by Administrative Agent or any Lender, other than those expressly contained herein, in entering into this
Amendment.

7. Release. Each Loan Party hereby acknowledges and agrees that: (a) neither it nor any of its Subsidiaries has any claim or cause of
action against Administrative Agent or any Lender (or any of the directors, officers, employees, agents, attorneys or consultants of any of the foregoing)
and (b) the Administrative Agent and the Lenders have heretofore properly performed and satisfied in a timely manner all of their obligations to the Loan
Parties, and all of their Subsidiaries and Affiliates. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders wish (and the Loan Parties
agree) to eliminate any possibility that any past conditions, acts, omissions, events or circumstances would impair or otherwise adversely affect any of their
rights, interests, security and/or remedies. Accordingly, for and in consideration of the agreements contained in this Amendment and other good and
valuable consideration, each Loan Party (for itself and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates and the successors, assigns, heirs and representatives of each of the
foregoing) (collectively, the “Releasors”) does hereby fully, finally, unconditionally and irrevocably release, waive and forever discharge the
Administrative Agent and the Lenders, together with their respective Affiliates and Related Funds, and each of the directors, officers, employees, agents,
attorneys and consultants of each of the foregoing (collectively, the “Released Parties”), from any and all debts, claims, allegations, obligations, damages,
costs, attorneys’ fees, suits, demands, liabilities, actions, proceedings and causes of action, in each case, whether known or unknown, contingent or fixed,
direct or indirect, and of whatever nature or description, and whether in law or in equity, under contract, tort, statute or otherwise, which any Releasor has
heretofore had or now or hereafter can, shall or may have against any Released Party by reason of any act, omission or thing whatsoever done or omitted to
be done, in each case, on or prior to the Amendment Effective Date directly arising out of, connected with or related to this Amendment, the Financing
Agreement or any other Loan Document, or any act, event or transaction related or attendant thereto, or the agreements of Administrative Agent or any
Lender contained therein, or the possession, use, operation or control of any of the assets of any Loan Party, or the making of any Loans or other advances,
or the management of such Loans or other advances or the Collateral. Each Loan Party represents and warrants that it has no knowledge of any claim by
any Releasor against any Released Party or of any facts or acts or omissions of any Released Party which on the date hereof would be the basis of a claim
by any Releasor against any Released Party which would not be released hereby.
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8. Further Assurances. The Loan Parties shall execute any and all further documents, agreements and instruments, and take all further
actions, as may be required under applicable law or as Administrative Agent may reasonably request, in order to effect the purposes of this Amendment.

9. Miscellaneous.

(a) This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement. Delivery of an
executed counterpart of this Amendment by facsimile or electronic mail shall be equally effective as delivery of an original executed counterpart of this
Amendment.

(b) Section and paragraph headings herein are included for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part
of this Amendment for any other purpose.

(o) This Amendment shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.

(d) Each Loan Party hereby acknowledges and agrees that this Amendment constitutes a “Loan Document” under the
Financing Agreement. Accordingly, it shall be an immediate Event of Default under the Financing Agreement if (i) any representation or warranty made by
any Loan Party under or in connection with this Amendment shall have been incorrect in any respect when made or deemed made, or (ii) any Loan Party
shall fail to perform or observe any term, covenant or agreement contained in this Amendment.

(e) Any provision of this Amendment that is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction,
be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining portions hereof or affecting the validity or

enforceability of such provision in any other jurisdiction.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be executed and delivered as of the date set forth on the
first page hereof.

BORROWER:
THERAPEUTICSMD, INC.
By:  /s/ Robert G. Finizio

Name: Robert G. Finizio
Title: Chief Executive Officer

GUARANTORS:
VITAMEDMD, LLC
By:  /s/ Robert G. Finizio

Name: Robert G. Finizio
Title: Manager

BOCAGREENMD, INC.

By:  /s/ Robert G. Finizio
Name: Robert G. Finizio
Title: Chief Executive Officer

VITACARE PRESCRIPTION SERVICES, INC.

By:  /s/John C.K. Milligan, IV
Name: John C.K. Milligan, IV
Title: Assistant Secretary




SIXTH STREET SPECIALTY LENDING, INC., as Administrative Agent
and Lender

By: /s/ Joshua Easterly

Name: Joshua Easterly
Title: Chief Executive Officer

TOP IV TALENTS, LLC, as Lender

By: /s/ Joshua Peck

Name: Joshua Peck
Title: Vice President

TAO TALENTS, LLC, as Lender

By: /s/ Joshua Peck

Name: Joshua Peck
Title: Vice President




APPENDIX B
TO FINANCING AGREEMENT

Notice Addresses
THERAPEUTICSMD, INC.

951 Yamato Road, Suite 220
Boca Raton, FL. 33431
Attention: James C. D’ Arecca, Chief Financial Officer

VITAMEDMD, LLC
BOCAGREENMD, INC.
VITACARE PRESCRIPTION SERVICES, INC.

951 Yamato Road, Suite 220
Boca Raton, FL 33431
Attention: James C. D’ Arecca, Chief Financial Officer

in each case, with a copy to:

DLA Piper LLP

200 South Biscayne Boulevard
Suite 2500

Miami, FL 33131

Attention: Joshua M. Samek

Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 5




SIXTH STREET SPECIALTY LENDING, INC,, as
Administrative Agent and a Lender

Administrative Agent’s Principal Office:
888 7th Avenue, 35th Floor
New York, NY 10106
Attention: Parker Hooper

with a copy to:

Proskauer Rose LLP

Eleven Times Square

New York, New York 10036
Attention: Frederic L. Ragucci

TOP IV TALENTS, LLC and

TAO TALENTS, LLC

as Lenders
2100 McKinney Avenue, Suite 1030
Dallas, Texas 75201
Attention: TSSPOps

with a copy to:

Proskauer Rose LLP

Eleven Times Square

New York, New York 10036
Attention: Frederic L. Ragucci
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SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

This Subscription Agreement is entered into and dated as of August 5, 2020 (this “Agreement”), by and among TherapeuticsMD, Inc., a Nevada
corporation with offices located at 951 Yamato Road, Suite 220, Boca Raton, FL 33431 (the “Company”), and the Subscribers identified on the Schedule
of Subscribers attached hereto (each, a “Subscriber” and, together, the “Subscribers”). Capitalized terms not defined below shall have the meaning as set
forth in Section 1.1.

RECITALS

A. The Company and each Subscriber is executing and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon the exemption from securities registration
afforded by Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”), and Rule 506 of Regulation D (“Regulation D”) as promulgated
by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) under the 1933 Act.

B. The Company is a borrower under that certain Financing Agreement, dated as of April 24, 2019, by and among the Company, as borrower,
certain subsidiaries of the Company, as guarantors, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and Sixth Street Specialty Lending, Inc. (f/k/a TPG
Specialty Lending, Inc.), as administrative agent for the lenders thereunder (as amended, amended and restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time, the “Financing Agreement”).

C. To induce the Subscribers (or Affiliates thereof) to further amend the Financing Agreement, the Company wishes to issue, upon the terms
and conditions stated in this Agreement, a warrant to acquire up to that aggregate number of shares of Common Stock set forth opposite such Subscriber’s
name in column (3) on the Schedule of Subscribers, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Warrants”) (as exercised, collectively, the “Warrant
Shares”), subject to adjustment for any stock split, stock dividend, stock combination, reclassification or similar transaction.

E.  The Warrants and the Warrant Shares are collectively referred to herein as the “Securities.”

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and each Subscriber, severally and not jointly, agree as follows:




ARTICLE I.
DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definitions. In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth in this
Section 1.1:

“1934 Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
“Affiliate” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Rule 405 of the 1933 Act.

“Business Day” means any day other than Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in the City of New York, New
York are authorized or required by law to remain closed; provided, however, for clarification, commercial banks shall not be deemed to be authorized or
required by law to remain closed due to “stay at home”, “shelter-in-place”, “non-essential employee” or any other similar orders or restrictions or the
closure of any physical branch locations at the direction of any governmental authority so long as the electronic funds transfer systems (including for wire

transfers) of commercial banks in the City of New York, New York generally are open for use by customers on such day.

“Common Stock” means (a) the Company’s shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, and (b) any share capital into which
such common stock shall have been changed or any share capital resulting from a reclassification, reorganization or recapitalization of such common stock.

“Designee” means Sixth Street Specialty Lending, Inc.

“Eligible Market” means the Principal Market, the NYSE American, The Nasdaq Global Select Market, The Nasdaq Global Market,
The Nasdaq Capital Market or The New York Stock Exchange, Inc.

“Governmental Authority” shall mean any: (a) nation, state, commonwealth, province, territory, county, municipality, district or other
jurisdiction of any nature; (b) federal, state, provincial, local, municipal, foreign or other government; (c) governmental or quasi-governmental authority of
any nature (including any governmental division, department, agency, commission, commissioner, bureau, tribunal, instrumentality, official, ministry, fund,
foundation, center, organization, board, unit, body or Person and any court or other tribunal); or (d) regulatory or self-regulatory organization (including the
Principal Market or other applicable Eligible Market).

“Lien” means any mortgage, deed of trust, lien, charge, claim, encumbrance, security interest, right of first refusal, preemptive right or
other restrictions of any kind.

“Person” means an individual or corporation, partnership, trust, incorporated or unincorporated association, joint venture, limited
liability company, joint stock company, government (or an agency or subdivision thereof) or other entity of any kind.

-




“Principal Market” means The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC.

“Proceeding” means an action, claim, suit, inquiry, investigation or proceeding (including, without limitation, an investigation or partial
proceeding, such as a deposition), whether commenced or, to the Company’s knowledge, threatened in writing.

“Required Holders” means the holders of Warrants representing at least a majority of the number of shares of Common Stock issuable
upon exercise of the Warrants then outstanding and shall include the Designee so long as the Designee or any of its Affiliates holds any Warrants.

“SEC Reports” shall mean all reports, schedules, forms, applications and other documents, together with any amendments required to be
made with respect thereto, required to be filed by the Company under the 1933 Act and the 1934 Act, including pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) thereof,
for the two (2) years preceding the date hereof (or such shorter period as the Company was required by law or regulation to file such materials).

“Subsidiary” has the meaning as set forth in the Financing Agreement.

“Trading Day” means any day on which the Common Stock is traded on the Principal Market, or, if the Principal Market is not the
principal trading market for the Common Stock, then on the principal securities exchange or securities market on which the Common Stock is then traded.

“Transaction Documents” means this Agreement, the Warrants and any other documents, certificates, letters of instruction, or
agreements executed or delivered in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, but shall not include the Loan Documents (as defined in the
Financing Agreement).

ARTICLE II.
PURCHASE AND SALE

2.1 Purchase and Sale of the Securities. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, each Subscriber agrees, severally and not
jointly, to purchase from the Company, and the Company agrees to sell and issue to each Subscriber, at the Closing, such Warrants to acquire up to that
aggregate number of Warrant Shares as is set forth opposite such Subscriber’s name in column (3) on the Schedule of Subscribers.

2.2 Closing. The issuance of the Warrants pursuant to the terms of this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall take place remotely by electronic
transfer of Closing documentation at 10:00 a.m. (New York City time) on the date hereof (the “Closing Date”).

2.3 Form of Payment. On the Closing Date, the Company shall deliver to each Subscriber a Warrant pursuant to which such Subscriber shall
have the right to acquire up to such aggregate number of Warrant Shares as is set forth opposite such Subscriber’s name in column (3) of the Schedule of
Subscribers, duly executed on behalf of the Company and registered in the name of such Subscriber or its designee.
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2.4 Tax Matters. The parties agree that for U.S. federal income tax purposes (a) pursuant to Treasury Regulation 1.761-3 the Warrant shall not
be treated as stock of the Company unless and until exercised in accordance with the terms hereof, (b) the issuance of the Warrant shall be treated as a
payment in respect of the Initial Term Loan (as defined in the Financing Agreement) (and not as a fee or as a payment of interest) and (c) (1) the Initial
Term Loan and the Warrant constitute an “investment unit” and (2) the issue price of the Initial Term Loan is $192,500,000 and the issue price of the
Warrant is $7,500,000 (clauses (a) through (b), the “Tax Treatment”). Neither the Company nor the Subscribers shall take any position inconsistent with
the Tax Treatment on any tax return except required otherwise by a change in law or pursuant to a final determination by an applicable tax authority.

ARTICLE III.
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

3.1 Representations and Warranties of the Company. The Company hereby represents and warrants as of the date hereof and as of the Closing
Date (except for representations and warranties that speak as of a specific date, which shall be made as of such date) to each of the Subscribers, except as
set forth in the Schedules delivered herewith:

(a Authorization; Enforcement. The Company has the requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and to consummate
the transactions contemplated by each of the Transaction Documents and otherwise to carry out its respective obligations hereunder and thereunder. Other
than the Required Approvals (as defined in Section 3.1(c)), the execution and delivery by the Company of each of the Transaction Documents to which it is
a party and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereunder and thereunder have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part
of the Company and no further consent or action is required by the Company, or its board of directors or stockholders. Each Transaction Document has
been (or upon delivery will have been) duly executed by the Company, and, when delivered in accordance with the terms hereof, will constitute the valid
and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against the Company, in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by
general principles of equity or applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, liquidation or similar laws relating to, or affecting generally,
the enforcement of applicable creditors’ rights and remedies and except as rights to indemnification and to contribution may be limited by federal or state
securities law.

(b) No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance of the Transaction Documents by the Company and the
consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (including, without limitation, the issuance of the Warrants and the
Warrant Shares and the reservation for issuance of the Warrant Shares) do not and will not (i) conflict with or violate any provision of the Company’s or
any of its Subsidiaries’ certificate or articles of incorporation, bylaws or other organizational or charter documents, (ii) conflict with, or constitute a default
(or an event that with notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) under, result in the creation of any Lien upon any of the properties or assets
of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation (with or without notice,
lapse of time or both) of, any agreement, credit facility, debt or other instrument (evidencing a Company or a Company Subsidiary’s debt or otherwise) or
other understanding to which the Company any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which any property or asset of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is
bound or affected, or (iii) result in a violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment, injunction, decree or other restriction of any Governmental
Authority to which the Company or a Company Subsidiary is subject (including, without limitation, foreign, federal and state securities laws and
regulations and the rules and regulations of the Principal Market), or by which any property or asset of the Company or a Company Subsidiary is bound or
affected; except in the case of clause (ii) or (iii) above, as would not, reasonably be expected to, (i) have or result in a material adverse effect on the legality,
validity, binding effect or enforceability of any Transaction Document, (ii) have or result in a material adverse effect on the business operations, properties,
assets, condition (financial or otherwise) or liabilities of the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (iii) have or result in a material adverse
effect on the Company’s authority or ability to perform fully on a timely basis its obligations under any Transaction Document (any of (i), (ii) or (iii), a
“Material Adverse Effect”).
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(0 Filings, Consents and Approvals. Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is required to obtain any consent,
waiver, authorization, permit or order of, give any notice to, or make any filing or registration with, any Governmental Authority or other Person in
connection with the execution, delivery and performance by the Company of the Transaction Documents, other than (i) the filing by the Company of a
Notice of Sale of Securities on Form D with the Commission under Regulation D and state and applicable Blue Sky filings, (ii) the filing of any requisite
notices and/or applications(s) to the Principal Market for the issuance and sale of the Warrants and the issuance of the Warrant Shares upon exercise of the
Warrants and the listing of the Warrant Shares for trading thereon, and (iii) the filing of a Current Report on Form 8-K, or the disclosure required thereby in
another filing, with the Commission (collectively, but excluding the foregoing clauses (i) through (iii), the “Required Approvals”). All Required
Approvals have been obtained or effected on or prior to the Closing Date, and neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary are aware of any facts or
circumstances which might prevent the Company or any Company Subsidiary from obtaining or effecting any of the registration, application or filings
contemplated by the Transaction Documents. The Company is not in violation of any material requirements of the Principal Market and has no knowledge
of any facts or circumstances which would reasonably be expected to result in the delisting or suspension of the Common Stock in the foreseeable future.

(d) Issuance of the Securities. The issuance of the Warrants is duly authorized and, upon issuance in accordance with the terms of
the Transaction Documents, the Warrants will be validly issued free from all preemptive or similar rights, taxes, Liens (other than Liens under the 1933 Act
and applicable Blue Sky laws) and charges with respect to the issue thereof. As of the Closing, the Company shall have reserved from its duly authorized
capital stock not less than 100% of the maximum number of Warrant Shares issuable upon exercise of the Warrants (without taking into account any
limitations on the exercise of the Warrants set forth therein). Upon exercise in accordance with the Warrants, the Warrant Shares when issued, will be
validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and free from all preemptive or similar rights, taxes, Liens and charges with respect to the issue thereof, with
the holders being entitled to all rights accorded to a holder of Common Stock (as set forth in the applicable charter documents). Subject to the accuracy of
the representations and warranties of the Subscribers in this Agreement, the offer and issuance by the Company of the Securities is exempt from
registration under the 1933 Act.
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(e) Capitalization. The number of shares and type of all authorized, issued and outstanding capital stock of the Company has been
set forth in the SEC Reports and has changed since the date set forth in the most recent applicable SEC Report only to reflect exercises of stock options and
other convertible securities that have not been required to be reported by the Company under the 1934 Act. Without limiting the foregoing, as of the date
hereof, immediately prior to the issuance of the Warrants, the authorized capital stock of the Company consists of (i) 600,000,000 shares of Common
Stock, of which 272,294,380 shares are issued and outstanding, 24,590,141 shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to issued and outstanding options,
12,658,298 shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to securities (other than the aforementioned options) exercisable or exchangeable for, or convertible
into, shares of Common Stock, 3,286,444 shares are reserved for issuance under the Company’s 2019 Stock Incentive Plan, and 5,400,000 shares are
reserved for issuance under the Company’s 2020 Employee Stock Purchase Plan; and (ii) 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share,
none of which are outstanding. Other than as stated in the immediately preceding sentence, the Company does not have any outstanding securities that are
exercisable or exchangeable for, or convertible into, shares of Common Stock. All of such outstanding shares are duly authorized and have been, or upon
issuance will be, validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable. No securities of the Company are entitled to preemptive or similar rights, and no
Person has any right of first refusal, preemptive right, right of participation, or any similar right to participate in the transactions contemplated by the
Transaction Documents. There are no securities or instruments containing anti-dilution or similar provisions that will be triggered by the issuance of the
Securities. The Company does not have any stock appreciation rights or “phantom stock” or similar plans or agreements currently outstanding except as
disclosed above.

® Certain Fees. No brokerage or finder’s fees or commissions are or will be payable by the Subscribers to any broker, financial
advisor or consultant, finder, placement agent, investment banker, bank or other Person with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement as
a result of an agreement entered into by the Company.

(®) Private Placement; No Integrated Offering; No General Solicitation; No Disqualification Events. Assuming in part the
accuracy of each Subscriber’s representations and warranties set forth in Section 3.2(c)-(g), (i) no registration under the 1933 Act is required for the offer
and sale of the Securities by the Company to the Subscribers under the Transaction Documents, and (ii) the issuance and sale of the Securities hereunder
does not contravene the rules and regulations of the Principal Market. Assuming in part the accuracy of the Subscribers’ representations and warranties set
forth in Section 3.2, neither the Company, the Company Subsidiaries, any of their respective Affiliates, nor any Person acting on their behalf has, directly
or indirectly, made any offers or sales of any Company security or solicited any offers to buy any security, under circumstances that would require
registration of the issuance of any of the Securities under the 1933 Act, whether through integration with prior offerings or otherwise or cause this offering
of the Securities to require approval of stockholders of the Company for purposes of the 1933 Act or any applicable stockholder approval provisions,
including, without limitation, under the rules and regulations of any exchange or automated quotation system on which any of the securities of the
Company are listed or designated. Neither the Company, the Company Subsidiaries nor their Affiliates, nor any Person acting on its or their behalf, has
engaged in any form of general solicitation or general advertising (within the meaning of Regulation D) in connection with the offer or sale of the
Securities. With respect to Securities to be offered and sold hereunder in reliance on Rule 506(b) under the 1933 Act (“Regulation D Securities”), none of
the Company, any of its predecessors, any affiliated issuer, any director, executive officer, other officer of the Company participating in the offering
hereunder, any beneficial owner of 20% or more of the Company’s outstanding voting equity securities, calculated on the basis of voting power, nor any
promoter (as that term is defined in Rule 405 under the 1933 Act) connected with the Company in any capacity at the time of sale, nor any other Person
covered by Rule 506(d) (each, an “Issuer Covered Person” and, together, “Issuer Covered Persons”) is or has been subject to any of the “Bad Actor”
disqualifications described in Rule 506(d)(1)(i) to (viii) under the 1933 Act (a “Disqualification Event”), except for a Disqualification Event covered by
Rule 506(d)(2) or (d)(3). The Company has determined that no Issuer Covered Person is subject to a Disqualification Event. The Company has complied,
to the extent applicable, with its disclosure obligations under Rule 506(e), and has furnished to the Subscribers a copy of any disclosures provided
thereunder. No Person has been or will be paid (directly or indirectly) remuneration for solicitation of Subscribers or potential purchasers in connection
with the sale of any Regulation D Securities.

-6-




(h) Application of Takeover Protections. The Company and its Board of Directors have taken all necessary action, if any, in order
to render inapplicable any control share acquisition, interested stockholder, business combination, poison pill (including any distribution under a rights
agreement, or similar arrangement or plan) or other similar anti-takeover provision under the Company’s articles of incorporation and bylaws, each as
amended, that is or could become applicable to the Subscribers as a result of the Subscribers and the Company fulfilling their obligations or exercising their
rights under the Transaction Documents, including without limitation as a result of the Company’s issuance of the Securities and the Subscribers’
ownership of the Securities. The Company and its Board of Directors have taken all necessary action, if any, in order to render inapplicable any stockholder
rights plan or similar arrangement now in effect relating to accumulations of beneficial ownership of shares of Common Stock or a change in control of the
Company or any Company Subsidiary.

@) Transfer Taxes. On the Closing Date, all stock transfer or other taxes (other than income or similar taxes) which are required
to be paid in connection with the sale and transfer of the Securities to be sold to each Subscriber hereunder will be, or will have been, fully paid or provided
for by the Company, and all laws imposing such taxes will be or will have been complied with.

G Investment Company Status. Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is, and upon consummation of the sale of
the Securities, will not be, an “investment company,” a company controlled by an “investment company” or an “affiliated person” of, or “promoter” or
“principal underwriter” for, an “investment company” as such terms are defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

k) U.S. Real Property Holding Corporation. The Company is not and has never been a U.S. real property holding corporation

within the meaning of Section 897 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Company shall so certify upon any Subscriber’s request.
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O Loan Documents. The Company hereby acknowledges and agrees that each of the Transaction Documents constitutes a
“Loan Document” under the Financing Agreement, including for purposes of determining an Event of Default under the Financing Agreement.

3.2 Representations and Warranties of the Subscribers. Each Subscriber hereby, as to itself only and for no other Subscriber, represents and
warrants as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date (except for representations and warranties that speak as of a specific date, which shall be made as
of such date) to the Company as follows:

(a) Organization; Authority. Such Subscriber is an entity duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of
the jurisdiction of its organization with the requisite power and authority to enter into and to consummate the transactions contemplated by the Transaction
Documents and otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder and thereunder. The execution, delivery and performance by such Subscriber of the
Transaction Documents to which it is a party have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of such Subscriber. Each of the Transaction
Documents to which such Subscriber is a party has been duly executed by such Subscriber and, when delivered by such Subscriber in accordance with
terms hereof, will constitute the valid and legally binding obligation of such Subscriber, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except as such
enforceability may be limited by general principles of equity or applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, liquidation or similar laws
relating to, or affecting generally, the enforcement of applicable creditors’ rights and remedies.

(b) No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance of the Transaction Documents by such Subscriber and the
consummation by such Subscriber of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby do not and will not (i) conflict with or violate any provision of such
Subscriber’s certificate or articles of incorporation, bylaws or other organizational or charter documents, (ii) conflict with, or constitute a default (or an
event which with notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or
cancellation of, any agreement, indenture or instrument to which such Subscriber is a party or by which any property or asset of such Subscriber is bound
or affected, or (iii) result in a violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment, injunction, decree or other restriction of any Governmental Authority
to which such Subscriber is subject (including, without limitation, foreign, federal and state securities laws and regulations); except in the case of clause (ii)
or (iii) above, as would not, reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on the ability of the Subscriber to
perform its obligations thereunder.

(0 Investment Intent. Such Subscriber is acquiring the Securities as principal for its own account for investment purposes and not
with a view to distributing or reselling such Securities or any part thereof in violation of applicable securities laws, without prejudice, however, to such
Subscriber’s right at all times to sell or otherwise dispose of all or any part of such Securities in compliance with applicable federal and state securities
laws. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed a representation or warranty by such Subscriber to hold the Securities for any period of time.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, such Subscriber understands that the Securities have not been registered under the 1933 Act, and therefore the Securities
may not be sold, assigned or transferred unless pursuant to (i) an effective registration statement under the 1933 Act with respect thereto or (ii) an available
exemption from the registration requirements of the 1933 Act. Such Subscriber has been advised or is aware of the provisions of Rule 144 promulgated
under the 1933 Act (or a successor rule thereto) (collectively, “Rule 144”) as in effect from time to time, which permit limited resale of shares purchased in
a private placement subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions.
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(d) Subscriber Status. At the time such Subscriber was offered the Securities, it was, and at the date hereof it is, and on each date
on which it exercises the Warrants it will be, an “accredited investor” as defined in Rule 501(a) under the 1933 Act.

(e) Experience of such Subscriber. Such Subscriber, either alone or together with its representatives, has such knowledge,
sophistication and experience in business and financial matters so as to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment in the
Securities, and has so evaluated the merits and risks of such investment. Such Subscriber is able to bear the economic risk of an investment in the Securities
and, at the present time, is able to afford a complete loss of such investment.

® General Solicitation. Such Subscriber is not purchasing the Securities as a result of any advertisement, article, notice or other
communication regarding the Securities published in any newspaper, magazine or similar media or broadcast over television or radio or presented at any
seminar or, to such Subscriber’s knowledge, any other general solicitation or general advertisement.

(® Access to Data. Such Subscriber has received and reviewed information about the Company and has had an opportunity to
discuss the Company’s business, management and financial affairs with its management and to review the Company’s facilities. Such Subscriber
acknowledges that it has been afforded (i) the opportunity to ask such questions as it has deemed necessary of, and to receive answers from, representatives
of the Company concerning the terms and conditions of the offering of the Securities and the merits and risks of investing in the Securities; (ii) access to
information about the Company and its respective financial condition, results of operations, business, properties, management and prospects sufficient to
enable it to evaluate its investment; and (iii) the opportunity to obtain such additional information that the Company possesses or can acquire without
unreasonable effort or expense that is necessary to make an informed investment decision with respect to the investment. In deciding to enter into this
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, such Subscriber has not relied upon any representations and warranties other than the express
representations and warranties contained in the Loan Documents. The foregoing, however, does not limit or modify the representations and warranties
made by the Company in this Agreement or any other provision in this Agreement or the right of the Subscribers to rely thereon. Such Subscriber has
sought such accounting, legal and tax advice as it has considered necessary to make an informed decision with respect to its acquisition of the Securities.

(h) Transfer or Resale. Such Subscriber understands that: (i) the Securities have not been and are not being registered under the
1933 Act or any state securities laws, and may not be offered for sale, sold, assigned or transferred unless (A) subsequently registered thereunder, (B) such
Subscriber shall have delivered to the Company (if requested by the Company) an opinion of counsel to such Subscriber, reasonably satisfactory to the
Company as to such counsel and to the form of opinion, to the effect that such Securities may be sold, assigned or transferred without registration under the
applicable requirements of the 1933 Act; provided, however, that Schulte Roth & Zabel LLP shall be deemed reasonably satisfactory to the Company;
provided, further, that no such opinion shall be required to sell, assign or otherwise transfer all or any portion of such Securities to an Affiliate of the holder
of the Securities, or (C) such Subscriber provides the Company with assurance reasonably satisfactory to the Company that such Securities can be sold,
assigned or transferred pursuant to Rule 144 or to an accredited investor in a private transaction exempt from the registration requirements of the 1933 Act;
(ii) any sale of the Securities made in reliance on Rule 144 may be made only in accordance with the terms of Rule 144; and (iii) neither the Company nor
any other Person is under any obligation to register the Securities under the 1933 Act or any state securities laws or to comply with the terms and
conditions of any exemption thereunder.
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@) Reliance on Exemptions. Such Subscriber understands that the Securities are being offered and sold to it in reliance on
specific exemptions from the registration requirements of United States federal and state securities laws and that the Company is relying in part upon the
truth and accuracy of, and such Subscriber’s compliance with, the representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgements and understandings of such
Subscriber set forth herein in order to determine the availability of such exemptions and the eligibility of such Subscriber to acquire the Securities.

(1)) No Governmental Review. Such Subscriber understands that no United States federal or state agency or any other
government or governmental agency has passed on or made any recommendation or endorsement of the Securities or the fairness or suitability of the
investment in the Securities nor have such authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the offering of the Securities.

k) Legends. Such Subscriber understands that the certificates or other instruments representing the Warrants and the stock
certificates representing the Warrant Shares, except as set forth below, shall bear a restrictive legend in substantially the following form (and a stop-transfer
order may be placed against transfer of such stock certificates):

[NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS WARRANT NOR THE
SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN][THE SECURITIES
REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN] REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933,
AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE,
SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR
THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL
SELECTED BY THE HOLDER, IN A FORM REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY, THAT
REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES
MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING
ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.
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The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Company shall issue a certificate without such legend to the holder of the Securities upon which it is
stamped or issue to such holder by electronic delivery at the applicable balance account at The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), if (i) such Securities
are registered for resale under the 1933 Act and the holder has delivered to the Company a representation that such Securities have been sold pursuant to
such registration statement, or (ii) in connection with a sale, assignment or other transfer, such holder provides the Company with an opinion of counsel,
reasonably satisfactory to the Company as to such counsel and to the form of opinion, to the effect that such sale, assignment or transfer of the Securities
may be made (or was made, as applicable under Rule 144) without registration under the applicable requirements of the 1933 Act; provided, however, that
Schulte Roth & Zabel LLP shall be deemed reasonably satisfactory to the Company; provided, further, that no such opinion shall be required to sell, assign
or otherwise transfer all or any portion of such Securities to an Affiliate of the holder of the Securities. The Company shall be responsible for the fees of its
transfer agent and all DTC fees associated with such issuance.

The Company acknowledges and agrees that no Subscriber makes or has made any representations or warranties with respect to the transactions
contemplated hereby or by any other Transaction Document other than those specifically set forth in Section 3.2.

ARTICLE IV.
OTHER AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES

4.1 Register; Pledge.

(a The Company shall maintain at its principal executive offices (or such other office or agency of the Company as it may
designate by notice to each holder of Securities), a register for each series of the Warrants in which the Company shall record the name and address of the
Person in whose name the Warrants have been issued (including the name and address of each permitted transferee) the number of Warrant Shares issuable
upon exercise of the Warrants held by such Person. The Company shall keep the register open and available at all times during business hours upon
reasonable notice for inspection of any Subscriber or its legal representatives.

(b) The Company acknowledges and agrees that a Subscriber may from time to time pledge or grant a security interest in some or
all of the Securities in connection with a bona fide margin agreement secured by the Securities and, if required under the terms of such agreement, such
Subscriber may transfer pledged or secured Securities to the pledgees or secured parties. Such a pledge or transfer would not be subject to approval of the
Company and no legal opinion of the pledgee, secured party or pledgor shall be required in connection therewith. Further, no notice shall be required of
such pledge. At the appropriate Subscriber’s expense, the Company will execute and deliver such reasonable documentation as a pledgee or secured party
of Securities may reasonably request in connection with a pledge or transfer of the Securities.
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4.2 Integration. The Company shall not, and shall use its reasonable best efforts to ensure that no Affiliate of the Company shall, sell, offer
for sale or solicit offers to buy or otherwise negotiate in respect of any security (as defined in Section 2 of the 1933 Act) that would be integrated with the
offer or sale of the Securities in a manner that would require the registration under the 1933 Act of the sale of the Securities to the Subscribers or that
would be integrated with the offer or sale of the Securities for purposes of the rules and regulations of the Principal Market.

4.3 Reservation and Listing of Securities. So long as any Subscriber owns any Warrants, the Company shall take all action necessary to at all
times after the date hereof have authorized, and reserved for the purpose of issuance, no less than 100% of the number of shares of Common Stock issuable
upon exercise of the Warrants then outstanding (without taking into account any limitations on the exercise of the Warrants set forth in the Warrants).

44 Form D and Blue Sky. The Company shall file a Form D with respect to the Securities as required under Regulation D. The Company
shall, on or before the Closing Date, take such action as the Company shall reasonably determine is necessary in order to obtain an exemption for, or to,
qualify the Securities for sale to the Subscribers at the Closing pursuant to this Agreement under applicable securities or “Blue Sky” laws of the states of
the United States (or to obtain an exemption from such qualification), and shall provide evidence of any such action so taken to the Subscribers on or prior
to the Closing Date. Without limiting any other obligation of the Company under this Agreement, the Company shall timely make all filings and reports
relating to the offer and sale of the Securities required under all applicable securities laws (including, without limitation, all applicable federal securities
laws and all applicable “Blue Sky” laws), and the Company shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, rules, regulations and the
like relating to the offering and sale of the Securities to the Subscribers.

45 Indemnification. In consideration of each Subscriber’s execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents and acquiring the Securities
thereunder and in addition to all of the Company’s other obligations under the Transaction Documents, the Company shall defend, protect, indemnify and
hold harmless each Subscriber and each other holder of the Warrants and all of their shareholders, partners, members, officers, directors, employees and
investors and any of the foregoing Persons’ agents or other representatives (including, without limitation, those retained in connection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement) (collectively, the “Indemnitees”) from and against any and all actions, causes of action, suits, claims, losses, costs,
penalties, fees, liabilities and damages, and expenses in connection therewith (irrespective of whether any such Indemnitee is a party to the action for which
indemnification hereunder is sought), and including reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements (the “Indemnified Liabilities”), incurred by any
Indemnitee as a result of, or arising out of, or relating to (a) any misrepresentation or breach of any representation or warranty made by the Company in the
Transaction Documents, (b) any breach of any covenant, agreement or obligation of the Company contained in the Transaction Documents, or (c) any cause
of action, suit or claim brought or made against such Indemnitee by a third party (including for these purposes a derivative action brought on behalf of the
Company) and arising out of or resulting from (i) the execution, delivery, performance or enforcement of the Transaction Documents, or (ii) the status of
such Subscriber as an investor in the Company pursuant to the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents. For the avoidance of doubt,
clauses (a) and (b) of the preceding sentence are intended to apply, and shall apply, to direct claims asserted by any Subscriber against the Company as well
as any third party claims asserted by an Indemnitee (other than a Subscriber) against the Company. To the extent that the foregoing undertaking by the
Company may be unenforceable for any reason, the Company shall make the maximum contribution to the payment and satisfaction of each of the
Indemnified Liabilities which is permissible under applicable law. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY IN ANY TRANSACTION
DOCUMENT, THE COMPANY SHALL HAVE NO OBLIGATION TO ANY INDEMNITEE HEREUNDER WITH RESPECT TO (I) ANY
INDEMNIFIED LIABILITIES TO THE EXTENT SUCH INDEMNIFIED LIABILITIES ARISE FROM THE GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL
MISCONDUCT, AS DETERMINED BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION IN A FINAL ORDER SUBJECT TO NO FURTHER APPEAL,
OF THAT INDEMNITEE OR ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES OR (II) ANY SPECIAL, PUNITIVE OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES RELATING TO
ANY TRANSACTION DOCUMENT OR ARISING OUT OF ITS ACTIVITIES IN CONNECTION HEREWITH OR THEREWITH (WHETHER
BEFORE OR AFTER THE CLOSING DATE).
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ARTICLE V.

CLOSING DELIVERABLES
5.1 Closing Deliverables of the Company. At the Closing, the Company shall deliver to the Investors the following:
(a Representations and Warranties; Certificates. The representations and warranties of the Company shall be true and correct in all

material respects as of the date when made and as of the Closing Date as though made at that time (except for representations and warranties that speak as
of a specific date which shall be true and correct as of such specified date) and the Company shall have performed, satisfied and complied in all material
respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by the Transaction Documents to be performed, satisfied or complied with by the
Company at or prior to the Closing Date. Such Subscriber shall have received a certificate, executed by the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, dated
as of the Closing Date, to the foregoing effect and as to such other matters as may be reasonably requested by such Subscriber, in the form attached hereto
as Exhibit B. In addition, such Subscriber shall have received a certificate, executed by the Secretary or other applicable officer of the Company, dated as of
the Closing Date, as to the resolutions consistent with Section 3.1(a) as adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors in a form reasonably acceptable to
such Subscriber and the incumbency and specimen signature of each officer of the Company who may sign this Agreement and the other Transaction
Documents, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C.

(b) Transaction Documents. The Company shall have duly executed and delivered to such Subscriber (i) each of the Transaction
Documents to which it is a party and (ii) Warrants for such aggregate number of shares of Common Stock as is set forth across from such Subscriber’s
name in column (3) of the Schedule of Subscribers.

(0 Legal Opinion. Such Subscriber shall have received the opinion of DLA Piper LLP (US), the Company’s outside counsel,
dated as of the Closing Date, in the form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Subscribers.
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ARTICLE VL
MISCELLANEOUS

6.1 Fees and Expenses. The Company shall reimburse the Designee or its designee(s) (in addition to any other expense amounts paid to any
Subscriber prior to the date of this Agreement) for all reasonable and documented actual costs and expenses incurred in connection with the transactions
contemplated by the Transaction Documents (including all reasonable and documented legal fees and disbursements in connection therewith and
documentation and implementation of the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents) on or prior to the Closing, which amount shall be paid
by the Company at the Closing. The Company shall pay, and hold each Subscriber harmless against, any liability, loss or expense (including, without
limitation, reasonable attorney’s fees and out-of-pocket expenses) arising in connection with any claim relating to any placement agent’s fees, financial
advisory fees, or broker’s commissions (other than for any Persons engaged by any Subscriber) relating to or arising out of the transactions contemplated
hereby as a result of an agreement entered into by the Company. Except as otherwise set forth in the Transaction Documents, each party to this Agreement
shall bear its own expenses in connection with the sale of the Securities to the Subscribers.

6.2 Entire Agreement;_ Amendments. This Agreement and the other Transaction Documents supersede all other prior oral or written
agreements between the Subscribers, the Company, their affiliates and Persons acting on their behalf with respect to the matters discussed herein, and this
Agreement, the other Transaction Documents and the instruments referenced herein and therein contain the entire understanding of the parties with respect
to the matters covered herein and therein and, except as specifically set forth herein or therein, neither the Company nor any Subscriber makes any
representation, warranty, covenant or undertaking with respect to such matters. No provision of this Agreement may be amended other than by an
instrument in writing signed by the Company and the Required Holders, and any amendment to this Agreement made in conformity with the provisions of
this Section 6.2 shall be binding on all Subscribers and holders of Warrants. No provision hereof may be waived other than by an instrument in writing
signed by the party against whom enforcement is sought. No such amendment shall be effective to the extent that it applies to less than all of the holders of
Warrants then outstanding. The Company has not, directly or indirectly, made any agreements with any Subscribers relating to the terms or conditions of
the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents except as set forth in the Transaction Documents. Without limiting the foregoing, the
Company confirms that, except as set forth in this Agreement and the Financing Agreement, no Subscriber has made any commitment or promise or has
any other obligation to provide any financing to the Company or otherwise. No consideration shall be offered or paid to any Person to amend or consent to
a waiver or modification of any provision of any of the Transaction Documents unless the same consideration (other than the reimbursement of legal fees)
also is offered to all of the parties to the Transaction Documents or holders of the Warrants, as the case may be.
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6.3 Notices. Any notices, consents, waivers or other communications required or permitted to be given under the terms of this Agreement
must be in writing and will be deemed to have been delivered: (a) upon delivery, when delivered personally; (b) upon confirmation of delivery, when sent
by electronic mail; or (c) upon delivery or refusal of delivery when sent via a nationally recognized overnight delivery service, in each case properly
addressed to the party to receive the same. The addresses, facsimile numbers and email addresses for such communications shall be:

If to the Company: TherapeuticsMD, Inc.
951 Yamato Road, Suite 220
Boca Raton, FL 33431
Attention: General Counsel

With a copy (for information purposes only) to: DLA Piper LLP (US)
200 South Biscayne Boulevard
Suite 2500
Miami, FL 33131
Attention: Joshua M. Samek, Esq.

If to a Subscriber: To its address set forth on the Schedule of Subscribers, with copies to
such Subscriber’s representatives as set forth on the Schedule of
Subscribers.

With a copy (for information purposes only) to: Schulte Roth & Zabel LLP
919 Third Avenue

New York, NY 10022
Attention: F. Xavier Kowalski

or such other address as may be designated in writing hereafter, in the same manner, by such Person by two (2) Business Days’ prior notice to the other
party in accordance with this Section 6.3. Written confirmation of receipt (i) given by the recipient of such notice, consent, waiver or other communication,
or (ii) provided by a courier or overnight courier service shall be rebuttable evidence of personal service or receipt from a nationally recognized overnight
delivery service in accordance with clause (a) or (c) above, respectively.

6.4 Construction. The headings herein are for convenience only, do not constitute a part of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to
limit or affect any of the provisions hereof. No specific representation or warranty shall limit the generality or applicability of a more general representation
or warranty. The parties agree that each of them and/or their respective counsel has reviewed and had an opportunity to revise the Transaction Documents
and, therefore, the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not be employed in the
interpretation of the Transaction Documents or any amendments hereto.

6.5 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their successors and
permitted assigns. The Company may not assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the Subscribers,
except in connection with a Fundamental Transaction (as defined in the Warrant). Any Subscriber may assign its rights under this Agreement to any Person
to whom such Subscriber assigns or transfers any Warrants, provided such transferee (i) agrees in writing in favor of the Company to be bound, with
respect to the transferred Warrants, by the provisions hereof and of the applicable Transaction Documents that apply to the “Subscribers” and (ii) is not a
Disqualified Institution (as defined in the Financing Agreement). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Securities may be pledged to any Person
in connection with a bona fide margin account or other loan or financing arrangement secured by such Securities.
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6.6 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and
permitted assigns and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be enforced by, any other Person, except that each Indemnitee is an intended
third party beneficiary of Section 4.5 and may enforce the provisions of such Sections directly against the parties with obligations thereunder.

6.7 Governing Law; Venue; Waiver of Jury Trial. This Agreement and the Warrants shall be governed by and construed and enforced in
accordance with, and all questions concerning the construction, validity, interpretation and performance of this Agreement and the Warrants shall be
governed by the internal laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State
of New York or any other jurisdictions) that would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdictions other than the State of New York (except for
matters governed by corporate law in the State of Nevada). The Company, each Subscriber and each holder of a Warrant, by acceptance thereof, agrees that
all legal proceedings concerning the interpretations, enforcement and defense of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Warrant (whether
brought against any such party or its respective affiliates, directors, officers, stockholders, employees or agents) shall be commenced exclusively in the
state and federal courts sitting in the City of New York, Borough of Manhattan. The Company, each Subscriber and each holder of a Warrant, by
acceptance thereof, hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts sitting in the City of New York, Borough of
Manbhattan for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein
(including with respect to the enforcement of this Agreement or a Warrant) and hereby irrevocably waives and agrees not to assert in any suit, action or
proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of any such court, that such suit, action or proceeding is brought in an inconvenient
forum or that the venue of such suit, action or proceeding is improper. THE COMPANY, EACH SUBSCRIBER AND EACH HOLDER OF A
WARRANT, BY ACCEPTANCE THEREOF, HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO, AND AGREES NOT TO
REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT
OF THIS AGREEMENT, A WARRANT OR ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY.

6.8 Survival. The representations, warranties, agreements and covenants contained herein shall survive the Closing and the delivery
and/or exercise of the Warrants, as applicable.

6.9 Execution. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, all of which when taken together shall be considered one
and the same agreement and shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party, it being understood
that both parties need not sign the same counterpart. In the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile transmission or by an e-mail which contains a
portable document format (.pdf) filed of an executed signature page, such signature page shall create a valid and binding obligation of the party executing
(or on whose behalf such signature is executed) the same with the same force and effect as if such signature page were an original thereof.
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6.10 Severability. If any provision of a Transaction Document is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable
by a court of competent jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid, or unenforceable shall be deemed amended to apply to the
broadest extent that it would be valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining
provisions of the Transaction Document so long as the Transaction Document as so modified continues to express, without material change, the original
intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof or thereof and the prohibited nature, invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(s) in question
does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the practical realization of the benefits that would
otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the prohibited, invalid, or unenforceable
provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s).

6.11 Rescission and Withdrawal Right. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in (and without limiting any similar provisions
of) the Transaction Documents, whenever any Subscriber exercises a right, election, demand or option under a Transaction Document and the Company
does not timely perform its related obligations within the periods therein provided, then such Subscriber may rescind or withdraw, in its sole discretion
from time to time upon written notice to the Company, any relevant notice, demand or election in whole or in part without prejudice to its future actions
and rights.

6.12 Remedies. In addition to being entitled to exercise all rights provided herein or granted by law, including recovery of damages, the
Company, each Subscriber and each holder of a Warrant, by acceptance thereof, will be entitled to specific performance under the Transaction Documents.
Any Person having any rights under any provision of any Transaction Document shall be entitled to enforce such rights specifically (without posting a bond
or other security), to recover damages by reason of any breach of any provision of the Transaction Document and to exercise all other rights granted by law.
Furthermore, the Company, each Subscriber and each holder of a Warrant, by acceptance thereof, recognize that in the event that it fails to perform,
observe, or discharge any or all of its obligations under the Transaction Documents, any remedy at law may prove to be inadequate relief to the other
parties. Each of such parties therefore agrees that the other parties shall be entitled to seek specific performance and/or temporary, preliminary and
permanent injunctive or other equitable relief from any court of competent jurisdiction in any such case without the necessity of showing economic loss
and without any bond or other security being required.

6.13 Payment Set Aside. To the extent that the Company makes a payment or payments to any Subscriber hereunder or pursuant to any of
the other Transaction Documents or any Subscriber enforces or exercises its rights hereunder or thereunder, and such payment or payments or the proceeds
of such enforcement or exercise or any part thereof are subsequently invalidated, declared to be fraudulent or preferential, set aside, recovered from,
disgorged by or are required to be refunded, repaid or otherwise restored to the Company or any Company Subsidiary by a trustee, receiver or any other
person under any law (including, without limitation, any bankruptcy law, state or federal law, common law or equitable cause of action), then to the extent
of any such restoration the obligation or part thereof originally intended to be satisfied shall be revived and continued in full force and effect as if such
payment had not been made or such enforcement or setoff had not occurred.
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6.14 Further Assurances. The Company, each Subscriber and each holder of a Warrant, by acceptance thereof, shall do and perform, or
cause to be done and performed, all such further acts and things, and shall execute and deliver all such other agreements, certificates, instruments and
documents, as any other party may reasonably request in order to carry out the intent and accomplish the purposes of this Agreement and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

6.15 Replacement of Securities. If any certificate or instrument evidencing any Securities is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the
Company shall issue or cause to be issued in exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation thereof, or in lieu of and substitution therefor, a new
certificate or instrument, but only upon receipt of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of such loss, theft or destruction and customary and
reasonable indemnity, if requested. The applicants for a new certificate or instrument under such circumstances shall also pay any reasonable third-party
costs associated with the issuance of such replacement Securities.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Subscriber and the Company have caused their respective signature page to this Agreement to be duly executed
as of the date first written above.

COMPANY:
THERAPEUTICSMD, INC.
By: /s/ Robert G. Finizio

Name: Robert G. Finizio
Title: Chief Executive Officer

[Signature Page to Subscription Agreement]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Subscriber and the Company have caused their respective signature page to this Agreement to be duly executed
as of the date first written above.

SUBSCRIBER:
SIXTH STREET SPECIALTY LENDING, INC.
By: /s/ Joshua Easterly

Name: Joshua Easterly
Title: Chief Executive Officer

[Signature Page to Subscription Agreement]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Subscriber and the Company have caused their respective signature page to this Agreement to be duly executed
as of the date first written above.

SUBSCRIBER:
REDWOOD IV FINANCE 1, LLC
By: /s/ Joshua Peck

Name: Joshua Peck
Title: Vice President

[Signature Page to Subscription Agreement]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Subscriber and the Company have caused their respective signature page to this Agreement to be duly executed
as of the date first written above.

SUBSCRIBER:
TAO FINANCE 1, LLC
By: /s/ Joshua Peck

Name: Joshua Peck
Title: Vice President

[Signature Page to Subscription Agreement]




SCHEDULE OF SUBSCRIBERS

1 2) 3)
Number of
Subscriber Address and Facsimile Number Warrant Shares
Sixth Street Specialty Lending, Inc. 2100 McKinney Ave, Suite 1500 712,817

Dallas Texas 75201
Attn: Joshua Peck; Sixth Street Legal

Redwood IV Finance 1, LLC 2100 McKinney Ave, Suite 1500 1,188,029
Dallas Texas 75201
Attn: Joshua Peck; Sixth Street Legal

TAO Finance 1, LLC 2100 McKinney Ave, Suite 1500 2,851,270
Dallas Texas 75201
Attn: Joshua Peck; Sixth Street Legal

“

Legal Representative’s
Address and Facsimile Number

Schulte Roth & Zabel LLP
919 Third Avenue

New York, New York 10022
Attention: F. Xavier Kowalski

Schulte Roth & Zabel LLP
919 Third Avenue

New York, New York 10022
Attention: F. Xavier Kowalski

Schulte Roth & Zabel LLP
919 Third Avenue

New York, New York 10022
Attention: F. Xavier Kowalski




EXHIBIT A
Warrants

(See attached)




EXHIBIT B
Officer’s Certificate

(See attached)




EXHIBIT C
Secretary’s Certificate

(See attached)




TherapeuticsMD, Inc. 10-Q
- Exhibit 10.6

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), by and between TherapeuticsMD, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), and
James C. D’Arecca (“Executive”) is entered into and effective as of the 1st day of June 2020 (the “Effective Date”).

WHEREAS, the Company and Executive now wish to provide for terms and conditions of Executive’s continued employment with the Company,
pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants set forth in this Agreement, the parties hereto agree as
follows:

1. Employment and Duties.

(a) Employment and Term. The Company hereby agrees to employ Executive, and Executive hereby agrees to serve the Company,
in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein, for a period of three (3) years, commencing as of the Effective Date (such three (3) year
period, as it may be extended pursuant to this Section 1(a), the “Term”), unless sooner terminated pursuant to Section 3 hereof. Commencing on the third
anniversary of the Effective Date, and each anniversary thereafter, the Term shall automatically be extended for one (1) additional year, unless at least
ninety (90) days prior to such anniversary, the Company or Executive shall have given notice in accordance with Section 8 hereof that it or Executive does
not wish to extend the Term.

(b) Duties of Executive. Executive shall serve as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, shall diligently perform all services as
may be reasonably assigned to Executive by the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) or the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”), of if
delegated by the CEO the President of the Company or the Executive Vice President of Operations (the “President or EVP, Operations”). Executive shall
exercise such power and authority as may from time to time be delegated to Executive by the Board, the CEO, and the President or EVP, Operations.
Executive shall report solely and directly to the CEO (or to the President or EVP, Operations if instructed to by the CEO). During Executive’s employment,
Executive shall devote substantially all of Executive’s full business time, energy, and ability exclusively to the business and interests of the Company, shall
generally be physically present at the Company’s offices in Boca Raton, Florida during normal business hours each week (other than permitted periods of
working remotely, paid time off (“PTO”) and on appropriate business travel for the benefit of the Company and shall not, without the Company’s prior
written consent, be engaged in any other business activity pursued for gain, profit, or other pecuniary advantage if such activity interferes in any material
respect with Executive’s duties and responsibilities hereunder. In Executive’s capacity as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, Executive shall do
and perform all services, acts, or things necessary or advisable to manage and conduct the business of the Company, subject to the policies and procedures
set by the Company, including but not limited to performing the Company’s budgeting and forecasting, record keeping, internal and external reporting;
performing financial risk management; managing — in conjunction with the CEO — the Company’s internal relations functions; managing the Company’s
fundraising plans and capital structure; maintaining the Company’s SOX compliance program, managing the Company’s cash flow, overseeing the
Company’s finance systems; managing taxes, treasury, and other functions, and managing the finance organization. Except as otherwise agreed in writing
by the Company, it shall not be a violation of this Agreement for Executive, and Executive shall be permitted, to (i) serve on any civic or charitable boards;
(ii) deliver lectures, fulfill speaking engagements, or teach at educational institutions and other institutions; (iii) subject to any applicable Company
policies, make personal investments in such form or manner as will neither require Executive’s services in the operation or affairs of the companies or
enterprises in which such investments are made nor subject Executive to any conflict of interest with respect to Executive’s duties to the Company; and (iv)
serve, with the written approval of the Board, as a director of one or more private or public companies, in each case so long as any such activities do not
significantly interfere with the performance of Executive’s responsibilities under this Agreement, create a conflict of interest, or create an adverse interest
or position detrimental to Company.




(0 Policies. Executive shall faithfully adhere to, execute, and fulfill all lawful policies established by the Company as are
communicated to Executive by the Company.

(d) Place of Performance. In connection with Executive’s employment by the Company, Executive shall be based at the Company’s
principal executive offices in Boca Raton, Florida.

2. Compensation. For all services rendered by Executive, the Company shall compensate Executive as follows:

(a Base Salary. Effective on the Effective Date, the base salary (“Base Salary”) payable to Executive shall be Four hundred twenty
thousand dollars ($420,000) per year, payable on a regular basis in accordance with the Company’s standard payroll procedures, but not less than monthly.
The Board or a committee of the Board shall review Executive’s performance on at least an annual basis and may make increases to such Base Salary if, in
its sole discretion, any such increase is warranted. The Board may reduce the Base Salary without Executive’s consent only if such reduction applies in the
same or greater percentage to all other executives of the Company at the Chief level and above.

(b) Annual Short-Term Incentive. Executive shall be entitled to participate in the Company’s annual short-term incentive
compensation program, as such program may exist from time to time, at a level commensurate with that being offered to other executives of the Company
at the Chief level and above. For calendar years beginning on or after January 1, 2020, the percentage of Base Salary targeted as annual cash short-term
incentive compensation for each calendar year during the Term shall be seventy-five percent (75%) of Base Salary (the “Targeted Annual Bonus Award”).
Executive acknowledges that the amount of annual short-term incentive compensation, if any, to be awarded shall be at the sole, good faith discretion of the
Board or a committee of the Board, may be less or more than the Targeted Annual Bonus Award, and will be based on a number of factors determined by
the Board or a committee of the Board for each calendar year, including the Company’s performance in connection with, among other factors, the clinical
program, regulatory filings, commercialization and/or sales, and Executive’s individual performance. Any annual short-term incentive compensation earned

short-term incentive compensation. Executive’s 2020 bonus will not be prorated due to a mid-year start.
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(©) Long-Term Incentive. Executive shall be entitled to participate in the Company’s long-term incentive compensation
program, as such program may exist from time to time, at a level commensurate with that being offered to other executives of the Company at the Chief
level and above. Executive acknowledges that the amount of long-term incentive compensation, if any, to be awarded shall be at the sole, good faith
discretion of the Board or a committee of the Board, and will be based on a number of factors determined by the Board or a committee of the Board for the
applicable performance period, including the Company’s performance in connection with, among other factors, the clinical program, regulatory filings,
commercialization and/or sales, and Executive’s individual performance. Any long-term incentive compensation earned for the applicable performance
period shall be paid within the first two-and-a-half (2%%) months of the calendar year immediately following the calendar year in which the applicable
performance period ends. Except as otherwise set forth herein, Executive must be employed by the Company on the date on which long-term incentive
compensation is paid to receive such long-term incentive compensation.

(d) Restricted Stock Units. As soon as practicable following the Effective Date and subject to approval by the Board of Directors,
the Company will grant to Executive six hundred fifty-one thousand five hundred (651,500) restricted stock units (“RSUs”) pursuant to the Company’s
2019 Stock Incentive Plan, as the same may be amended from time to time (the “Plan”), which RSUs will vest in equal amounts annually over (3) years
from the Effective Date, one-third vesting on each of June 1, 2021, June 1, 2022, and June 1, 2023, subject to Executive’ continued employment with the
Company and the terms and conditions in the Plan and an award agreement to be entered into between the Company and Executive. Executive will also be
granted 151,500 performance share units (“PSUs”) that will vest if the Company achieves EBITDA breakeven, provided EBITDA breakeven is
accomplished on or before December 31, 2022.

(e) Executive Perquisites, Benefits, and Other Compensation. Executive shall be entitled to receive additional benefits and
compensation from the Company in such form and to such extent as specified below:

@) Insurance Coverage. During the Term, and as otherwise provided within the provisions of each of the respective
plans, the Company shall make available to Executive all employee benefits to which other executives of the Company are entitled to receive, subject to
the eligibility requirements and other provisions of such arrangements as applicable to executives of the Company generally. Such benefits shall include,
but shall not be limited to, comprehensive health and major medical insurance, dental and life insurance, and short-term and long-term disability. The
Company will provide to Executive D&O insurance and other insurance coverage typically provided to in-house legal counsel, including legal liability
coverage, as reasonably necessary.

(ii) Reimbursement for Expenses. Reimbursement for business travel and other out-of-pocket expenses reasonably
incurred by Executive in the performance of Executive’s services under this Agreement, which shall be paid as paid for other executives of the Company
at the Chief level and above., including, but not limited to, industry appropriate seminars and subscriptions and applicable licensing and continuing
education expenses. All reimbursable expenses shall be appropriately documented in reasonable detail by Executive upon submission of any request for
reimbursement and shall be in a format and manner consistent with the Company’s expense reporting policy. Reimbursements under this section shall be
paid within sixty (60) days following date of submission.




(iii) Paid Time Off. Executive shall be eligible to accrue PTO and utilize and carryover from year to year such PTO,
consistent with the Company’s policies and procedures in effect from time to time for executives of the Company at the Chief level and above.

(iv)  Other Executive Perquisites. The Company shall provide Executive with other executive perquisites as may be made
available to or deemed appropriate for Executive by the Board or a committee of the Board and participation in all other Company-wide employee
benefits as are available to the Company’s executives from time to time, including any plans, programs, or arrangements relating to retirement, deferred
compensation, profit sharing, 401(k), and employee stock ownership.

W) Working Facilities. During the Term, the Company shall furnish Executive with an office, staffing and administrative
support and such other facilities and services suitable to Executive’s position with the Company and adequate for the performance of Executive’s duties
hereunder, which will be reviewed and provided based on the Company’s needs.

(vi) Commute Expenses and Relocation. The Company will reimburse Executive for his reasonable expenses with respect
to his temporary housing or hotel, rental vehicle, and airfare to commute from his home to Boca Raton, Florida for a reasonable, mutually agreed upon
period of time not to exceed two (2) years from the Effective Date. The Company will reimburse Executive for his reasonable expenses with respect to
relocating his home to the Boca Raton, Florida area. Reimbursements under this section shall be paid within sixty (60) days following date of submission
and in a manner consistent with the Company’s policies and procedures in effect from time to time for executives of the Company at the Chief level and
above.

3. Term of Employment.
(a) Termination Under Certain Circumstances.

(i)  Death. Executive’s employment and the Term shall be automatically terminated, without notice, effective upon the date
of Executive’s death.

(i)  Disability. If, as a result of incapacity due to physical or mental illness or injury, Executive shall have been absent from
Executive’s full-time duties hereunder for six (6) consecutive months, then thirty (30) days after giving written notice to Executive (which notice may
occur before or after the end of such six (6) month period, but which shall not be effective earlier than the last day of such six (6) month period), the
Company may terminate Executive’s employment and the Term, provided Executive is unable to resume Executive’s full-time duties at the conclusion of
such notice period.




(iii) Termination by the Company for Good Cause. The Company may terminate Executive’s employment and the
Term upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Executive for “Good Cause,” which shall mean any one or more of the following: (A) Executive’s
material breach of this Agreement (continuing for thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice of need to cure, if, in the Company’s determination, such
breach is curable); (B) Executive’s negligence in the performance or intentional nonperformance (continuing for thirty (30) days after receipt of written
notice of need to cure, if, in the Company’s determination, such breach is curable) of any of Executive’s material duties and responsibilities; (C)
Executive’s willful dishonesty, fraud, or misconduct with respect to the business or affairs of the Company; (D) Executive’s indictment for, charge of,
conviction of, or guilty or nolo contendre plea to a felony crime involving dishonesty or moral turpitude whether or not relating to the Company; (E) a
confirmed positive drug test result for an illegal drug; or (F) a material sanction is imposed on Executive by any applicable professional organization or
professional governing body including, for the avoidance of doubt, an accounting regulatory board.

(iv) Termination by the Company Without Good Cause. The Company may terminate Executive’s employment and
the Term at any time without Good Cause. A termination by Executive without Good Reason shall not be a breach of this Agreement by Executive.

W) Termination by Executive Without Good Reason. Executive, at Executive’s option and upon written notice to the
Company, may terminate Executive’s employment and the Term without Good Reason (as defined below) at any time, effective on the date of that notice.

(vi) Termination by Executive With Good Reason. At any time during the Term, Executive may terminate Executive’s
employment and the Term for Good Reason. For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” shall mean (A) the assignment to Executive of material
duties inconsistent with Executive’s position as the Chief Financial Officer (including status, office, titles and reporting requirements), or any other
action by the Company that results in a material diminution in such position, excluding for this purpose (i) any action not taken in bad faith and that is
remedied by the Company promptly after receipt of a Notice of Termination for Good Reason (as defined below) thereof given by Executive and (ii) any
change in status, office, titles and reporting requirements following a Change in Control of the Company in which the Company ceases to be a standalone
public reporting company, provided that the material duties of Executive following such Change in Control are not inconsistent with those of Executive
immediately prior to such Change in Control; (B) the Company requiring Executive to be based at any office or location other than in Palm Beach
County, Florida, or within thirty-five (35) miles of such location, or such other location as mutually agreed to by the Company and Executive, except for
travel reasonably required in the performance of Executive’s responsibilities, provided, however, that this clause 3(iv)(B) will not have any force or
effect until such time that and only for the period of time that Executive has permanently relocated his home and permanently resides within thirty-five
(35) miles of the Company’s Boca Raton headquarters; or (C) any material failure by the Company to comply with any of the provisions of this
Agreement, other than a failure not occurring in bad faith and that is remedied by the Company promptly after receipt of a Notice of Termination for
Good Reason given thereof by Executive. A termination of employment by Executive for Good Reason shall be effected by Executive’s giving the Board
written notice (“Notice of Termination for Good Reason”) of the termination, setting forth in reasonable detail the specific conduct of the Company that
constitutes Good Reason and the specific provision(s) of this Agreement on which Executive relies, within ninety (90) days of the initial existence of one
of the conditions constituting Good Reason. A termination of employment by Executive for Good Reason shall be effective on the thirty-first (31st) day
following the date when the Notice of Termination for Good Reason is given to the Company; provided that such a termination of employment shall not
become effective if the Company shall have substantially corrected the circumstance giving rise to the Notice of Termination for Good Reason within
thirty (30) days after the Company’s receipt of such Notice of Termination for Good Reason.
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(b) Result of Termination.

@) Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, in the event of the termination of Executive’s employment and the
hereof, Executive shall receive no further compensation under this Agreement other than the payment of Base Salary as shall have accrued and remained
unpaid as of the date of termination, unreimbursed business expenses, and accrued but unused PTO consistent with the Company’s policies and
procedures therefor in effect at the time of such termination for officers of Executive’s level.

(ii) In the event of the termination of Executive’s employment and the Term pursuant to Sections 3(a)(iv) (“Termination by
the Company Without Good Cause”) or 3(a)(vi) (“Termination by Executive With Good Reason”) hereof, (a) Executive shall, for a period of twelve (12)
months following the effective date of such termination, continue to receive Executive’s then current annual Base Salary, as provided in Section 2(a), (b)
Executive shall receive an amount equal to Executive’s Targeted Annual Bonus Award for the calendar year in which the termination of Executive’s
employment occurs, which amount shall be paid to Executive in a single lump sum, which is unpaid on the effective date of Executive’s termination, and

which shall be paid to Executive when paid to other similarly situated executives of the Company in accordance with Section 2(b) hereof, (c) Executive

shall receive, beginning on the first payroll date occurring on or after the thirtieth (30th) day following the effective date of the termination of Executive’s
employment under this Agreement and for a period of twenty-four (24) months thereafter for a total of twenty-four (24) monthly payments, a monthly
cash payment equal to the one (1) month cost of COBRA continuation of the health insurance benefits for Executive and Executive’s immediate family
as applicable, as the effective date of such termination, less, the one (1) month cost for the same health insurance benefits for Executive and Executive’s
immediate family as applicable that would have been incurred by Executive immediately prior to the effective date of such termination if Executive
remained employed with the Company, (d) all unvested equity compensation of any kind (including, without limitation, stock options, restricted stock,
RSUs, performance shares or PSUs) held by Executive in Executive’s capacity as an employee of the Company on the effective date of the termination
shall vest as of the effective date of such termination, (e) Executive shall receive payment for (1) Base Salary as shall have accrued and remained unpaid
as of the date of termination, (2) unreimbursed business expenses, (3) accrued but unused PTO consistent with the Company’s policies and procedures
therefor in effect at the time of such termination for executives of the Company at the Chief level and above, and (4) any annual short-term incentive
compensation earned pursuant to Section 2(b) hereof for the calendar year immediately preceding the calendar year in which the termination of
Executive’s employment occurs which is unpaid on the effective date of Executive’s termination, which shall be paid to Executive when paid to other
similarly situated executives of the Company in accordance with Section 2(b) hereof (the preceding clauses (e)(1), (e)(2), (e)(3) and (e)(4) collectively,
the “Accrued Compensation™).




(iii)  In the event of the termination of Executive’s employment and the Term pursuant to Sections 3(a)(i) (“Death”) or 3(a)
(ii) (“Disability”) hereof, (a) Executive shall receive an amount equal to Executive’s Targeted Annual Bonus Award for the calendar year in which the
termination of Executive’s employment occurs, multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of full months of such calendar year

during which Executive was employed with the Company, and the denominator of which is twelve (12), which amount shall be paid to Executive in a

single lump sum on the first payroll date occurring on or after the thirtieth (30th) day following the effective date of the termination of Executive’s
employment under this Agreement, (b) all unvested equity compensation of any kind (including, without limitation, stock options, restricted stock, RSUs,
performance shares or PSUs) held by Executive in Executive’s capacity as an employee of the Company on the effective date of the termination shall
vest as of the effective date of such termination, (c) Executive shall receive payment for the Accrued Compensation.

(iv)  Inthe event of the termination of Executive’s employment and the Term pursuant to Sections 3(a)(iv) (“Termination by

the Company Without Good Cause”) or 3(a)(vi) (“Termination by Executive With Good Reason”) hereof during the twelve (12) month period
immediately following a Change in Control or otherwise in connection with such Change in Control, then in lieu of any benefits or amounts otherwise

to receive Executive’s then current annual Base Salary, as provided in Section 2(a), (b) Executive shall receive an amount equal to one and one half times
(1.5x) Executive’s Targeted Annual Bonus Award for the calendar year in which the termination of Executive’s employment occurs, which amount shall

be paid to Executive in a single lump sum on the first payroll date occurring on or after the thirtieth (30th) day following the effective date of the
termination of Executive’s employment under this Agreement, (c) Executive shall receive, beginning on the first payroll date occurring on or after the
thirtieth (30™) day following the effective date of the termination of Executive’s employment under this Agreement and for a period of eighteen (18)
months thereafter for a total of eighteen (18) monthly payments, a monthly cash payment equal to the one (1) month cost of COBRA continuation of the
health insurance benefits for Executive and Executive’s immediate family as applicable, as the effective date of such termination, less, the one (1) month
cost for the same health insurance benefits for Executive and Executive’s immediate family as applicable that would have been incurred by Executive
immediately prior to the effective date of such termination if Executive remained employed with the Company, (d) all unvested equity compensation of
any kind (including, without limitation, stock options, restricted stock, RSUs, performance shares or PSUs) held by Executive in Executive’s capacity as
an employee of the Company on the effective date of the termination shall vest as of the effective date of such termination, (e) Executive shall receive
payment for the Accrued Compensation.




(©) Release. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement to the contrary, as a condition precedent to receiving any post-
complete release of all claims against the Company and its affiliates, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (subject to such modifications as the
Company reasonably may request) (the “Release”). If Executive fails to execute and deliver to the Company the Release within twenty-one (21) days
following the date of termination, or revokes the Release, within seven (7) days following the date Executive executes and delivers the Release, or
materially breaches any term of this Agreement or any other agreement between Executive and the Company while receiving such post-termination
payments or benefits, Executive agrees that Executive shall not be entitled to receive any such post-termination payments. For purposes of this Agreement,
the Release shall be deemed to have been executed by Executive if it is signed by Executive’s legal representative in the case of legal incompetence or on

Executive’s employment under this Agreement, and any payments that are so delayed shall be paid on the first payroll date occurring on or after the
thirtieth (30t) day following the effective date of the termination of Executive’s employment under this Agreement.

(d) Section 409A. Any payments made by the Company pursuant to Sections 3(b)(ii), 3(b)(iii) and 3(b)(iv) hereof (except for unpaid

annual short-term incentive compensation earned in the calendar year immediately preceding the calendar year in which the termination of Executive’s
employment occurs, which shall be paid to Executive when paid to other similarly situated executives of the Company) shall be paid or commence on the

first payroll date occurring on or after the thirtieth (30th) day following the effective date of Executive’s “separation from service” within the meaning of
Section 409A (“Section 409A”) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). For purposes of applying the provisions of Section 409A
to this Agreement, each separately identified amount to which Executive is entitled under this Agreement shall be treated as a separate payment. In
addition, to the extent permissible under Section 409A, any series of installment payments under this Agreement shall be treated as a right to a series of
separate payments. Executive shall receive no additional compensation following any termination except as provided herein. In the event of any
termination, Executive shall resign all positions with the Company and its subsidiaries. If Executive is a “specified employee” within the meaning of
Section 409A, then payments identified in Section 3(b) of this Agreement shall not commence until six (6) months following “separation from service”
within the meaning of Section 409A to the extent necessary to avoid the imposition of the additional twenty percent (20%) tax under Section 409A (and in
the case of installment payments, the first payment shall include all installment payments required by this subsection that otherwise would have been made
during such six-month period). If the payments described in Section 3(b) are “deferred compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A and must be
delayed for six (6) months pursuant to the preceding sentence, Executive shall not be entitled to additional compensation to compensate for such delay
period. Upon the date such payment would otherwise commence, the Company shall reimburse Executive for such payments, to the extent that such
payments otherwise would have been paid by the Company had such payments commenced upon Executive’s “separation from service” within the meaning
of Section 409A. Any remaining payments shall be provided by the Company in accordance with the schedule and procedures specified herein. This
Agreement is intended to satisfy the requirements of Section 409A with respect to amounts subject thereto, and shall be interpreted and construed
consistent with such intent. Any reimbursements by the Company to Executive of any eligible expenses under this Agreement that are not excludable from
Executive’s income for Federal income tax purposes (the “Taxable Reimbursements”) shall be made by no later than the last day of the taxable year of
Executive following the year in which the expense was incurred. The amount of any Taxable Reimbursements, and the value of any in-kind benefits to be
provided to Executive, during any taxable year of Executive shall not affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits to be provided, in
any other taxable year of Executive. The right to Taxable Reimbursement, or in-kind benefits, shall not be subject to liquidation or exchange for another
benefit. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company does not make any representation to Executive that the payments or benefits provided under this
Agreement are exempt from, or satisfy, the requirements of Section 409A, and the Company shall have no liability or other obligation to indemnify or hold
harmless Executive or any beneficiary for any tax, additional tax, interest or penalties that Executive or any beneficiary may incur in the event that any
provision of this Agreement, or any amendment or modification thereof, or any other action taken with respect thereto, is deemed to violate any of the
requirements of Section 409A.




(e) Section 280G.

@) Certain Reductions in Agreement Payments. Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, in the
event a nationally recognized independent accounting firm designated by the Company and reasonably acceptable to Executive (the “Accounting Firm”)
shall determine that receipt of all payments or distributions by the Company and its affiliates in the nature of compensation to or for Executive’s benefit,
whether paid or payable pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise (a “Payment”), would subject Executive to the excise tax under Section 4999 of the
Code, the Accounting Firm shall determine as required below in this Section 3(e) whether to reduce any of the Payments paid or payable pursuant to this
Agreement (the “Agreement Payments™) to the Reduced Amount (as defined below). The Agreement Payments shall be reduced to the Reduced Amount
only if the Accounting Firm determines that Executive would have a greater Net After-Tax Receipt (as defined below) of aggregate Payments if
Executive’s Agreement Payments were so reduced. If the Accounting Firm determines that Executive would not have a greater Net After-Tax Receipt of
aggregate Payments if Executive’s Agreement Payments were so reduced, then Executive shall receive all Agreement Payments to which Executive is
entitled.

(ii) Accounting Firm Determinations. If the Accounting Firm determines that aggregate Agreement Payments should be
reduced to the Reduced Amount, then the Company shall promptly give Executive notice to that effect and a copy of the detailed calculation thereof. All
determinations made by the Accounting Firm under this Section 3(e) shall be binding upon the Company and Executive and shall be made as soon as
reasonably practicable and in no event later than twenty (20) days following the effective date of the termination of Executive’s employment with the
Company. For purposes of reducing the Agreement Payments to the Reduced Amount, only amounts payable under this Agreement (and no other
Payments) shall be reduced. The reduction of the amounts payable hereunder, if applicable, shall be made (A) only from Payments that the Accounting
Firm determines reasonably may be characterized as “parachute payments” under Section 280G of the Code; (B) only from Payments that are required to
be made in cash, (C) only with respect to any amounts that are not payable pursuant to a “nonqualified deferred compensation plan” subject to Section
409A of the Code, until those payments have been reduced to zero, and (D) in reverse chronological order, to the extent that any Payments subject to
reduction are made over time (e.g., in installments). In no event, however, shall any Payments be reduced if and to the extent such reduction would cause
a violation of Section 409A of the Code or other applicable law. All fees and expenses of the Accounting Firm shall be borne solely by the Company.
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(iii) Overpayments; Underpayments. As a result of the uncertainty in the application of Section 4999 of the Code at the
time of the initial determination by the Accounting Firm hereunder, it is possible that amounts will have been paid or distributed by the Company to or
for the benefit of Executive pursuant to this Agreement which should not have been so paid or distributed (an “Overpayment”) or that additional amounts
which will have not been paid or distributed by the Company to or for the benefit of Executive pursuant to this Agreement which should have been so
paid or distributed (an “Underpayment”), in each case consistent with the calculation of the Reduced Amount hereunder. In the event that the Accounting
Firm, based upon the assertion of a deficiency by the Internal Revenue Service against either the Company or Executive which the Accounting Firm
believes has a high probability of success determines that an Overpayment has been made, Executive shall pay any such Overpayment to the Company
together with interest at the applicable federal rate provided for in Section 7872(f)(2) of the Code; provided, however, that no amount shall be payable by
Executive to the Company if and to the extent such payment would not either reduce the amount on which Executive is subject to tax under Section 1 and
Section 4999 of the Code or generate a refund of such taxes. In the event that the Accounting Firm, based upon controlling precedent or other substantial
authority, determines that an Underpayment has occurred, any such Underpayment shall be paid promptly (and in no event later than 60 days following
the date on which the Underpayment is determined) by the Company to or for the benefit of Executive together with interest at the applicable federal rate
provided for in Section 7872(f)(2) of the Code.

(iv)  Definitions. The following terms shall have the following meanings for purposes of this Section 3:

(A) “Net After-Tax Receipt” shall mean the present value (as determined in accordance with Sections 280G(b)(2)
(A)(ii) and 280G(d)(4) of the Code) of a Payment net of all taxes imposed on Executive with respect thereto under Sections 1 and 4999 of the Code and
under applicable state and local laws, determined by applying the highest marginal rate under Section 1 of the Code and under state and local laws which
applied to Executive’s taxable income for the immediately preceding taxable year, or such other rate(s) as the Accounting Firm determined to be likely to
apply to Executive in the relevant taxable year(s).

B) “Reduced Amount” shall mean the greatest amount of Agreement Payments that can be paid that would not
result in the imposition of the excise tax under Section 4999 of the Code if the Accounting Firm determines to reduce Agreement Payments pursuant to
Section 3(e)(i) hereof.

10




4. Competition and Non-Solicitation.

(a Interests to be Protected. The parties acknowledge that Executive will perform essential services for the Company, its
employees, and its stockholders during the term of Executive’s employment with the Company. Executive will be exposed to, have access to, and work
with, a considerable amount of confidential information. The parties also expressly recognize and acknowledge that the personnel of the Company have
been trained by, and are valuable to, the Company and that the Company will incur substantial recruiting and training expenses if the Company must hire
new personnel or retrain existing personnel to fill vacancies. The parties expressly recognize that it could seriously impair the goodwill and diminish the
value of the Company’s business should Executive compete with the Company in any manner whatsoever. The parties acknowledge that this covenant has
an extended duration; however, they agree that this covenant is reasonable and it is necessary for the protection of the Company, its stockholders, and
employees. For these and other reasons, and the fact that there are many other employment opportunities available to Executive if Executive’s employment
is terminated, the parties are in full and complete agreement that the following restrictive covenants are fair and reasonable and are entered into freely,
voluntarily, and knowingly. Furthermore, each party was given the opportunity to consult with independent legal counsel before entering into this
Agreement.

(b) Non-Competition. During the term of Executive’s employment with the Company and for eighteen (18) months after the
termination of Executive’s employment with the Company, which may be extended an additional twelve (12) months in the sole and absolute discretion of
the Company for a total of thirty (30) months after termination of Executive’s employment with the Company, regardless of the reason therefor, Executive
shall not (whether directly or indirectly, as owner, principal, agent, stockholder, director, officer, manager, employee, partner, participant, or in any other
capacity) engage or become substantially and directly financially interested in any Competitive Business Activities conducted within the Restricted
Company Without Good Cause”) or 3(a)(vi) (“Termination by Executive With Good Reason”) hereof, if the Company exercises its right to extend this non-
competition clause by the additional twelve (12) months, then Executive will, (a) for a period of twelve (12) additional months, continue to receive
Executive’s then current annual Base Salary, as provided in Section 2(a) hereof, and (b) Executive will receive for a period of an additional six (6), a
monthly cash payment equal to the one (1) month cost of COBRA continuation of the health insurance benefits for Executive and Executive’s immediate
family as applicable. As used herein, the term “Competitive Business Activities” shall mean business activities that are competitive with the business of the
Company, including but not limited to, business activities in the pharmaceutical industry related to products that compete with the Company’s products, and
the term “Restricted Territory” shall mean any state or other geographical area in which the Company has demonstrated an intent to develop,
commercialize, and/or distribute products during Executive’s employment with the Company. Executive hereby agrees that, as of the date hereof, during
Executive’s employment with the Company, the Company has demonstrated an intent to develop, commercialize, and/or distribute products throughout the
United States of America, Canada, Mexico, Brazil, Argentina, Europe, Australia, South Africa, Russia, Israel, Japan, and South Korea.
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(© Non-Solicitation of Employees. During the term of Executive’s employment and for a period of twenty-four (24) months after
the termination of Executive’s employment with the Company, regardless of the reason therefor, Executive shall not directly or indirectly, for the Company,
or on behalf of or in conjunction with any other person, company, partnership, corporation, or governmental or other entity, solicit for employment, seek to
hire, or hire any person who is employed by the Company, is a consultant of the Company, or is an independent contractor of the Company, within twenty-
four (24) months of the termination of Executive’s employment, and, as related solely to consultants, for the purpose of having any such consultant engage
in services that are the same as, similar to, or related to the services that such consultant provided for the Company and that are competitive with the
services provided by the consultant for the Company.

(d) Non-Solicitation of Customers. During the term of Executive’s employment and for a period of twenty-four (24) months after
the termination of Executive’s employment with the Company, regardless of the reason therefor, Executive shall not directly or indirectly, for the Company,
or on behalf of, or in conjunction with, any other person, company, partnership, corporation, or governmental entity, call on, solicit, or engage in business
with, any of the actual or targeted prospective customers or clients of the Company on behalf of any person or entity in connection with any Competitive
Business, nor shall Executive make known the names and addresses of such actual or targeted prospective customers or clients, or any information relating
in any manner to the trade or business relationships of the Company with such customers or clients, other than in connection with the performance of
Executive’s duties under this Agreement, and/or persuade or encourage or attempt to persuade or encourage any persons or entities with whom the
Company does business or has some business relationship to cease doing business or to terminate its business relationship with the Company or to engage
in any Competitive Business Activities on its own or with any competitor of the Company. As used herein, the term “Competitive Business” shall mean
business that is directly competitive with the business of the Company, including but not limited to, business in the pharmaceutical industry related to
products that directly compete with the Company’s products.

(e) Employee Assignment, Invention and Confidentiality Agreement. Executive hereby affirms, acknowledges, and agrees that
Executive will be subject to the terms and conditions set forth in that certain Employee Assignment, Invention, and Confidentiality Agreement (the
“EAICA”) by and between the Company and Executive and that this Agreement does not modify or amend the EAICA.

® Equitable Relief. In the event a violation of any of the restrictions contained in this Section 4 occurs, the Company shall be
entitled to seek from a court of competent jurisdiction preliminary and permanent injunctive relief (without being required to post bond), reasonable
attorneys’ fees, and damages and an equitable accounting of all earnings, profits, and other benefits arising from such violation, which right shall be
cumulative and in addition to any other rights or remedies to which the Company may be entitled. In the event of a violation of any provision of
to that period beginning when such violation commenced and ending when the activities constituting such violation shall have been finally terminated in
good faith.
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(8 Restrictions Separable. If the scope of any provision of this Agreement (whether in this Section 4 or otherwise) is found by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be too broad to permit enforcement to its full extent, then such provision shall be enforced to the maximum extent
permitted by law. The parties agree that the scope of any provision of this Agreement may be modified by a judge in any proceeding to enforce this
Agreement, so that such provision can be enforced to the maximum extent permitted by law. Each and every restriction set forth in this Section 4 is
independent and severable from the others, and no such restriction shall be rendered unenforceable by virtue of the fact that, for any reason, any other or
others of them may be unenforceable in whole or in part.

5. Return of Company Property. At any time as requested by the Company, or upon the termination of Executive’s employment with the
Company for any reason, Executive shall deliver promptly to the Company all files, lists, books, records, manuals, memoranda, drawings, and
specifications; all other written or printed materials and computers, cell phones, and other equipment that are the property of the Company (and any copies
of them); and all other materials that may contain confidential information relating to the business of the Company, which Executive may then have in
Executive’s possession or control, whether prepared by Executive or not.

6. Cooperation. Following the Term, Executive shall give assistance and cooperation willingly, upon reasonable advance notice with due
consideration for Executive’s other business or personal commitments, in any matter relating to Executive’s position with the Company, or Executive’s
expertise or experience as the Company may reasonably request, including Executive’s attendance and truthful testimony where deemed appropriate by the
Company, with respect to any investigation or the Company’s defense or prosecution of any existing or future claims or litigations or other proceedings
relating to matters in which Executive was involved or potentially had knowledge by virtue of Executive’s employment with the Company. The Company
agrees that (a) it shall promptly reimburse Executive for Executive’s reasonable and documented expenses in connection with rendering assistance and/or
cooperation under this Section 6 upon Executive’s presentation of documentation for such expenses and (b) Executive shall be reasonably compensated for
his continued material services as required under this Section 6. The parties agree to negotiate the reasonable compensation reference in 6(b) in good faith.

7. No Prior Agreements. Executive hereby represents and warrants to the Company that the execution of this Agreement by Executive and
Executive’s employment by the Company and the performance of Executive’s duties hereunder will not violate or be a breach of any agreement with a
former employer, client, or any other person or entity. Further, Executive agrees to indemnify the Company for any claim, including, but not limited to,
attorneys’ fees and expenses of investigation, by any such third party that such third party may now have or may hereafter come to have against the
Company based upon or arising out of any non-competition, invention, or secrecy agreement between Executive and such third party that was in existence
as of the date of this Agreement.
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8. Miscellaneous.

(a) Notice. All notices, requests, demands, and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given, made, and received (i) if personally delivered, on the date of delivery, (ii) if by e-mail transmission,
upon receipt, (iii) if mailed United States mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, and addressed as provided below, upon
receipt or refusal of delivery, or (iv) if by a courier delivery service providing overnight or “next-day” delivery, upon receipt or refusal of delivery, in each
case addressed as follows:

To the Company: TherapeuticsMD, Inc.
951 Yamato Road, Suite 220
Boca Raton, Florida 33431
Attention: Chief Executive Officer
Phone: (561) 961-1900

With a copy, which shall not constitute notice, to:

TherapeuticsMD, Inc.

951 Yamato Road, Suite 220
Boca Raton, Florida 33431
Attention: General Counsel
Phone: (561) 961-1900

To Executive: James C. D’ Arecca
With a copy to: Stewart Reifler, Esq.
8 Brightfield Lane

Westport, Connecticut 06880
Phone: (203) 557-0722

Either party may alter the address to which communications or copies are to be sent by giving notice of such change of address in conformity with the
provisions of this Section 8 for the giving of notice.

(b) Indulgences; Waivers. Neither any failure nor any delay on the part of either party to exercise any right, remedy, power, or
privilege under this Agreement shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, power, or privilege preclude
any other or further exercise of the same or of any other right, remedy, power, or privilege, nor shall any waiver of any right, remedy, power, or privilege
with respect to any occurrence be construed as a waiver of such right, remedy, power, or privilege with respect to any other occurrence. No waiver shall be
binding unless executed in writing by the party making the waiver.

(o) Controlling Law. This Agreement and all questions relating to its validity, interpretation, performance and enforcement, shall
be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida, notwithstanding any Florida or other conflict-of-interest provisions to the
contrary, unless superseded by federal law. Venue for any action arising out of this Agreement or the employment relationship shall be brought only in
courts of competent jurisdiction in or for Palm Beach County, Florida and each party hereby irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any
objection which they may now or hereafter have to the laying of venue in such courts and submits to the jurisdiction of such courts. THE PARTIES (BY
THEIR ACCEPTANCE HEREOF) HEREBY KNOWINGLY, IRREVOCABLY, VOLUNTARILY, AND INTENTIONALLY WAIVE ANY RIGHT EACH
MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY WITH RESPECT TO ANY DISPUTES BASED UPON OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT.
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(d) Execution in Counterpart. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to
be an original as against any party whose signature appears thereon, and all of which shall together constitute one and the same instrument. This Agreement
shall become binding when one or more counterparts hereof, individually or taken together, shall bear the signatures of the parties reflected hereon as the
signatories.

(e) Entire Agreement. Except as herein contained, this Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties hereto
with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings, inducements, and conditions,
express or implied, oral or written, which shall no longer have any force or effect. The express terms hereof control and supersede any course of
performance and/or usage of the trade inconsistent with any of the terms hereof. This Agreement may not be modified or amended other than by an
agreement in writing signed by Executive and an authorized representative with actual authority to bind Company.

® Controlling Document. If any provision of any agreement, plan, program, policy, arrangement or other written document
between or relating to the Company and Executive conflicts with any provision of this Agreement, the provision of this Agreement shall control and
prevail.

(8 Section Headings. The section headings in this Agreement are for convenience only; they form no part of this Agreement and
shall not affect its interpretation.

(h) Number of Days. In computing the number of days for purposes of this Agreement, all days shall be counted, including
Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays; provided, however, that if the final day of any time period falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday, then the final day shall
be deemed to be the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday.

) Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the
parties hereto; provided that because the obligations of Executive hereunder involve the performance of personal services, such obligations shall not be
delegated by Executive. For purposes of this Agreement, successors and assigns shall include, but not be limited to, any individual, corporation, trust,
partnership, or other entity that acquires a majority of the stock or assets of the Company by sale, merger, consolidation, liquidation, or other form of
transfer. The Company will require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation, or otherwise) to all or substantially all of
the business and/or assets of the Company to expressly assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent that the
Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had taken place.
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G Tax Withhoelding. The Company may withhold from any benefits payable under this Agreement all federal, state, city, or other
taxes as may be required pursuant to any law or governmental regulation or ruling.

k) Survival. The respective rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall survive any termination of Executive’s
employment hereunder, including without limitation, the Company’s obligations under Section 3 hereof and Executive’s obligations under Section 4 hereof,
and the expiration of the Term, to the extent necessary to the intended preservation of such rights and obligations.

O Right to Consult with Counsel; No Drafting Party. Executive acknowledges having read and considered all of the provisions
of this Agreement carefully, and having had the opportunity to consult with counsel of Executive’s own choosing, and, given this, Executive agrees that the
obligations created hereby are not unreasonable. Executive acknowledges that Executive has had an opportunity to negotiate any and all of these provisions
and no rule of construction shall be used that would interpret any provision in favor of or against a party on the basis of who drafted the Agreement.

[Signature Page Follows]

16




IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.
THERAPEUTICSMD, INC.

/s/ Robert Finizio

Robert Finizio
Chief Executive Officer

EXECUTIVE:

/s/ James C. D’ Arecca

James C. D’Arecca

[Signature Page to Employment Agreement]




EXHIBITA
FORM OF SEPARATION AGREEMENT AND RELEASE

This Separation Agreement (“Agreement”) is made between TherapeuticsMD, Inc. (“Company”) and (“Employee™),
intending to be legally bound, and in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency
of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Separation and Severance. Employee’s final day of employment with Company was . Although the parties agree
that Company does not owe Employee any further consideration, as severance if this release is not executed by Employee, Company agrees to pay
Employee as set forth in Employee’s Employment Agreement dated (the “Employment Agreement”), provided Employee executes
this Agreement, complies with its terms and the terms of Employee’s Employment Agreement[[, and does not revoke this Agreement during the Revocation

Period as defined in Section 8 below.]]! Employee acknowledges that no other compensation of any kind remains outstanding, that the consideration
provided herein is more than Employee would otherwise be entitled to receive, that Employee shall not be entitled to any other payments or benefits from
Company, and that no other amounts are due or owing or shall become due or owing relating to any obligation, agreement, or otherwise.

2. Execution of Separation Agreement. Should Employee wish to accept this Agreement, it must be signed and returned to

by
3. EAICA. Employee acknowledges and agrees that Employee’s obligations contained in the paragraphs 2, 3, 4, 6, 8, 9, 10 and 11 of the
Employee Assignment, Invention, and Confidentiality Agreement (“EAICA”) that Employee signed on , a copy of which is

attached as Exhibit A, remain in full force and effect. The terms of this Agreement are in additional to and do not supersede the surviving terms of the
EAICA.

4. Confidentiality of Agreement. Employee understands and agrees that the existence of this Agreement and the terms and conditions thereof,
shall be considered confidential, and shall not be disclosed by Employee to any third party or entity except with the prior written approval of Company, to
Employee’s spouse or attorney or financial advisor, or upon the order of a court of competent jurisdiction. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to
the contrary, nothing in this Agreement or any other agreement between the Company and Employee shall prevent Employee from sharing information and
communicating in good faith, without prior notice to the Company, with any federal government agency having jurisdiction over the Company or its
operations, and cooperating in any investigation by any such federal government agency; provided that Employee receives no monies for compensatory or
other damages as a result of participating in any such communication or cooperation with the EEOC.

1 Employee will be entitled to a revocation period only if over the age of 40 at the date of termination.
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5.  Non-Disparagement. At all time Employee will refrain from and will not directly or indirectly engage in any conversation that would tend to
negatively impact Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of its past and current directors and senior executives.

6. Return of Company Property. Employee agrees to immediately return to Company any and all property of Company in Employee’s

possession, custody, or control. No severance shall be paid pursuant to this Agreement until all Company property is returned.

7. Confidential Information. Employee acknowledges that Employee has had access to Company confidential and proprietary information and
agrees that all such Confidential Information is and shall remain the exclusive property of Company. Employee further agrees that Employee shall not
publish, disclose, or otherwise make available to any third party any such Confidential Information, except (i) as such disclosure or use may be or may
have been required or appropriate in connection with his work as an employee of the Company, (ii) when required to do so by a court of law, by any
governmental agency having supervisory authority over the business of the Company or by any administrative or legislative body (including a committee
thereof) with apparent jurisdiction to order him to divulge, disclose or make accessible such information, (iii) as to such Confidential Information that
becomes generally known to the public or trade without his violation of this Section 7 or (iv) to Employee’s spouse, attorney and/or his personal tax and
financial advisors as reasonably necessary or appropriate to advance Employee’s tax, financial and other personal planning (each an “Exempt Person”),
provided, however, that any disclosure or use of any Confidential Information by an Exempt Person shall be deemed to be a breach of this Section 7 by
Employee. Employee acknowledges and agrees that Employee has continuing confidentiality obligations under the EAICA. Employee warrants that
Employee has no materials containing Confidential Information, but if Employee does, Employee shall return immediately to Company any and all
materials containing any Confidential Information in Employee’s possession, custody, or control. The terms of this Separation Agreement comprise
confidential information of the Company.

8. Release. That the undersigned, , for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, intending to be legally bound, and Employee’s past, present and future agents, representatives, attorneys, affiliates, heirs, executors, assigns
and successors, and all other persons connected therewith, and on behalf of all successors and assigns, hereby releases and forever discharges
TherapeuticsMD, Inc., vitaMedMD, LLC, BocaGreenMD, Inc., vitaCare Prescription Services and all of their past, present and future agents,
representatives, principals, attorneys, affiliates, owners, parent corporations, subsidiaries, officers, directors, employees, assigns and successors, and all
other persons, firms or corporations connected or affiliated therewith (collectively “Releasees”), of and from any and all legal, equitable or other claims,
demands, setoffs, defenses, contracts, accounts, suits, debts, agreements, actions, causes of action, sums of money, judgments, findings, controversies,
disputes, or past, present and future duties, responsibilities, obligations, or suits at law and/or equity of whatsoever kind, from the beginning of the world to
the date hereof, in addition, without limitation, any and all actions, causes of action, claims, counterclaims, third party claims, and any and all other federal,
state, local and/or municipality statutes, laws and/or regulations and any ordinance and/or common law pertaining to employment or otherwise and any and
all other claims which have been or which could have been asserted against any party in any forum.
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By signing this Agreement, Employee knowingly and voluntarily fully releases and forever discharges Releasees of and from all claims, demands
and liability of any kind arising under any statute, law or ordinance, including, without limitation, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Labor
Standards Act, the National Labor Relations Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, any state Human Rights Act, Fla. Stat. 448, or any facts or claims
arising under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act (“ADEA”). This release is intended to cover all actions, causes of action, claims and demands for
damages, loss or injury arising from the beginning of time until the date of this Agreement, whether presently known or unknown to Employee. However,
Employee does not waive Employee’s rights to claims which may arise after this Agreement becomes effective.

In addition, Employee is hereby advised to consult with an attorney prior to executing this Agreement. Employee agrees that Employee has been
given a reasonable time in which to consider the Agreement and seek such consultation. Employee further warrants that Employee has consulted with
knowledgeable persons concerning the effect of this Agreement and all rights which Employee might have under any and all state and federal laws relating
to employment and employment discrimination and otherwise. Employee fully understands these rights and that by signing this Agreement Employee
forfeits all rights to sue Releasees for matters relating to or arising out of employment, separation, or otherwise.

In accordance with provisions of the ADEA, as amended, 29 U.S.C. §601-634, Employee is hereby provided a period of twenty-one (21) days
from the date Employee receives this Agreement to review the waiver of rights under the ADEA and sign this Agreement. Furthermore, Employee has
seven (7) days after the date Employee signs the Agreement (“Revocation Period”) to revoke Employee’s consent. This Agreement shall not become
effective or enforceable until the Revocation Period has expired. If Employee does not deliver a written revocation to
before the Revocation Period expires, this Agreement will become effective.

Notwithstanding anything in this Section 8 to the contrary, releases contained in this Agreement shall not apply to (i) any rights to receive any
payments or benefits pursuant to Sections 3(b)(ii), 3(b)(iii) or 3(b)(iv) of the Employment Agreement, (ii) any rights or claims that may arise as a result of
events occurring after the date this Agreement is executed, (iii) any indemnification rights Employee may have as a former officer or director of the
Company or its subsidiaries or affiliated companies, (iv) any claims for benefits under any directors’ and officers’ liability policy maintained by the
Company or its subsidiaries or affiliated companies in accordance with the terms of such policy, (v) any claims for vested benefits under any Company
pension benefit plan or welfare benefit plan in which Employee and his dependents participate, and/or (vi) any rights as a holder of equity securities of the
Company.

9.  Opportunity to Seek Counsel. The parties represent that they have had an opportunity to retain legal counsel to represent them in connection
with this matter, that they have been advised of the legal effect and consequences of this Agreement, that they have entered into this Agreement knowingly,
freely and voluntarily of their own volition, and that they have not been coerced, forced, harassed, threatened or otherwise unduly pressured to enter into
this Agreement.
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10.  Reporting of Known Issues. As a further condition to your receipt of the benefits described in this Agreement, you hereby represent and
warrant that you have reported in writing to any unethical conduct or violations of laws, regulations, Company policies
and procedures by the Company, a Company employee, or a Company officer of which you are aware.

11. No Admissions. This Agreement is not and shall not in any way be construed as an admission by either party of any wrongful act or
omission, or any liability due and owing, or any violation of any federal, state or local law or regulation.

12.  Miscellaneous. This Agreement may not be amended or modified except in writing signed by Employee and an authorized representative
with actual authority to bind Company, specifically stating that it is an amendment to this Agreement. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with Sections 4(g)_(Restrictions Separable), 8(a)_(Notice), 8(b)_(Indulgences; Waivers), 8(c)_(Controlling_Law), 8(d)_(Execution in

the Employment Agreement constitute the entire Agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof; provided, however, that
Employee’s continuing obligations to the Company under the terms of the EAICA are incorporated herein and shall remain in full force and effect as set
forth herein.

IN WITNESS THEREQOF, the parties hereto acknowledge, understand and agree to this Agreement and intend to be bound by all of the clauses
contained in this document.

EMPLOYEE THERAPEUTICSMD, INC.
By:
[Employee]
Its:
Date: Date:




TherapeuticsMD, Inc. 10-Q

Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Robert G. Finizio, certify that:

(1) Ihave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of TherapeuticsMD, Inc.;

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report,;

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

(4) The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@

(b)

©
(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

(5) The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.
August 6, 2020 /s/ Robert G. Finizio

Robert G. Finizio
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
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TherapeuticsMD, Inc. 10-Q

Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, James C. D’ Arecca, certify that:

)
2

3

“

)

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of TherapeuticsMD, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report,;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@

(b)

©
(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(@
(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

August 6, 2020 /s/ James C. D’Arecca

James C. D’Arecca
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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TherapeuticsMD, Inc. 10-Q
Exhibit 32.1
SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
In connection with the quarterly report of TherapeuticsMD, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2020 as

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Robert G. Finizio, Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
certify, to my best knowledge and belief, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a)
or 780(d)); and
) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the
Company.
August 6, 2020 /s/ Robert G. Finizio

Robert G. Finizio
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

A signed original of this certification has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.
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TherapeuticsMD, Inc. 10-Q
Exhibit 32.2
SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
In connection with the quarterly report of TherapeuticsMD, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2020 as

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, James C. D’Arecca, Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify to my best knowledge and belief, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a)
or 780(d)); and
) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the
Company.
August 6, 2020 /s/ James C. D’Arecca

James C. D’Arecca
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

A signed original of this certification has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.
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